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From the people we employ to the wells we
drill, Forest Qil Corporation is dedicated to being
the best oil and gas company in the industry. Our
2001 Annual Report highlights our “Commitment”
to strategic excellence, superior operational
performance and proven financial discipline. OQur
steadfast determination allowed Forest to deliver
significant accomplishments in 2001, and posi-
tioned us to capitalize in the years ahead on long-
term exceptional growth opportunities for Forest
and our shareholders.

GROSSARY OF TIRMS

Many terms used in this Annual Report
are unique to the oil and gas business. Listed
below are several terms used in this annual
report:

Bbls, MBbls, MMBbls, and Bbbis - Barrels,
thousands, millions, and billion of barrels
of oil, condensate, or natural gas liquids.

Mcf, MMcf, Bcf, and Tef - Thousand, million,
billion, and trillion cubic feet of natural gas.

Mcfe, MMcfe, Befe, and Tefe - Thousand,
million, billion, and trillion equivalent cubic
feet of natural gas (1 barrel of oil = 6 mcf of
natural gas).
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This Annual Report may include forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1993 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Statements that address activities, events and
outcomes, and matters that Forest plans, anticipates, expects, intends, believes,
budgets or projects will, should or may occur in the future are forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncer-
tainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from thosein the
forward-looking statements. These risks include, but are not limited to, com-
meodity price volatility, drilling and other operating risks, the uncertainty inher-
ent in estimating proved reserves and projecting future rates of production,
general economic conditions and other risk factors that are described in our
2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.




CORPORATE PROFILE

Forest Qil Corporation and its subsidiéries are engaged in the
exploration, acquisition, development, production and marketing of
natural gas and crude oil in North America and in selected international
locations. Headquartered in Denver, Colorado, Forest’s principal reserves
and producing properties are located in the United States in Alaska,
Louisiana, Oklahoma, Texas, Utah, Wyoming and the Guif of Mexico, and
in Canada in Alberta and the Northwest Territories. With roots dating
back to 1916 in the Bradford Qil Field of northwestern Pennsylvania,
Forest was incorporated in 1924 and has been publicly held since 1969.

Today, Forest is a $1.8 billion company that ranks as one of the
fargest independent exploration and production companies in the United
States. Central to our success is an operational strategy anchored by a
strong presence in mature as well as high potential areas, an aggressive
exploration program, implementation of advanced technology, and a
focus on production and reserve replacement. Our commitment to the
discovery, development and commercialization of natural gas is
reinforced by the world’s increasing demand for the commodity as the
preferred source of energy across the globe. Forest is dedicated to being
a major player in the business of supplying that energy.

Over the past several years, Forest has exhibited foresight and
ingenuity in our strategic acquisitions and partnerships, and in the devel-
opment and implementation of an ambitious expioration program. Our
commitment to growth has brought success in enviable fields north of the
60th paralle! in both Alaska and Canada as well as in South Africa. We
have continued to maintain a strong presence in the Gulf of Mexico, and
in prime onshore locations in mature producing basins in the lower 48
states. Forest closed 2001 with production of 172 Bcfe and estimated
proved reserves of 1,646 Bcfe, replacing 259 percent of production. We
exhibited over a 20 percent increase in net asset value per share in 2001,
netting our shareholders the second highest ranking in the industry.
Forest stands out in our sector by focusing on exploration activities. in
2001 we dritled 120 wells of which 108 were considered exploration. The
average well depth drilled was greater than 13,000 feet.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Robert S. Boswell
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dear Fellow Shareholders:

We find curselves living and working in unprecedented times as we enter into year
three of this millennium. We lock at things a little differently today than we did one year
ago. The employees of Forest Cil Corporation understand more deeply than ever the
importance of our commitment to the principles and ideals that have steered this
Company through successful as well as challenging cycles for more than 85 vears.
Resolve is apparent in our Company, paired with a heightened sense of purpose.

Our mission to be the best at what we do influences our decisions and drives our
operations. Whereas other companies may share our unrelenting desire to produce
results, improve value and creatie a challenging work environment, we strive to distin-
guish ourselves by our level of commitment to achieve those goals. Challenges that test
one’s determination are inevitable from time to time in our business. While they make
our goals harder to achieve, they make them all the more vaiued when attained.

Our exploration, development and acqguisition cobjectives and strategies that have
been in place since 1995 are coming to fruition, positioning Forest for years of growth.
Proved reserves have grown from 301 Bcfe in 1995 to 1,546 Bcfe in 2001. Annual
production has increased from 40 Bcfe to 172 Befe during the same period. Since 1985,
we have strengthened our balance sheet and taken our overall drilling success rate tc 2
Company high. Growth has been through acguisition as well as exploration, with
greater emphasis placed on the latiter because we believe exploration exposes the
Company 1o greater opportunities for significant increases in value.

The vear 2001 was a remarkable year for Forest Oil and for its shareholders in terms
of reserve growth and value added. We discovered 445 Bcfe of proved reserves that
replaced 259 percent of 2001 preduction in North America at a cost of $1.27 per Mcfe
totally through the drilibit. We also completed the integration of a significant merger,
began repositioning our asset poriiclio, made important changes in our management
team and fortified our capital structure. These accomplishments, combined with high
hydrocarbon prices, enabled Forest to achieve record cash flows. Most importantly, cur
net asset value per share grew for the fifth consecutive year.

The Forest senior management team and business unit managers represent one
of the most talented and energized core of leaders we have had in the history of this
Company. Last September Craig Ciark joined Forest as Chief Operating Officer and
President. Prior to his appointment, Craig served as Executive Vice President of U.S.
Operations at Apache Corporation. Over a 12-year period with Apache, Craig heid
senior management positions in exploration and production, marketing, risk management,
environmental health and safety, and purchasing. He aisc served as Chairman and
CEC of ProEnergy, an Apache gas marketing joint venture with Cryx and Pioneer
Resources. He brings a wealth of industry experience to cur operations, and we are
delighted to have him on board. Art Eastly, a native cf Alberta, Canada, retired as
President of Canadian Forest Oil Ltd. on December 31st, having served in that capacity
since Canadian Forest was established in 18996. During Art's tenure Forest built its
investment in Canada and established one of the premier exploration positions in the
Canadian Foothills and the Northwest Territories. We wish Art and his wife, Seima,
all the best.

Exciting successes came in 2001 in our high-impact frontier exploration acreage
north of the 60th parallel in Alaska and Canada, as well as in the mature areas of the lower
48. We closed 2001 with four of our six Business Units meeting their targets for increased
preduction and reserve replacements, and refined our reserve portfolio through selected
asset sales.




Qur Alaska Business Unit continues to be a highlight in cur corporate
portfolio. The Cook Inlet in Alaska is dotied with several major oil and
gas fields that were discovered in the 1960's. The advent of advanced
technology and a more favorabie economic climate have once again made
this area conducive to exploration. As one of the largest leaseholders in the
Cook Inlet, Forest has established an ocutstanding position and a desirable
prospect inventory in an area with significant potential.

Three wells were drilled from our Osprey Platform in the Cook Inlet in
2001 and a fourth is currently drilling to help delineate our discovery named
Redoubt Shoal. Redoubt #4 will be the deepest directional well drilled in
the Cook Inlet by any company, and will help us define the eastern limit of
the field. Another highly successful we!l, the K-13 RD horizontai well in the
Trading Bay Field, was producing in excess of 6,000 Bbls/d at year-end, one
of the highest producing oil wells in the history of the Cock Inlet. Forest’s
other acreage in the Cook Inlet presently covers eight prospects that have
excellent exploration potential in this highly prolific area.

North of the 60th parallel in Canada, we have interests in more than
20 significant discovery licenses in the MacKenzie Delia and the Beaufort
Sea. These are long-term projects with harsh climate, rugged terrain
and remoteness, but hold exciting possibilities. Even though the area is
pipeline constrained, the abundance of resources and the growing
demand for energy in Canada and the United States, have led several
groups to give serious consideration to building the infrastructure
required to deliver natural gas to market. We beiieve a pipeline may be
built within five to seven vyears, a development that would greatly
enhance our efforts to bring resources in the far north into commerciai-
ization. This would add to cur existing production from the Fort Liard
area in the southern porticn of the Northwest Territories where we
recently entered into an exploration joint venture on a portion of the
457,000 gross acres we hold in the region. Once a pipeline from the
MacKenzie Delta and Beaufort Sea is in place, the estimated resource
potential for this area promises to make the Forest acreage in this vast
frontier valuable for decades.

During 2001, we added 39,000 gross acres to cur Canadian Foothills
play and drilled nine wells in the area with a 100 percent success rate. Ten
wells were in progress at vyear-end with additional drilling
to continue through the second quarter of 2002. We anticipate recent
acreage acquisitions, our seismic program, and joint venture arrangements
to lead to an active winter drilling season in early 2002. With a 246 percent
reserve replacement from our 2001 Canadian exploration program, we
expect the production levels to grow considerably in 2002. The completion
of plant construction by the end of the first guarter of this year will also
enhance our ability to deliver gas to market from this region.

We will continue in 2002 to focus our efforts in the Western Regicon
Business Unit on a drilling program that achieved a 96 percent success
rate in 2001, and will complement those efforts with exploitation drilling
and exploration in the areas of greatest opportunity.

In South Africa, the impetus to move toward commercialization
continues to grow with the objective of signing two off-take agreements
in 2002. A third party engineering study substantiates the rescurce
potential for natural gas off the west coast of South Africa and market

Alaska Business Unit
Cook Inlet, Alaska
Osprey Platform
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International Business Unit
Pride Rig
Ibhubesi Prospect, South Africa

studies lead us to believe that this South African asset will
be a source of value and growth for us for many years.

We have dedicated almost half of our planned capital
spending in 2002 to two sizeable projects. These expenditures
inctude the development project in Redoubt Shoal in Alaska
and a joint deepwater development project, Lost Ark, in the
Gulf of Mexico. Both capital investments are designed to
increase production levels in those regions commencing in
late 2002. As a result, we anticipate that our 2002 company-
wide production volumes will be below 2001 levels. We
firmiy believe, however, that our investment strategy will
reap impressive benefits commencing in 2003 when we
expect production levels to grow significantly. Further, our
projected 2003 production is anticipated to include significant
long-lived Alaskan oil production from Redoubt Sheal, which
is expected to repiace short-lived Guif of Mexico natural gas
reserves in our production portfolio. In 2002, we will exercise
capital discipline to contain costs and to insure that we have
sufficient financial flexibility to handle opportunities and
challenges that may arise in this down cycie.

We anticipate the current down cycle in hydrocarbon
pricing to continue in 2002. Through prudent financial
planning, we have positioned cur balance sheet fo take
advantage of emerging opportunities that sometimes occur
during these cycles in our industry.

Nothing insures the attainment of a goal like the pledge
to reach it. Forest Qil represenis a collection of over 500
people committed to building vaiue for cur shareholders and
meseting our customers’ energy demands. We are further
committed to keeping the environment clean, our operations
safe and our employees challenged.

Vince Lombardi, acknowledged by many as the greatest
footbal! coach of ali time, said it best: "Individual commitment
to a group effort — that is what makes a team work, a company
work, a society work, a civilization work." | assure you that
the employees of Forest Oil Corporation are dedicated 1o
hard work at every level and that we pledge to apply the
best of curselves to the tasks at hand.

i

Robert S. Boswell
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
March 12, 2002




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

On December 7, 2000, Forest Qil Corporation completed its merger with Forcenergy inc. The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests.
Under this method of accounting, the recorded assets and liabilities of Forest and Forcenergy were carried forward to the combined company
at their recorded amounts, and income of the combined company for the year ended December 31, 2000 included income of Forest and
Forcenergy. As of December 31, 1999, Forcenergy effected a reorganization and implemented fresh start reporting. As such, the results of
operations of Forcenergy prior to December 31, 1999 are not included in the financial statements of the combined company. Financial highlights
and measurements presented herein have been prepared on this basis.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1929 1998 1887

Reveryz 2R3 E27RIAES (in thousands except per share amounts)
Total Revenue $1,018,379 913,088 360,124 324,780 342,849
Oil and Gas Sales $ 714,852 624,828 183,841 178,701 188,480
Net Earnings (Loss) $ 103,743 130,608 19,043 (197,890) (©,270)
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 2.18 2.73 0.79 (9.37) (0.56)
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 2.1 2,84 0.7® (9.37) {0.84)
Bezree Sheet Dat (in thousands)
Current Assets $ 201,965 238,828 231,325 61,376 88,660
Total Assets $1,796,369 1,762,378 1,474,689 789,738 647,782
Long-Term Debt $ 594,178 622,234 685,183 808,450 254,760
Shareholders' Equity $ 923,943 888,966 658,884 168,891 261,827
Natural Gas (MMcf) 828,549 844,083 825,623 564,264 378,316
Liquids (MBbils) 119,549 89,247 97,086 35,069 24,838
1,546 1,380 1,408 778 528

/528,72 (in thousands)

Discounted Future Net Cash
Flows Relating to Proved Reserves $1,346,653 3,604,437 1,479,022 622,831 439,870

Natural Gas (MMcf) 108,394 118,842 61,702 62,310 49,036
Liquids (MBbis) 10,600 19,427 4,387 4,269 3,207
172 182

Exploratory Wells - Productive 6.7 B.4 8.3
Exploratory Wells - Dry . 8.9 8.3
Development Wells - Productive . 12.8 28.5
Development Wells - Dry . 2.0 11.3

Gross Acres 22,575,018 29,486,208 62,050,568 21,824,009 2,207,392
Net Acres 15,701,110 19,662,004 34,613,178 18,268,258 828,382
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CAPTTAL EXPENDITURES - Measures total investment
in growth assets, including capitalized general and
administrative expenses.

RESERVE ADDITIONS - The amount of oil and gas
added to proved reserves through acquisitions, exploration,
and development activities.

THREE YEAR AVERAGE FINDING COSTS -
Measures a company’'s historical cost of adding proved
reserves through drilling and acquisitions averaged over a
three year period.

PROVED RESERVES - Estimated quantities of oil and
gas in the ground that have been demonstrated tc be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under
existing economic and operating conditions.

RESERVE LIFE - At last year's production rates, indicates
how long it would take to drain all of a company’s proved
reserves if no new reserves were added.

LONG-TERM DEBT PER BOE - Relates a company’s
long-term debt to its estimated proved reserves, stated as
equivalent barrels of oil.

SEBT 7O EBITDA - Relates a company's long-term
debt to its ability to repay that debt through internally
generated cash.

IBITDA/INTEREST - Relates a company’s internally
generated cash to interest payments.

VALUE ADDED INDEX - Measures the amount of
discounted present value added per dollar spent on capital
projects. An index of greater than 1.0 reflects a program
that created value at an internal rate of return greater
than ten percent.

RESERVES 2EZR SHARE - Relates the amount of a
company’s proved reserves to each share of common
stock outstanding.

DEBT PER SHEARE - Relates the dollar amount of
a company’s debt attributable to each share of common
stock outstanding.

SARNINGS PR SHARE - The amount of earn-
ings attributable to one share of weighted average
outstanding common stock.

Lavrion, CkiEhont




ALASKA BUSINESS UNIT

The commitment of Forest Oil to broaden our asset
; base and exploration activity is exemplified by our position
OPE RATIONAL HIGH LIGHTS north of the 60th paraliel. The 2000 merger allowed us
entry into Alaska to accompany our longstanding position
in northern Canada and the MacKenzie Delta. Despite
Alaska's wilderness area and harsh operating conditions,
2001 2000 1999 this vast frontier is among the last industry opportunities
. in North America with large reserve potential. Alaska’s land
Production . . .

mass remains mostly unexplored, despite estimated
potential gas reserves of 40 Tefe. According to public data
sources, Alaska has the undiscovered reserve potential of 12
Liquids IMMBb!s! e . Bbbls and 300 Tcf excluding the Arctic National Wildlife
Estimated Proved Reserves Refuge. This prov.ﬂdeg,.Forest the opportunity Fo identify

and explore for significant reserve targets without the
high costs experienced in some international and deep
water areas.

Gas (Bch

Gas (Beh

Net (IMMBUis)
2001 HIG=ELIGHTS
2001 was an extremely successful year for our Alaska
Gross 282.099 295,164 44,125 drilling program, as we compieted 100 percent of the welis
drilied while contributing approximately half the reserve
Net 13080 22119 24,976 additions for the Company.
Our activity and reserve additions were exclusively
from the Cook Inlet on the southern coast of Alaska. Even
147.912 158,115 175,166 though several sizeable oil and gas fields were discovered
in the Inlet in the 1960’s, many major oil companies moved
151,090 167,521 their activity to the North Slope of Alaska in search of bigger
targets. Thirty years later, in response to more favorable
economic conditions and advancements in technology,
there is a renewed interest in the Cook Inlet as a major
exploration play.
Forest is an active explorer in the Cook Inlet with
_ additional exploration licenses north of Anchorage in the
fin thousands| Susitna Basin and in the Copper River Basin. Forest Oil wili
become the biggest cil producer in the Cook Inlet when our
Redoubt Shoal discovery comes on line.
Qur 2001 activity was focused on two major properties
in the Cook Inlet: the McArthur River Field and our 100
percent owned Redoubt Shoal discovery. Forest has a 47 to
51 percent working interest in the non-operated Trading Bay
Unit and McArthur River Field. The McArthur River Field
was discovered in the 1960's and should uitimately recover
over 600 MiMBbIs and 1.2 Tef, making it a very large field by
North American standards. Our applied technology includes
waterflood conformance, 2-D seismic and horizontal
drilling. In 2001, we drilled three wells in the McArthur
River Field, resulting in larger oil reserves and improved
production rates. The K-13 RD horizontal completion in the
Hemlock sandstone initially produced at 7,000 Bbls/d and
continues to produce at 6,000 Bbls/d. This is the highest

I

Developed Acreage

Undeveloped Acreage

Capital Expenditures



producing well in the history of the Cook Iniet. Several more
horizontal wells are planned in 2002. We expect excellent
recovery rates and view the field as a reserve growth area
for years to come. McArthur River will serve as the
analogous model for our Redoubt Shoal development due
to its close proximity and shared Hemlock interval.

Our 100 percent owned Redoubt discovery was the
major highlight for the Company in 2001 and for the entire
Cook Inlet. A wide array of technology has been used by
Forest in this field including re-locatable platforms,
directional drilling, stabilized oil base mud systems,
improved artificial lift techniques and secondary recovery
{(waterflooding). Our Osprey platform, recipient of several
engineering design awards, was the first platform set in the
Cook Inlet since the 1960's. Forest drilled and completed
three discovery wells at Redoubt in 2001 and ended the year
with booked net reserves of 50 MMBDbls. Further delineation
drilling will take place in 2002 with the Redoubt #4 reaching
total depth in the first quarter. The Redoubt #4 well will be
the deepest directional well drilled in the Cook Inlet to date
and will also define the eastern limit of the Redoubt oil field.
Drilling will continue for several years as producers and
water injection wells are drilled to fill the Osprey Platform’s
28 slots.

Convinced Redoubt Shoal holds world-class reserve
potential for near as well as long term, Forest has declared
the area its top priority in 2002. The development of
Redoubt Shoal will represent the largest singie project
capital expenditure in the history of Forest QOil. While
drilling continues, we will install pipeline and production
facilities that will allow initial oil sales in late 2002. Projected
rates include 2,500 Bbls/d per completion with anticipated
total rate of 15,000 Bbls/d with available platform capacity of
20,000 Bbls/d. As we work to determine the size and extent
of the Redoubt oil accumulation, we will also evaluate the
extent of the shallow gas pay tested in the Redoubt #3 and
logged in the Redoubt #4. The #3 well tested 8 MMcf/d
from one gas sand. Finding gas in the #4 well will allow
gas sales over and above our fuel gas requirements. This
field’s potential continues to grow with delineation drilling
and employment of appropriate technology.

FUTURE STRATEGY

Our Alaska Business Unit will dominate our capital
activity in 2002. We anticipate that this region will provide
major reserve additions in 2002 as we delineate Redoubt
oil and gas fields while also drilling additional exploration
wells elsewhere in the Cook Inlet. The onset of
Redoubt production in 2003 is expected to grow the Alaska
region to approximately 30 percent of totai Company
production and will provide Forest the balanced portfolio
we have long desired.




ALASKA BUSINESS UNIT conrinuen

The Cook Inlet is renowned for its giant oil and gas
fields. Our exploration efforts continue with the spudding
of the Cosmopolitan prospect in the south end of the Cook
Inlet where Forest has a 25 percent working interest. Qur
work in 2002 on licenses in the Susitna and Copper River
Basins will involve seismic acquisition. Additionally, we
have eight high potential exploration prospects generated
by Forest that are expected to commence drilling in 2003.

Although this region is exploration focused, a growing
level of diversity exists in the Alaska Business Unit’s portfolio.
The wildcat exploration program will be offset by exploitation
of the mature waterflocods. Since these non-operated
waterfloods were a major component of higher {ifting costs
in 2001, the Alaska Business Unit will join in the Company's
efforts to reduce operating costs in 2002.

The waters of the Cook Inlet and the cnshore basins in
Alaska have been exciting areas for Forest. Cur plans for
2002 will deepen our commitment to the land north of the
80th parallel, and further position Alaska as a highly
productive and profitable operating unit.

The Matanu_skg‘ Glacier




CANADIAN BUSINESS UNIT

Since the formulation of Forest's North American
natural gas strategy in 1985, the Canadian Feothills and
Northwest Territories have played an integral role in the
Company’s long-term exploration and development
plans. During the time Forest developed its strategy,
increased energy demands in Canada had depleted the
country’s natural gas reserve life index to roughly ten
years, indicating that increased supply for future
consumption would need to come from new discoveries.
Concurrently, additional pipeline capacity was being
created from an expansion of the Northern Border and
Alliance pipeiines that would allow for the transmission
of more Canadian gas tc markets in Canada and the
United States. By exercising the foresight in the
mid-90's to recognize Canada as an underexplored
region with great potential, Forest acquired strategic
positions that have solidly established the Company
from southern Alberta to north of the 60th parallel.

2001 HIGHLIGHTS

The most prospective Canadian play offering short
term potential is in the Foothills, where Forest has a
significant interest. The Foothills have become cne of the
most atiractive gas plays in the Western Canada
Sedimentary Basin. After spending four years as a shal-
low player in the Basin, we are moving into the
relatively unexplored deep potential. We are currently
drilling the thrust and fault plays below 5,000 feet
in this area. This level of the Alberta Basin has not been
drilied significantly. With the addition of 6,325 acres
to our Feothills inventory in fourth quarter 2001, our
holdings in this area are approximately 40,000 net acres.

Foresi's Foothills play contains 61 active drill sites
in four areas: Waterton, Cutpick, Narraway and Cjay
Fields. In 2001, we successfuliy drilled a total of nine
wells in these areas with a 100 percent success rate.
Our focus in 2002 is to bring our existing wells, some of
which are very strong, on-stream and reduce our
finding and development costs. Whereas the goal since
1998 has been to explore for reserves, particularly in
the deeper fields cf the basin, the focus moving intec
2002 is to reap the benefits of exploratory capital
investment with production dollars.

in 2001, following the acquisition of a significant
block of acreage in the Cutpick area, Forest drilled six
wells with a 100 percent success rate. A gas

processing facility and pipeline ccnnection were
completed early in 2001, with gas currently on production
in this field. With all components in place, we expect
significant production yields from Cutpick in 2002.

- OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Canadian Business Unit
Grand Prairie,
Northwest Territories

The most significant event in the Foothills occurred
in February 2002 when the Narraway Field came on
stream ahead of schedule. Forest is the operator in the
Narraway Field where our working interest ranges from
50 to 55 percent. Since the commencement of production
in April 2000, we have drilled six wells with a 100 percent
success rate. Four wells are currently producing a gross
volume of 20 MMcf/d with one well remaining to be tied
into pipeline and another scheduled for completion.

FUTURE STRATEGY

The vast expanse north of the 60th parallel figures
prominently in Forest’'s long-term exploratory and
development pians. The lure of immense quantities of
reserves makes the remote area highly attractive,
despite its environmental challenges and lack of
infrastructure. The Canadian National Energy Board
estimates gas reserves in the region at 225 Tcf and oil
at 23 Bbbls. Like all frontiers, the prize will not be
earned without an investment of time, capital and hard
werk. We remain confident that our commitment in the
under-explored lands north of the 60th parallel will reap
benefits in the years ahead.

Forest's interests in the Northwest Territories are
concentrated in the Liard Plateau, the Norman Welis
Field and the Central Mackenzie Valley. A stretch of
2,000 miles runs between Ft. Liard on the southern
edge of the region to the Mackenzie Delta and Beaufort
Sea in the north. To date, we have drilled 10 wells in
this complex geclcgical area, using modern 2-D and
3-D seismic surveys and down-hole drilling motors and
deviated wellbore technigues in mountainous areas.

In 2001, we strengthened our land position in the
Northwest Territories through the acquisition of 170,000
additional acres, bringing total holdings to 457,000 net
acres. In the Ft. Liard area, we entered into a joint
venture which requires our partner to shoot 3-D seismic
at their expense during the 2001-2002 winter season.
QOur partner has committed to drilling one deep test and
has options on additional wells in order to earn
acreage.

Further north, Forest has significant acreage
holdings in the Norman wells area, Mackenzie Valley
and Mackenzie Lelta region where Forest has interests in
20 significant discovery licenses. Oil and gas exploration is
expected to occur when either an Alaskan or
Canadian pipeline is constructed to meet the growing
energy demand in the United States.




Our return on our Canadian interests continues to
lock promising with 2002 production expected to
increase by over 20 percent. Much of the Canadian
region is unexplored compared to the United States. As
demand and pipeline capacity increases, Forest is in an
excellent position to reap the benefits of establishing an
early foothold while making prudent investment deci-
sions along the way.




WESTERN REGION BUSINESS UNIT

The Western Region Business Unit, established in

- . 1996, extends from west Texas and Cklahoma north

OPE RATIONA L HIGHLIGHTS through the Rocky Mountain region. In this vast region, it
is important to narrow cur focus to specific producing

areas: Permian Basin of west Texas, Anadarko Basin

of Cklahoma, Uinta Basin of Utah and the Green River

2007 2000 1999 and Washakie Basins of Wyoming. These basins are
characterized by mature producing fields where steady

Production production and reserve additions can be unlocked using
Gas (Behi 147 15.6 101 new technology. Like the Gulf Coast Onshore Business

Unit, the Western Region Business Unit contains diversity
Liguids (IMMBbIs) 1.4 2.2 0.7 within its portfolioc of producing fields and inventory of

exploitation projects. Cur goal in this region is to create
vaiue from both the drill bit and the enhancement of
Gas (Befi 1957 1847  190.9 acquired producing assets.
In 2001, the Western Regicn Business Unit transitioned
Net (IMMBbIs) 17.1 20.9 24.0 from primarily a deep gas explorer to a regional producer
diverse in beoth activity and technoiogy. in addition to gas
drilling in traditional areas like the Rocky Mountains, we
Gross 261,949 354,600 377,011 initiated deep gas dﬂﬂﬂmg in the Anadarko BaSin,
horizontal/directional drilling in the Permian Basin,
Net 51570 106,276 120,753 secondary recovery on previously acquired oil fieids, 3-D
seismic driven exploration and hydraulic fracture
stimulation throughout the region. As a result, the
Gross 156.012 763,865 775,139 Western Region Business Unit has achieved product
diversity between cil and gas commodities.

Estimated Proved Reserves

Developed Acreage

Undeveloped Acreage

Net 91,424 179,814 185,316

2007 HIGRLIGETS

Gross Wells In 2001, the Western Regicn Business Unit completed

Gas 208 455 110 26 of 27 wells drilled for a success rate of 96 percent.
_ The most impressive statistic about the 2001 Western
ol 418 1,310 9 program, however, is that reserves remained constant

despite the sale of non-sirategic properties. We added 38
fin thousands) Befe at a finding and development cost of $1.18 per Mcfe,
$45333 $ 25,504 whife spending less capital than the cash flow generated
from the region in the same year. The production reserve
replacement achieved solely frem finding and development
activity was 165 percent. Production volumes in 2002 are
expected to increase over 2001 levels due to successiul
activity in fourth guarter of 2001.

In the Rocky Mountain area, our activity was focused
in the Wild Rose and East Echo Springs fields in
Wyoming. We drilled and completed five wells in Wild
Rose in the fourth quarter. These fracture-stimulated
completions each averaged 1.0 tc 2.0 Mcfe/d and are the

Capital Expenditures

first wells in an expected 15 to 30 well program that will
continue in 2002. Forest has a 100 percent inierest in
Wild Rose. We drilled three wells in Echo Springs (25




percent working interest) that came on line in January
2002 at average gross rates of 2.5 MMcfe/d per well.

Our entry into the Anadarko Basin proved fruitful
with the completion of two 20,000 foot Springer wells that
came on line in February 2002 at 4 to 8 MMcfe/d per well.
A third shallow Springer well was drilled that came on
line during March 2002 at 3 MMcfe/d. Our werking
interest in these wells ranges from 43 to 82 percent.

Our most unique application of new technology in
the region was the drilling of a high-angle deviated
wellbore into the fractured Wolfcamp interval on the
Ophal Dunlap #18-1 in west Texas. The well initially
produced 7.8 MMcfe/d and is currently producing 3.7
MMcfe/d. A second similar high-angle well is currently
being drilled.

FUTURE STRATEGY

The Western Region Business Unit will have an
active program in 2002 with capital expenditures funded
from the Unit's cash flow. Based on the region’s 2001
results, 30 wells are planned in 2002. The region has
successfully added low cost reserves with stable production
rates while controlling lifting costs. This Business Unit is
committed to Forest's “back-to-basics” strategy.

Having achieved diversity, this region is ready to
grow in size. Our technological diversity will serve the
Western Region Business Unit well in the exploitation of
its mature assets. The Western Region Business Unit is
poised to be an efficient niche player while, at the same
time, enhancing assets obtained from acquisitions. As
will be the case throughout the Company, growth in this
region will refiect the efficiency with which we operate
and, more specifically, the way we expend capital,
conduct our drilling activity and pursue acquisitions.

Western Region Business Unit
Ophal Diglap #18-1 We/l.‘?@ite
Ft. Stockg #7 ‘Texas

)




GULF COAST ONSHORE BUSINESS UNIT

The Guif Coast Onshore Business Unit, formed in

: 1998, is comprised of 35 fieids along the coasts of
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS Louisiana and Texas. The Onshore Business Unit is
= : characterized by acreage positions in excellent areas as
E— ‘ well as high quality seismic over most of the major
fields. As with the Guif of Mexico Offshore Business Unit,
Forest has a well-established infrastructure within the
| inland water areas, which will prove invaluable for future
FProcustion activity. This region is one of the oldest in the Forest
e portfolio, but also the most diverse in terms of well activity.

- Gas (Bef) 8.5 o o Core areas include the Miocene trend in south Louisiana,
fractured carbonates in central Texas and tight formations
L 7 — of the Wilcox and Vicksburg in south Texas. Our Gulf
Estirnates Proved Neserves f Coast Onshore Business Unit employs both new and varied
technelogy including sand control, hydraulic fracture

)

)

2001

N
es
&

£

€3

Liquids (MMBDbls) 1.1 1.8 7,

Gas (Bef) 147.4 e 1855 stimulation, and deep, geo-pressure drilling technigues.
Liquids (MMBbls) 12.5 3 4, 50 Production rates for the Gulf Coast Onshore
j Business Unit averaged 41 MMcfe/d in 2001. The Gulf
" Developes Awmeege Coast Onshore Business Unit contributed approximately
" Gross 67918  GB45c 50807 | nine percent of Forest’s total production in 2001.
|
Net 30,344 73279  188°) | 001 HIGELIGHTS
— ) The Gulf Coast Onshore Business Unit completed 11
Unceveiopee Aseegs of 12 wells drilled in 2001 for a success rate of 92 percent.
Gross 6.879 J 598 7 4l Cf the 12 wells drilled in 2001, all wells were exploratory.
’ ’ ’ Although there was limited activity during first haif 2001,
Net 3,387 2,878 3,157 the second half, and particularly the fourth quarter, was
— very active.
Cross Wels The major highiight in 2001 for the Gulf Coast
Gas 222 924 e Onshore Business Unit came late in the year from the
Bonus Field located southwest of Houston, Texas. A

oil 58 7o total of four wells were drilled and completed as
commingled producers from Wilcox sands. Ultilizing
fracture stimulation technology, we increased overall
gross field production from 0.5 MMcfe/d to 26 MMcfe/d.
Our working interest in the Bonus Field ranges from 74 to
92 percent. This is a great illustration of exploiting a
marginal, lesser-known field by successfully emplovying
new technology. Peak rate reached 37 MMcfe/d in
December 2001.
| The E. Broussard Heirs #1 exploratory well in the
S.E. Tigre Lagoon Field, South Louisiana, in which Forest
\ has a 78 percent working interest, found gas pay in the
} deep Miocene section and had first production in the
‘ fourth quarter at a rate of 8.6 MMcfe/d. This field was
enhanced by exploitation efforts using 3-D seismic on a
property acquired several years ago.
The Gulf Coast Onshore Business Unit shot 3-D seismic
over the McAllen Ranch Field in south Texas where




Forest has a 50 percent working interest. This field was
discovered by Forest and has been in our producing
portfolio for many years. Two exploratory wells were
successfully drilled and completed in the Vicksburg
formation. As a result, the total field production increased
from 5 MMcfe/d to a peak of 156 MMcfe/d. Further
exploitation of fault blocks not yet drilled is planned
for 2002.

FUTURE STRATEGY

The Gulif Coast Onshore Business Unit's objectives
are simple: 1) exploit the existing asset base, particularly
the unique mixture of acquired properties; 2) balance
exploitation with leveraged exploration; 3) reduce operating
costs to historically low Forest averages; and, most
importantly, 4) grow the region to assume a larger share
of Forest's corporate portfolio. We expect growth to be
achieved through exploitation activity and acquisitions.

Despite lower capital expenditures in 2002, the Gulf
Coast Onshore Business Unit's production should
increase from 2001. Our technology application and
exploitation focus will be apparent in 2002 with the
Deer Island Deep exploration program, McAilen Ranch
comprehensive field exploitation, and the Katy Field deep
and shallow drilling programs. Qur first well drilled in the
Katy Field near Houston, Texas, in 2002 will be the first
well drilled in the field in over a decade.

The Gulf Coast Onshore Business unit, along with
the Western Region Business Unit, comprises our lower
48 assets. Both regions have led the way in our "back-
to-basics" philosophy regarding mature assets. Our
assumption is the older the field, the more the benefit from
implementing appropriate technology.




GULF OF MEXICO OFFSHORE BUSINESS UNIT

Forest’s offshore production is located primarily on the

) I f sy ~ gy Gulf of Mexico shelf with additional activity in the deepwaiter.
OPERATTONAL HIGHTIGHTS Our Guif of Mexico Offshore Business Unit benefits from a
large acreage position and seismic database in addition to an

extensive, weil-established platform infrastructure. A Gulf

operator since 1954, Forest is ranked among the top inde-

2000 1999 pendent gas producers offshore with 99 operated platforms
and ownership in 204 blocks. The Offshore Business Unit is

Production the largest unit within the Company, providing 55 percent of
785 28.5 2001 production. The significant number of mature fields pro-

vides exploitation opportunities with steady cash fiow while

3.8 0.9 our acreage allows for exploration opportunities on the deep

shelf, sub-sait and deepwater plays. Our large inventory of

Estimated Proved Reserves o .
both exploitation and exploration prospects ensures years of

SO R 395.1 337.3 activity without additional land or property acguisitions.
Forest's presence in the Gulf tripled following the 2000
17.7 19.2 merger. Most of our 2001 offshore activity focused on

exploiting these newly acquired fields and acreage. Not

Developed Acreage .. . . .
P g surprisingly, as gas prices scared in 2001, rig rates and

717,079 733,734 services also experienced dramatic increases and contributed
to higher costs for capital activity and operating expenses. In
333,691 337,584 addition, repair and replacement costs resulted in an

increase in our previcusly [ow operating costs in the

Undeveloped Acreage .
region.

187,200 223,497
200t HIGHLIGHTS

71/t 142,670 183,609 The Offshore Business Unit completed 38 of 46 wells

Gross Wells for an 83 percent success rate in 2001. Of the 46 wells drilied,
41 wells were exploratory.

B 138 58 The most successful exploitation occurred in the South

) Marsh Island and Vermilion areas where discoveries were

380 40 made at SMI 148, SM! 105, SM! 76, SMi 97 and VR 261. Al

were turned to sales in 2001 with the exception of SMil 149
and SMI 105, which will come on line in mid-2002. These
Capital Expenditures .7 v $218,540 $ 28,744 properties, as well as a portion of future development capital
obtigations, were included in a transaction that we completed
in the fourth quarter. The most significant discovery was Sivil
148 where three wells were drilled, tested and a platform set
in early 2002. Once tied back and completed, these wells are
expected 1o produce at a total gross rate of 45 MMicfe/d.
The year 2001 marked Forest's entry into the deepwater
Guif of Miexico with first production from East Breaks164 and
a discovery at the EB 420 complex. At 100 percent working
interest for Forest, the EB 164 #2 was sub-sea completed and
tied into a host platform in late 2001 at a gross rate of 15
MiMicfe/d. The EB 420, or Lost Ark Prospect, with 50 percent
werking interest, had two wells drilled and tested. The first
of these sub-sea completions will be tied in by the end of
2002 end is expected to produce at a gross rate

{in thousands)




of 30 MMcfe/d. Both projects are consistent with Forest's
deepwater exploration strategy to utilize sub-sea
completion technology to avoid excessive infrastructure
expenses.

During 2001, we commenced our first sub-salt well, the
Thunder Prospect, at Eugene Island 342. We have an 18.75
percent working interest in this prospect, which is expected to
reach total depth in the second quarter of 2002.

In November 2001, a 50 percent working interest in the
production and facilities in the South Marsh Island and
Vermilion areas were sold for an adjusted purchase price of
$118 million. This transaction is the primary reason for our
lower offshore production in 2002,

We also signed a joint exploration agreement with our
partner that should reduce Forest's future development
costs on the aforementioned discoveries and provide Forest
a promoted interest on our identified deep shelf prospects.
Under the agreement our joint venture partner will provide
seismic processing and interpretation and will offer Forest
exploration prospects from the Gulf-wide portfolio on an
unpromoted basis.

FUTURE STRATEGY

In addition to ten wells we expect to drill with our joint
venture partner in the South Marsh and Vermilion areas in
2002 and 2003, our near term strategy employs three areas of
focus: 1) cost reduction, 2} portfolic diversification, and
3) existing property production enhancements.

We intend to reduce both drilling costs and operating
costs tc year 2000 levels. To accomplish this goal, we
will increase our drilling and production efficiency. Our
commitment to a more fundamental approach in ali of
Forest's Business Units will be most evident offshore. To
lower operating costs, we plan to redesign our operating
routes, consolidate with other operators to share services
and divest marginal high cost fields.

The 2002 offshore capital program calls for seven to
eight exploration wells and five to eight development wells
along with an active enhancement program on the property
base. [n alignment with Forest’s corporate portfolio,
we intend to diversify our offshore portfolio to remove
dependency on any one play. Diversification will involve
conventionai sheif exploration and development, deep
shelf gas exploration, sub-salt activity and deepwater
exploration, with limited capital exposure to the most
expensive plays. This diversification, in addition to our
extensive infrastructure on the shelf, should make Forest's
portfolio unique in the industry.




INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS UNIT

5,920,656 \

Asia 241,122
Airiee 12,675,502 |
(fim theusends)

Capia) Ervend . mes $33,3393 § 88

Forest's International operations are situated in two
distinct geographic areas. We are a mountain front piayer in
central and eastern Europe where strong natural gas markets
create excellent opportunity. Qur second primary area of
international focus is off the west coast of South Africa. Initial
exploration over a three-year period indicates long term
potential once the infrastructure is created and markets are
established. OQur vision is to play an integral role in the
creation of an emerging market in this region.

History has shown that once gas is brought into the
system, its advantages over other fuel sources become
readily apparent, and demand is established. We believe
South Africa is on the cusp of such a transition. The country
is the economic hub of the socuthern cone of the continent,
rich in manufacturing, technology and mineral deposits. A
democratic government has been in place for some time
and the political climate is generally favorable. Industries that
could potentially use gas as their energy source are in
existence. Our presence provides Forest the opportunity to
play a significant role in creating an oil and gas infrastructure.
To that end, our immediate focus is on executing a drilling
program, certifying reserves and bringing commercialization
to potential markets.

2001 HIGHLIGHTS

In 2000 and 2001, Forest drilled three wells in the
Ibhubesi Gas Field off the west coast of South Africa in an
area known as the Orange River Basin. We have licenses for
ten million acres in this Basin with both deep and shallow
plays. The three wells drilied by Forest, plus a fourth well
drilled previously, yielded a significant discovery and tested
at a combined rate of 180 MMcfe/d. Drilling expenses as
well as finding and development costs are comparatively
low in the Orange River Basin.

FUTURE STRATEGY

tn 2002, Forest will seek confirmation and certification of
the reserves off the west coast of South Africa. Several
signed letters of intent to promote exploration are in place.
We will move toward formalization of those contracts in the
year ahead and look for muiti-lateral financing to build the
necessary infrastructure. We have made steady progress
toward our goal of declaring commerciality in 2002, and
estimate to be on production as early as 2004.

Even though extended iead times are required to
establish a firm foundation in the South Africa market,
reserves indicate that the area has the potential to be a high-
vielding production center for Forest. This long-term
investment is another example of our commitment tc
exploration and development in regions with great potential.

20“
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PART 1

Throughout this Form 10-K, we make statements that may be deemed “forward-looking” statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. All expectations, forecasts, assumptions and beliefs about our future financial
results, operations, plans, strategies and performance are forward-looking statements, as described in more
detail in Part [, Item 1, under the heading “-—Forward-Looking Statements”. Our actual results may differ
materially because of a number of risks and uncertainties. Some of these risks and uncertainties are
detailed in Part 11, Item 7 of this Form 10-K under the heading “—Risk Factors.” Historical statements
made herein are accurate only as of the date of filing this Form 10-K with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and may be relied upon only as of that date.

In this report, quantities of oil or natural gas liquids are expressed in barrels (BBLS) thousands of
barrels (MBBLS) or millions of barrels (MMBBLS). One barrel equals 42 U.S. gallons. Quantities of
natural gas are expressed in thousands of cubic feet (MCF), millions of cubic feet (MMCEF) or billions of
cubic feet (BCF). Equivalent units are expressed in thousand cubic feet of gas equivalents (MCFE),
million cubic feet of gas equivalents (MMCFE), or billion cubic feet of gas equivalents (BCFE). Liquids
are converted to gas at one barrel of oil equaling six MCF of gas. The term liquids is used to describe oil,
condensate and natural gas liquids (NGL). With respect to information relating to Forest’s working
interest in wells or acreage, “net” oil and gas wells or acreage is determined by multiplying gross wells or
acreage by Forest’s working interest therein.

Throughout this Form 10-K we use the terms “Forest”, “Company”, “we”, “our” and “us” to refer to
Forest Oil Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Item 1. Business
The Company

Forest Oil Corporation is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the exploration,
development, acquisition, production and marketing of natural gas and liquids. Forest was incorporated in
New York in 1924, the successor to a company formed in 1916, and has been a publicly held company since
1969. On December 31, 2001, we had 493 employees. Our common stock, par value $.10 per share, is
traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “FST.” At February 28, 2002, The Anschutz
Corporation (Anschutz), a private Denver-based corporation, owned approximately 32.5% of our
outstanding common stock.

We operate from offices located in Anchorage, Alaska; Denver, Colorado; Lafayette and Metairie,
Louisiana; and Calgary, Alberta, Canada. Our corporate headquarters is located at 1600 Broadway,
Denver, Colorado, 80202, telephone 303.812.1400.

Forest’s estimated proved reserves were 1,546 BCFE at December 31, 2001 of which approximately
54% was natural gas. As of December 31, 2001, our estimated proved developed reserves were
approximately 61% of total estimated proved reserves.

Forest’s principal reserves and producing properties are all located in North America. We conduct our
oil and gas operations through six business units. In the United States, we have business units operating in
four areas: offshore Gulf of Mexico, onshore Gulf Coast, the Western United States and Alaska. Gur fifth
business unit is located in Canada, where our oil and gas operations are conducted by our wholly owned
subsidiary, Canadian Forest Oil Ltd. (Canadian Forest). Our sixth business unit oversees our interests in
other countries, principally South Africa, Gabon, Italy, Germany, Albania and Romania. Activities outside
North America have, to date, been exploratory in nature and are conducted through our wholly owned
subsidiary, Forest Qil International Corporation. In addition, we conduct marketing and trading activities
in Canada through Producers Marketing Ltd. (ProMark), a subsidiary of Canadian Forest.




For financial information relating to our geographic and operational segments, see Note 12 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

All of our proved oil and gas reserves and producing properties are located in North America. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and for the years then ended, the composition of our reserves and
production was as follows:

Estimated Proved Reserves Production for the
at December 31, years ended December 31,
2001 2000 2001 2060
BCFE % BCFE % BCFE % BCFE %
Offshore Gulf of Mexico . . .. 402 26% 501  36% 94 55% 101 55%
Onshore Gulf Coast . ...... 222 14 218 16 15 9 14 8
Alaska . ................ 413 27 175 13 21 12 17 9
Western United States. . . ... 298 19 310 22 23 13 29 16
Canada ................ 211 14 176 13 19 11 21 12

1546 100% 1380 100% 172 100% 182 100%

In 2001, as part of our effort to reposition our property portfolio, we completed property sales for a
total of $153 million. These sales included the sale of 50% of our interest in properties in the South Marsh
Island and Vermilion areas in the central Gulf of Mexico to Unocal Corporation in the fourth quarter of
2001 for adjusted cash proceeds of approximately $118 million. Unocal will operate the jointly owned
properties, working with Forest to exploit and explore these properties and other leases within a defined
area of mutual interest in the Gulf of Mexico.

In 2002, we plan to dedicate almost half of our planned capital spending to development of our
Redoubt Shoal discovery in Cook Inlet, Alaska, which is not expected to produce until late 2002. We expect
that our 2001 divestitures, combined with our efforts to transition our portfolio to focus on longer-lived
assets, will cause our overall 2002 production levels to decrease compared to 2001 levels. Commencing in
2003, our goal is to achieve a more optimal balance in our production portfolio between Alaska, the Gulf
of Mexico, Canada and the lower 48 states in the U.S.

Exploration and Production Activities

During 2001, we drilled or participated in a total of 120 wells of which 108 were exploration and 12
were development, including 111 working interest wells and 9 wells drilled under farmouts or in which we
retained an overriding royalty or back-in interest. Gur 2001 drilling program achieved an 86% success rate.
At December 31, 2001, we held interests in approximately 1,102 net oil and gas wells in the United States
and Canada. Our operations are conducted through our business units described below.

Offshore Gulf of Mexico. Our offshore operations are comprised of interests in the Gulf of Mexico.
In 2001, the offshore Gulf of Mexico was Forest’s leading business unit for oil and gas production revenue,
contributing approximately $435 million in oil and gas sales revenue from production of 94 BCFE or 258
MMCFE per day. At December 31, 2001, this business unit accounted for 26% of our total estimated
proved reserves. Forest participated in drilling 46 wells in the offshore Gulf of Mexico during 2001, of
which 38 wells were completed. During the fourth quarter of 2001 we sold 50% of our interest in
properties in the South Marsh Island and Vermilion areas to Unocal and also entered into a joint
exploration agreement with Unocal in these areas. Unocal took over operation of the joint properties on
January 1, 2002.

Onshore Gulf Coast. Our Onshore Gulf Coast business unit includes interests in properties located
in Texas and the Gulf Coast of Louisiana. In 2001, this business unit contributed $62 million in oil and gas




sales revenue from production of 15 BCFE. In 2001, average production from Onshore Gulf Coast was 41
MMCEFE per day. At December 31, 2001, this business unit accounted for 14% of our total estimated
proved reserves. In 2001 Forest participated in drilling’ 12 wells, of which 11 were completed.

Alaska. Our Alaska operations are located primarily in the Cook Inlet area, consisting of production
from McArthur River Field, West McArthur River Unit and Trading Bay Field. Development drilling,
pipeline installation and facility construction are underway at our Redoubt Shoal discovery. In 2001, the
Alaskan business unit contributed approximately $82 million in oil and gas sales revenue from production
of 21 BCFE. Average production from Alaska in 2001 was 58 MMCEFE per day. At December 31, 2001,
27% of our total estimated proved reserves were in Alaska. In 2001, Forest participated in drilling 11 wells
in Alaska, all of which were successfully completed. In 2002, we have dedicated almost half of our capital
budget to the development of the Redoubt Shoal Field. In 2003, we are targeting Alaska to contribute a
greater proportion of our oil and gas production.

Western. United States. Our Western business unit is comprised primarily of our interests in
Oklahoma, Utah, Wyoming and West Texas. In 2001, the Western business unit contributed $78 million in
oil and gas sales revenue from production of 23 BCFE, an average of approximately 63 MMCFE per day.
The Western business unit accounted for 19% our estimated proved reserves at December 31, 2001. In
2001, the Western Business unit participated in drilling 27 wells, of which 26 were completed.

Canada. Our Canadian operations include interests in the Plains region in Alberta, the Foothills
region of Alberta and British Columbia, and the Northwest Territories. In 2001, our Canadian operations
contributed approximately $57 million in oil and gas sales revenue from production of 19 BCFE. Average
production was 52 MMCFE per day in 2001. At December 31, 2001, the Canadian business unit accounted
for 14% of Forest’s total estimated proved reserves. During 2001, the Canadian business unit participated
in drilling 20 wells and completed 15 wells.

International. Forest evaluates oil and gas opportunities in countries outside North America. We
currently hold concessions in South Africa, Gabon, Switzerland, Germany, Albania, Italy, Romania and
Thailand. To date, Forest has not recorded any proved reserves related to its international concessions. In
2001, we recorded impairments of approximately $18 million related to international projects, consisting
primarily of $10 million related to drilling an unsuccessful well in Albania. The book value of these
international interests at December 31, 2001 represents approximately 3% of our total assets.

In 2001, we began commercialization efforts for the Ibhubesi gas discovery, located offshore South
Africa. We are currently negotiating with several potential customers for the sale of natural gas from the
Ibhubesi discovery. Even though the discovery well tested 190 MCFE per day, we do not expect to record
any reserves for the Ibhubesi discovery until we have entered into gas sales agreements. We have dedicated
considerable resources to the exploration of properties in South Africa.

Foreign oil and natural gas operations are subject to certain risks, such as nationalization,
confiscation, terrorism, renegotiation of existing contracts and currency fluctuations. Forest monitors the
political, regulatory and economic developments in any foreign countries in which we operate; however, we
cannot assure you that these measures will adequately address all of these risks.

Merger with Forcenergy Inc

On December 7, 2000, Forest completed a merger with Forcenergy Inc (Forcenergy). Pursuant to the
terms of the merger agreement, Forcenergy stockholders received 0.8 of a Forest common share for each
share of Forcenergy common stock they owned and 34.307 Forest common shares for each $1,000 stated
value amount of Forcenergy preferred stock. In addition, each warrant to purchase Forcenergy common
stock was exchanged for a warrant to purchase 0.8 shares of Forest common stock. The merger was
accounted for under the pooling of interests method of accounting.




In conjunction with the merger with Forcenergy, Forest effected a 1-for-2 reverse stock split. Unless
otherwise indicated, all share and per share amounts included herein give retroactive effect to this reverse
stock split.

Sales and Markets

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of our total revenue in 2001 or 2000.

Oil and gas operations. Forest’s U.S. production is generally sold at the wellhead to oil and natural
gas purchasing companies in the areas where it is produced. Liquids are typically sold under short-term
contracts at prices based upon posted field prices. Natural gas in the United States is generally sold month
to month on the spot market using published indices.

Currently, nearly all of our U.S. natural gas is sold at the wellhead at spot market prices. The term
“spot market” as used herein refers to contracts with a term of six months or less or contracts which call
for a redetermination of sales prices every six months or sooner. We believe that the loss of one or more of
our current natural gas spot purchasers should not have a material adverse effect on Forest’s business in
the United States because any individual spot purchaser could be readily replaced by another spot
purchaser who would pay approximately the same sales price.

QOur Alaskan oil production, which represented approximately 12% of our total 2001 production, is
sold primarily to one purchaser. The contract with this purchaser runs through December 31, 2002 and is
renewed automatically from year to year thereafter until terminated by either party upon sixty days prior
written notice.

In Canada, liquids are typically sold under short-term contracts at prices based upon posted prices at
Alberta pipeline and processing hubs netted back to the field. Canadian Forest’s natural gas production is
sold either through the ProMark Netback Pool which is operated by ProMark, the marketing subsidiary of
Canadian Forest, or into the spot market. Canadian Forest sold approximately 63% of its natural gas
production through the ProMark Netback Pool in 2001.

From time to time we enter into energy swaps and collars to hedge the price of spot market volumes

against price fluctuations. For more details about our hedging activities, see Part II, Item 7a, “—
Commodity Price Risk.”

In December 2001, one of our purchasers, Enron Corp. and certain of its subsidiaries (Enron), filed
for protection under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. We do not believe that this event will have a
material adverse effect on our business; however, during the fourth quarter of 2001, we fully reserved our
Enron-related assets. In this respect, we incurred a charge of approximately $8.3 million to reserve for
100% of the accounts receivable for physical sales of natural gas to Enron and recorded an impairment of
approximately $2.5 million representing 100% of the derivative asset value for contracts where Enron was
the counterparty.

Marketing and trading activities. 'The ProMark Netback Pool matches major end users with providers
of gas supply through arranged transportation channels, and uses a netback pricing mechanism to establish
the wellhead price paid to producers. Under this netback arrangement, producers receive the blended
market price less related transportation and other direct costs. ProMark charges a marketing fee to the
pool participant producers for marketing and administering the gas supply pool.

The ProMark Netback Pool gas sales in 2001 averaged 82 MMCEF per day, of which Canadian Forest
supplied approximately 32 MMCF per day or 39%. Approximately 19% of the volumes sold in the
ProMark Netback Pool in 2001 were sold at fixed prices. The remainder of the volumes sold were priced in
a variety of ways, including prices based on published indices.

In addition to operating the ProMark Netback Pool, ProMark provides other marketing services for
other producers and consumers of natural gas. ProMark manages long-term gas supply contracts for




industrial customers and provides full-service purchasing, accounting and gas nomination services for both
producers and customers on a fee-for-services basis. ProMark follows procedures to immediately match its
gas purchase and sales commitments with offsetting gas purchase or sales, so there is not a risk from a
trading book perspective. We are, however, exposed to credit risk in that there exists the possibility that the
counterparties to agreements will fail to perform their contractual obligations. The credit of counterparties
is evaluated and letters of credit or parent guarantees are obtained when considered necessary to minimize
credit risk.

Competition

The oil and natural gas industry is intensely competitive. Competition is particularly intense in the
acquisition of prospective oil and natural gas properties and oil and gas reserves. Forest’s competitive
position depends on our geological, geophysical and engineering expertise, our financial resources, our
ability to develop properties and our ability to select, acquire and develop proved reserves, We compete
with a substantial number of other companies including many companies with larger technical staffs and
greater financial and operational resources. Many such companies not only engage in the acquisition,
exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas reserves, but also carry on refining
operations, generate electricity and market refined products. We also compete with major and
independent oil and gas companies in the marketing and sale of oil and gas to transporters, distributors
and end users. The oil and natural gas industry competes with other industries supplying energy and fuel to
industrial, commercial and individual consumers. Forest competes with other oil and natural gas
companies in attempting to secure drilling rigs and other equipment necessary for drilling and completion
of wells. Such equipment may be in short supply from time to time. Finally, companies not previously
investing in oil and natural gas may choose to acquire reserves to establish a firm supply or simply as an
investment. Such companies provide competition for Forest.

Forest’s business is affected not only by such competition, but also by general economic developments,
governmental regulations and other factors that affect our ability to market our oil and natural gas
production. The prices of oil and natural gas realized by Forest are highly volatile. The price of oil is
generally dependent on world supply and demand, while the price we receive for our natural gas is tied to
the specific markets in which such gas is sold. Declines in crude oil prices or natural gas prices adversely
impact Forest’s activities. Our financial position and resources may also adversely affect our competitive
position. Lack of available funds or financing alternatives will prevent us from executing our operating
strategy and from deriving the expected benefits therefrom. For further information concerning Forest’s
financial position, see Part II, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, in this Form 10-K.

ProMark also faces significant competition from other gas marketers, some of whom are significantly
larger in size and have greater financial resources than ProMark, Canadian Forest or Forest.

Regulation

United States. Various aspects of our oil and natural gas operations are regulated by administrative
agencies under statutory provisions of the states where such operations are conducted and by certain
agencies of the Federal government for operations on Federal leases. All of the jurisdictions in which we
own or operate producing crude oil and natural gas properties have statutory provisions regulating the
exploration for and production of crude oil and natural gas, including provisions requiring permits for the
drilling of wells and maintaining bonding requirements in order to drill or operate wells and provisions
relating to the location of wells, the method of drilling and casing wells, the surface use and restoration of
properties upon which wells are drilled and the abandonment of wells. Our operations are also subject to
various conservation laws and regulations. These include the regulation of the size of drilling and spacing
units or proration units and the number of wells which may be drilled in an area and the unitization or
pooling of crude oil and natural gas properties. In this regard, some states can order the pooling or




integration of tracts to facilitate exploration while other states rely on voluntary pooling of lands and
leases. In addition, state conservation laws establish maximum rates of production from crude oil and
natural gas wells, generally prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas, and impose certain requirements
regarding the ratability or fair apportionment of production from fields and individual wells.

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) regulates the transportation and sale for resale
of natural gas in interstate commerce under the Natural Gas Act of 1938 (NGA) and the Natural Gas
Policy Act of 1978 (NGPA). In the past, the Federal government has regulated the prices at which oil and
gas could be sold. The Natural Gas Wellhead Decontrol Act of 1989 (the Decontrol Act) removed all NGA
and NGPA price and nonprice controls affecting producers’ wellhead sales of natural gas effective
January 1, 1993. While sales by producers of natural gas, and all sales of crude oil, condensate and natural
gas liquids can currently be made at uncontrolled market prices, Congress could reenact price controls in
the future.

Commencing in April 1992, the FERC issued Order No. 636 and subsequent orders (collectively,
Order No. 636), which require interstate pipelines to provide transportation services separate, or
“unbundled”, from the pipelines’ sales of gas. Also, Order No. 636 requires pipelines to provide
open-access transportation on a basis that is equal for all gas supplies. The courts have largely affirmed the
significant features of Order No. 636 and numerous related orders pertaining to the individual pipelines,
although certain appeals remain pending and the FERC continues to review and modify its open access
regulations. Commencing in February 2000, the FERC issued Order No. 637 and subsequent orders
(collectively, Crder No. 637), which, among other things, (i) lifts the cost-based cap on pipeline
transportation rates in the capacity release market until September 30, 2002, for releases of pipeline
capacity of less than one year, (ii) permits pipelines to charge different maximum cost-based rates for peak
and off-peak times, (iii) encourages auctions for pipeline capacity, (iv) requires pipelines to implement
imbalance management services, and (v) restricts the ability of pipelines to impose penalties for
imbalances, overruns, and non-compliance with operational flow orders.

While any additional FERC action on these matters would affect Forest only indirectly, these changes
are intended to further enhance competition in natural gas markets. We cannot predict what further action
the FERC will take on these matters, nor can we predict whether and to what extent the FERC’s
regulations will survive judicial review and, if so, whether the FERC’s actions will achieve the stated goal of
increased competition in natural gas markets. However, we do not believe that we will be treated
materially differently than other natural gas producers and markets with which and in which we compete.

The Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act (OCSLA) requires that all pipelines operating on or across
the Outer Continental Shelf (the OCS}) provide open-access, non-discriminatory service. Commencing in
April 2000, FERC issued Order No. 639 and subsequent orders (collectively, Crder No. 639), which
imposed certain reporting requirements applicable to “gas service providers” operating on the OCS
concerning their prices and other terms and conditions of service. The purpose of Order No. 639 is to
provide regulators and other interested parties with sufficient information to detect and to remedy
discriminatory conduct by such service providers. FERC has stated that these reporting rules apply to OCS
gatherers and has clarified that they may also apply to other OCS service providers including platform
operators performing dehydration, compression, processing and related services for third parties. The U.S.
District Court recently overturned the FERC’s reporting rules as exceeding its authority under GCSLA.
The FERC has indicated an appeal is likely. We cannot predict whether and to what extent these
regulations might be reinstated, and what effect, if any, they may have on our financial condition or
operations. The rules, if reinstated, may increase the frequency of claims of discriminatory service, may
decrease competition among OCS service providers and may lessen the willingness of OCS gathering
companies to provide service on a discounted basis.

Certain operations that we conduct are on federal oil and gas leases, which are administered by the
Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and the Minerals Management Service (MMS). These leases contain




relatively standardized terms and require compliance with detailed BLM and MMS regulations and orders
pursuant to the OCSLA (which are subject to change by the MMS). Many onshore leases contain
stipulations limiting activities that may be conducted on the lease. The stipulations are unique to particular
geographic areas and may limit the times during which activities on the lease may be conducted, the
manner in which certain activities may be conducted or, in some cases, may ban any surface activity. For
offshore operations, lessees must obtain MMS approval for exploration, development and production
plans prior to the commencement of such operations. In addition to permits required from other agencies
(such as the Coast Guard and the Environmental Protection Agency), lessees must obtain a permit from
the BLM or the MMS, as applicable, prior to the commencement of drilling. Lessees must also comply
with detailed BLM or MMS regulations, as applicable, governing, among other things, engineering and
construction specifications for production facilities, safety procedures, plugging and abandonment of OCS
wells, calculation of royalty payments and the valuation of production for this purpose and removal of
facilities. To cover the various obligations of lessees on the OCS, the MMS generally requires that lessees
post substantial bonds or other acceptable assurances that such obligations will be met. The cost of such
bonds or other surety can be substantial and we can provide no assurance that we can continue to obtain
bonds or other surety in all cases. Under certain circumstances, the BLM or MMS, as applicable, may
require our operations on federal leases to be suspended or terminated. Any such suspension or
termination could materially and adversely affect our financial condition and operations.

In March 2000, the MMS issued a final rule modifying the valuation procedures for the calculation of
royalties owed for crude oil sales. When oil production sales are not in arms-length transactions, the new
royalty calculation will base the valuation of oil production on spot market prices instead of the posted
prices that were previously utilized. We do not believe that this rule will have a material adverse effect on
our operations.

Additional proposals and proceedings that might affect the oil and gas industry are regularly
considered by Congress, states, the FERC and the courts. We cannot predict when or whether any such
proposals may become effective. In the past, the natural gas industry has been heavily regulated. We can
give no assurance that the regulatory approach currently pursued by the FERC will continue indefinitely.
We do not anticipate, however, that compliance with existing federal, state and local laws, rules and
regulations will have a material or significantly adverse effect upon our capital expenditures, earnings or
competitive position. No material portion of Forest’s business is subject to renegotiation of profits or
termination of contracts or subcontracts at the election of the Federal government.

Canada. The oil and natural gas industry in Canada is subject to extensive controls and regulations
imposed by various levels of government. It is not expected that any of these controls or regulations will
affect our operations in a manner materially different than they would affect other oil and gas companies
of similar size. All current legislation is a matter of public record and we are unable to predict what
additional legislation or amendments may be created.

In Canada, oil exports are subject to regulation by the National Energy Board (NEB), an independent
federal regulatory agency. Exports may be made pursuant to export orders with terms not exceeding one
year in the case of light crude, and not exceeding two years in the case of heavy crude. Natural gas
exported from Canada is also subject to regulation by the NEB. Exporters are free to negotiate prices and
other terms with purchasers, provided that the export contracts must continue to meet certain criteria
prescribed by the NEB. Natural gas exports for a term of less than two years must be made pursuant to an
NEB order, or, in the case of exports for a longer duration (to a maximum of 25 years) pursuant to an
export license from the NEB with government of Canada approval.

The provincial governments of Alberta, British Columbia and Saskatchewan also regulate the volume
of natural gas which may be removed from those provinces for consumption elsewhere based on such
factors as reserve availability, transportation arrangements and market considerations.




In addition to federal regulation, each province has legislation and regulations which govern land
tenure, royalties, production rates, environmental protection and other matters. The royalty regime is a
significant factor in the profitability of oil and natural gas production. Royalties payable on production
from lands other than Crown lands are determined by negotiations between the mineral owner and the
lessee. Crown royalties are determined by government regulation and are generally calculated as a
percentage of the value of the gross production, and the rate of royalties payable generally depends in part
on prescribed reference prices, well productivity, geographical location, field discovery date and the type or
quality of the petroleum product produced.

The Petroleum Registry of Alberta is a new initiative of both industry and the Alberta government. Its
purpose is to streamline data transfers between industry and government and industry to industry (i.e.,
partner to partner). The initiative will make use of technology such as the Internet to facilitate the transfer
of data, reports and royalty payments. Implementation is expected to be October 2002.

Concurrent with the implementation of the registry, the government of Alberta will be imposing a new
NGL royalty system for products situated in the residue gas stream. It is the goal of this policy to maintain
royalty neutrality and as such, there should be minimal effect on Canadian Forest’s royalties.

From time to time the governments of Canada, Alberta, British Columbia and Saskatchewan have
established incentive programs which have included royalty rate deductions, royalty holidays and tax
credits for the purpose of encouraging oil and natural gas exploration or enhanced recovery projects. Oil
and natural gas royalty holidays and reductions for specific wells reduce the amount of Crown royalties
paid by Forest to the provincial governments. The trend in recent years has been for provincial
governments to allow such programs to expire without renewal, and consequently few such programs are
currently operative.

In Alberta, certain producers of oil or natural gas are entitled to a credit against the royalties to the
Crown by virtue of the ARTC (Alberta royalty tax credit) program. The credit is determined by applying a
specified rate to a maximum of $2 million CDN of Alberta Crown royalties payable for each producer or
associated group of producers. The specified rate is a function of the Royalty Tax Credit reference price
(RTCRP) which is set quarterly by the Alberta Department of Energy and ranges from 25% to 75%,
depending on oil and gas par prices for the previous calendar quarter. Canadian Forest is eligible for
ARTC credits only on eligible properties acquired and wells drilled after the change of control that
occurred when Canadian Forest was acquired by Forest. Crown royalties on production from producing
properties acquired from corporations claiming maximum entitlement to ARTC will generally not be
eligible.

Canadian Forest has drilled several wells in the Foothills areas, which qualify for the Alberta Deep
Gas Royalty Holiday Program. Wells qualify at a depth drilled in excess of 2500 meters. Canadian Forest is
in receipt of credits from this program and will continue to monitor receipts for the remaining wells.

Regulation in Northwest Territories of Canada. The provincial governments have jurisdiction over the
exploration and development of oil and gas resources in the provinces of Canada and the federal
government has jurisdiction over the exploration and development of oil and gas resources in the Canadian
territories. The Yukon, Northwest Territories and Nunavut governments recently signed a Northern
Cooperation Accord for the purpose of cooperating to seek jurisdiction over the oil and gas resources in
these territories. If jurisdiction over the oil and gas resources in these territories were to be transferred to
the territorial governments, the territorial governments would have the authority to regulate the grant of
drilling permits, the construction of pipelines and other matters affecting oil and gas exploration and
development activities. We are unable to predict whether any transfer of jurisdiction to the territorial
governments would affect our exploration and development activities in the Northwest Territories,
although it is possible that the territorial governments would adopt policies or regulations that could delay
or limit our proposed exploration and development activities, delay or prevent the construction of




pipelines or result in the payment of higher royalties or taxes than would otherwise be the case under the
current federal regulatory framework.

As a result of Canadian Forest’s activity in the Northwest Territories, a large royalty tax credit has
been accumulated to the extent of qualified capital expenditures. This credit can be used to eliminate
royalties on existing and future producing wells.

Canadian Forest’s right to produce oil and gas from its Northwest Territories properties, along with
the production rights of other industry participants in these properties, is subject to finalizing the
commercial discovery licenses and production licenses for the wells to be produced. Until the particulars
for these licenses and the related spacing units are finalized, Canadian Forest’s share of production cannot
be finally determined.

North American Free Trade Agreement. On January 1, 1994 the North American Free Trade
Agreement (NAFTA) among the governments of Canada, the United States and Mexico became effective.
NAFTA carries forward most of the material energy terms contained in the Canada-U.S. Free Trade
Agreement. In the context of energy resources, Canada continues to remain free to determine whether
exports to the United States or Mexico will be allowed provided that any export restrictions do not:
(i) reduce the proportion of energy resource exported relative to domestic use (based upon the proportion
prevailing in the most recent 36-month period), (ii) impose an export price higher than the domestic price,
or (iii) disrupt normal channels of supply. All three countries are prohibited from imposing minimum
export or import price requirements. NAFTA contemplates clearer disciplines on regulators to ensure fair
implementation of any regulatory changes and to minimize disruption of contractual arrangements, which
is important for Canadian natural gas exports.

Environmental Matters. Extensive U.S. federal, state and local laws govern oil and natural gas
operations, regulate the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relate to environmental
protection. Numerous governmental agencies, such as the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(commonly called the EPA) issue regulations to implement and enforce such laws which are often difficult
and costly to comply with and which carry substantial administrative, civil and even criminal penalties for
failure to comply. These laws and regulations may, in certain circumstances, impose “strict liability” for
environmental contamination, rendering a person liable for environmental and natural resource damages
and cleanup costs without regard to negligence or fault on the part of such person. These laws and
regulations may restrict the rate of oil and natural gas production below the rate that would otherwise exist
or even prohibit exploration or production activities in sensitive areas. This regulatory burden on the oil
and natural gas industry increases its cost of doing business and consequently affects its profitability.
Changes in existing environmental laws or the adoption of new environmental laws have the potential to
adversely affect our operations or earnings, as well as the oil and gas exploration and production industry
in general. While we believe that we are in substantial compliance with current applicable environmental
laws and regulations and that continued compliance with existing requirements will not have a material
adverse impact on us, we cannot give any assurance that we will not be adversely affected in the future.

The Oil Pollution Act of 1990 (OPA) and regulations thereunder impose a variety of requirements on
“responsible parties” related to the prevention of oil spills and liability for damages resulting from such
spills in U.S. waters. A “responsible party” includes the owner or operator of a pipeline, vessel or onshore
facility, or the lessee or permittee of the area in which an offshore facility is located. OPA assigns liability
to each responsible party for oil cleanup costs and a variety of public and private damages from oil spills.
OPA also requires operators of offshore OCS facilities to demonstrate to the MMS that they possess at
Jeast $35 million in financial resources that are available to pay for costs that may be incurred in
responding to an oil spill. This financial responsibility amount can increase up to a maximum of
$150 million if the MMS determines that a greater amount is justified based on specific risks posed by the
operations or if the worst case oil-spill discharge volume possible at a facility exceeds applicable threshold
volumes established by the MMS under rules it issued in August 1998 pertaining to offshore facilities




covered by OPA. While liability limits apply in some circumstances, a party cannot take advantage of
liability limits if the spill was caused by gross negligence or willful misconduct or resulted from violation of
a federal safety, construction or operating regulation. If the party fails to report a spill or to cooperate fully
in the cleanup, liability limits likewise do not apply. Even if applicable, the liability limits for offshore
facilities require the responsible party to pay all removal costs, plus up to $75 million in other damages.
Few defenses exist to the liability imposed by OPA.

The U.S. Water Pollution Control Act (commonly called the Clean Water Act) imposes restrictions
and strict controls regarding the discharge of produced waters and other oil and gas wastes in navigable
waters. Many state discharge regulations and the federal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
generally prohibit the discharge of produced water and sand, drilling fluids, drill cuttings and certain other
substances related to the oil and gas industry into coastal waters. Although the costs to comply with these
zero discharge mandates under federal or state law may be significant, the entire industry is expected to
experience similar costs and we believe that these costs will not have a material adverse impact on our
financial condition and operations.

Forest generates wastes, including hazardous wastes, that are subject to the federal Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended (commonly referred to as RCRA) and comparable state
statutes. The EPA and various state agencies have limited the approved methods of disposal for certain
hazardous and nonhazardous wastes. Moreover, certain oil and gas exploration and production wastes
generated by Forest that are currently exempt from treatment as “hazardous waste” may in the future be
designated as “hazardous wastes” and therefore be subject to more rigorous and costly operating and
disposal requirements.

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, as amended
(commonly called CERCLA but also known as “Superfund”) and comparable state laws impose liability
without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct, on certain classes of persons who are
considered to be responsible for the release of a “hazardous substance” into the environment. These
persons include the current owner and operator of the disposal site or sites where the release occurred and
companies that transported or disposed or arranged for the transport or disposal of the hazardous
substances that have been released at the site. Persons who are or were responsible for releases of
hazardous substances under CERCLA may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning
up the hazardous substances that have been released into the environment and for damages to natural
resources, and it is not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims for
personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by the release of hazardous substances or other
pollutants into the environment. In the ordinary course of Forest’s operations, substances may be
generated that fall within the definition of “hazardous substances.” Although we have utilized operating
and disposal practices that were standard in the industry at the time, hydrocarbons or other wastes may
have been disposed of or released on or under the properties owned or leased by us or on or under other
locations where such wastes have been taken for disposal. Moreover, we may own or operate properties
that in the past were operated by third parties whose operations were not under our control. Those
properties and any wastes that may have been disposed or released on them may be subject to CERCLA,
RCRA, and analogous state laws, and we potentially could be required to remediate such properties.

In Canada, the oil and natural gas industry is currently subject to environmental regulation pursuant
to provincial and federal legislation. Environmental legislation provides for restrictions and prohibitions on
releases or emissions of various substances produced or utilized in association with certain oil and gas
industry operations. In addition, legislation requires that well and facility sites be abandoned and
reclaimed to the satisfaction of provincial authorities. A breach of such legislation may result in the
imposition of fines and penalties.

In Alberta, environmental compliance has been governed by the Alberta Environmental Protection
and Enhancement Act (AEPEA) since September 1, 1993. In addition to replacing a variety of older
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statutes which related to environmental matters, AEPEA also imposes certain environmental
responsibilities on oil and natural gas operators in Alberta and in certain instances also imposes greater
penalties for violations.

British Columbia’s Environmental Assessment Act became effective June 30, 1995. This legislation
rolls the previous processes for the review of major energy projects into a single environmental assessment
process which contemplates public participation in the environmental review.

Although we maintain insurance against some, but not all, of the risks described above, including
insuring the costs of clean-up operations, public liability and physical damage, there is no assurance that
such insurance will be adequate to fully cover all such costs or that such insurance will continue to be
available in the future or that such insurance will be available at premium levels that justify its purchase.
The occurrence of a significant environmental-related event not fully insured or indemnified against could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operations.

We have established guidelines to be followed to comply with U.S. and Canadian environmental laws
and regulations. In addition, we have designated a compliance officer whose responsibility is to monitor
regulatory requirements and their impacts on Forest and to implement appropriate compliance
procedures. We also employ an environmental director whose responsibilities include causing our
operations to be carried out in accordance with applicable environmental guidelines and implementing
adequate safety precautions. Although we maintain pollution insurance against the costs of clean-up
operations, public liability and physical damage, there is no assurance that such insurance will be adequate
to cover all such costs or that such insurance will continue to be available in the future.

We believe that it is reasonably likely that the trend in environmental legislation and regulation will
continue toward stricter standards. We are committed to meeting our responsibilities to protect the
environment wherever we operate and anticipate making increased expenditures as a result of increasingly
stringent laws relating to the protection of the environment.

Forward-Looking Statements

The information in this Form 10-K may contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All
statements, other than statements of historical facts, that address activities, events, outcomes and other
matters that Forest plans, expects, intends, assumes, believes, budgets, predicts, forecasts, projects,
estimates or anticipates (and other similar expressions) will, should or may occur in the future are forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on management’s current belief, based on
currently available information, as to the outcome and timing of future events. When considering forward-
looking statements, you should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary statements in this
Form 10-K, in Part II, Item 7 under the caption “—Risk Factors.”

Forward-looking statements appear in a number of places and include statements with respect to,
among other things:

o estimates of our future natural gas and liquids production, including estimates of any increases in
oil and gas production;

@

planned capital expenditures and availability of capital resources to fund capital expenditures;
o our outlook on oil and gas prices;

° estimates of our oil and gas reserves;

° the impact of political and regulatory developments;

 our future financial condition or results of operations and our future revenues and expenses; and
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e our business strategy and other plans and objectives for future operations.

We caution you that these forward-looking statements are subject to all of the risks and uncertainties,
many of which are beyond our control, incident to the exploration for and development, production and
sale of oil and gas. These risks include, but are not limited to, commodity price volatility, inflation, lack of
availability of goods and services, environmental risks, drilling and other operating risks, regulatory
changes, the uncertainty inherent in estimating proved oil and natural gas reserves and in projecting future
rates of production and timing of development expenditures and the other risks described in Part II, ltem 7
under the caption “—Risk Factors.” The financial results of our foreign operations are also subject to
currency exchange rate risks.

Reserve engineering is a subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and
natural gas that cannot be measured in an exact way. The accuracy of any reserve estimate depends on the
quality of available data and the interpretation of such data by our reservoir engineers. As a result,
estimates made by different engineers often vary from one another. In addition, the results of drilling,
testing and production activities may justify revisions of estimates that were made previously. If significant,
such revisions could change the schedule of any further production and development drilling. Accordingly,
reserve estimates are generally different from the quantities of oil and natural gas that are ultimately
recovered.

Should one or more of the risks or uncertainties described above or elsewhere in this Form 10-K
occur, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results and plans could differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements express or implied, included in this Form 10-K and attributable to
Forest are qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. This cautionary statement should also be
considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements that Forest or
persons acting on its behalf may issue. Forest does not undertake any obligation to update any forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances afier the date of filing this Form 10-K with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, except as required by law.
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Item 2. Properties

Forest’s principal reserves and producing properties are located in the United States in the Gulf of
Mexico, Louisiana, Texas, Oklahoma, Utah, Wyoming and Alaska and in Canada in Alberta and the
Northwest Territories.

Reserves

Information regarding Forest’s proved and proved developed oil and gas reserves and the
standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows and changes therein is included in Note 13 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Since January 1, 2001 we have not filed any oil or natural gas reserve estimates or included any such
estimates in reports to any Federal or foreign governmental authority or agency, other than the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Department of Energy (DOE). There were no differences
between the reserve estimates included in the SEC report, the DOE report and those included herein,
except for production and additions and deletions due to the difference in the “as of” dates of such reserve
estimates.

Production

The following table shows our net liquids and natural gas production for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999:

Net Natural Gas and
Liquids Preduction

2001 2000 1999

United States:

Natural Gas (MMCF) ......... . ... ... . ... .. 97,400 102,320 49,279

Liquids (MBBLS) .. ...... . ... ... ... .... 9,239 9,891 2,712
Canada:

Natural Gas (MMCF) ........ ... ............ 10,994 11,522 12,423

Liquids (MBBLS) . ... ... ... . 1,361 1,536 1,685
Total MMCFE) . ....... ... ... . . . 171,994 182,404 88,084

13




Average Sales Prices

The following table sets forth the average sales prices per MCF of natural gas and per barrel of liquids
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999:

United States Canada
2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

Average Sales Prices:
Natural Gas:

Production (MMCF) ............. ... ... .. 97,400 102,320 49,279 10,994 11,522 12,423
Sales price received (per MCF) . ............. § 433 402 231 256 264 1.61
Effects of energy swaps (per MCF){(1) ......... 18 (.67) .03 — (44 (07
Average sales price (per MCF) .. ............. $ 451 335 234 256 220 154
Liquids:
Oil and condensate:
Production (MBBLS) . .. ................... 8,264 8,775 1,985 955 1,110 1,254
Sales price received (per BBL) ............... § 2392 2874 17.84 2296 2854 1698
Effects of energy swaps (per BBL)(1) . ......... 62 (5.65) (3.11) — (5.60) (2.37)
Average sales price (per BBL) . .............. $ 2454 2309 1473 2296 2294 1461
Natural gas liquids:
Production (MBBLS) . ..................... 975 1,116 727 406 426 431
Average sales price (per BBL) ............... § 1581 1872 995 1717 18.19 10.70
Total liquids production (MBBLS) .............. 9,239 9,891 2712 1,361 1,536 1,685
Average sales price (per BBL) . . ............... § 2362 2259 1345 2123 2162 1361

(1) Energy swaps were transacted to hedge the price of spot market volumes against price fluctuations.
Certain of these arrangements have been designated as cash flow hedges. Hedged natural gas volumes
were 42,870 MMCE, 53,078 MMCF and 32,481 MMCEF for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively. Hedged oil and condensate volumes were 3,742,500 barrels, 6,953,000 barrels
and 2,075,000 barrels for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The aggregate net realized gains (losses)
under our hedging arrangements were $22,781,000, $(129,091,000) and $(8,684,000), respectively, for
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 and were accounted for as increases (reductions)
to oil and gas sales. We also realized a gain of $11,556,000 in 2001 related to derivative instruments
that did not qualify as cash flow hedges under the provisions of SFAS No. 133 adopted January 1,
2001. This gain was recorded as other income rather than oil and gas revenue and has not been given
effect in the average sales prices shown above.
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Productive Wells

The following summarizes our total gross and net productive wells at December 31, 2001:

Productive Wells(1)
United States Canada

Gross(2)
GaS . o o 640 209
Ol ..o e 1,664 270
Totals(3) . . .. . 2,304 479

Net(4)

GaS . o v e e 302 119
L 1 493 188
307

Totals . .. o 795

(1) Productive wells are producing wells and wells capable of production, including injection wells, salt
water disposal wells, service wells and wells that are shut-in.

(2) The number of gross wells is the total number of wells in which a working interest is owned.

(3) Includes 22 dual completions in the United States and six dual completions in Canada. Dual
completions are counted as one well. If either completion is an oil completion, the well is classified as
an oil well.

(4) The number of net wells is the sum of the fractional working interests owned in gross wells expressed
as whole numbers and fractions thereof.
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Developed and Undeveloped Acreage

Forest held acreage as set forth below at December 31, 2001 and 2000. A majority of the developed
acreage is subject to mortgage liens securing our bank indebtedness. See Part I, Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note 3 of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Developed Acreage(1)

Undeveloped Acreage(2)

Gross(3) Net(4) Gross(3) Net(4)

United States:
Offshore . . .. ... e 644,866 336,881 251,237 171,714
Onshore . ... v v e 67,918 30,344 6,879 3,387
WESEETTL . . v o e i e e e 261,949 51,570 155,012 91,424
Alaska . ... e 282,099 13,686 167,912 161,529
1,256,832 432,481 581,040 428,054
Canada . ...... ... . e e 262,387 126,240 1,637,479 735,448

International:
South Africa . ... ... . i — — 10,266,226 7,186,358
Gabon . ..o e — — 2,409,276 2,409,276
Switzerland . . ... .. ... .. . — — 1,850,000 925,000
Germany ........... .. — — 830,554 830,554
Albania ... ... .. — — 855,123 320,671
Italy . ... — — 1,618,080 1,299,007
Romania. ... ...t —_ — 766,899 766,899
Thailand . . . ... ... .. . — —_ 241,122 241,122
—_ — 18,837,280 13,978,887
Total acreage at December 32,2001 . .............. 1,519,219 558,721 21,055,799 15,142,389
United States . .. ... oo e 1,415,298 485,205 1,117,079 476,090
Canada . ..... .. .. .. . e 262,684 134,015 1,508,266 610,702
International . .......... ... .. ... .. . ... .. .. .. — — 25,182,879 17,956,082
Total acreage at December 31, 2000. .............. 1,677,982 619,220 27,808,224 19,042,874

(1) Developed acres are those acres which are spaced or assigned to productive wells.

(2) Undeveloped acres are considered to be those acres on which wells have not been drilled or
completed to a point that would permit the production of commercial quantities of oil or natural gas,
regardless of whether such acreage contains proved reserves. It should not be confused with undrilled

acreage held by production under the terms of a lease.

(3) A gross acre is an acre in which a working interest is owned. The number of gross acres is the total

number of acres in which a working interest is owned.

(4) A net acre is deemed to exist when the sum of the fractional ownership working interests in gross
acres equals one. The number of net acres is the sum of the fractional working interests owned in

gross acres expressed as whole numbers and fractions thereof.

Undeveloped acreage decreased at December 31, 2001 compared to December 31, 2000 primarily as a
result of the sale of interests in Tunisia and Australia. Approximately 1% of our net undeveloped acreage
at December 31, 2001 is held under leases that have terms that will expire in 2002, if not extended by
production activities, and approximately 1.5% of net undeveloped acreage will expire in 2003 if not

extended by production.
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Drilling Activity

Forest drilled gross and net exploratory and development wells during the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 as set forth below. This information does not include wells drilled under farmout
agreements or any other wells in which we do not have a working interest.

United States Canada International
2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000

Gross Exploratory Wells:

Dry(1) «oovi 8 12 3 3 6 5 2 2

Productive(2) .......... ... .. 69 50 13 15 13 1 2 —
7 @ 16 18 19 6 ¢ 2

Net Exploratory Wells:(3)

Dry(1) v oo 49 63 17 14 20 24 10 14

Productive(2) ........ ... ... . .. 383 265 57 89 76 1.0 14 —
$82 08 74 103 96 34 24 14

Gross Development Wells:

Dry(1) .. o 2 - — 2 - = = —

PrOdUCtiVe(Z) ......................... __§ —16_ _6 _— : _8 — —
0o 16 6 2 — &8 = =

Net Development Wells:(3)

Dry(1) .ot 13 —  — e —

Productive(2) ........ .. ... . . i 54 89 32 07 — 19 — —
67 89 32 07 — 19 —

|
|

(1) A dry well (hole) is a well found to be incapable of producing either oil or natural gas in sufficient
quantities to justify completion as an oil or natural gas well.

(2) Productive wells are producing wells and wells capable of production, including wells that are shut-in.
(3) The number of net wells is the sum of the fractional working interests owned in gross wells expressed

as whole numbers and fractions thereof.

At December 31, 2001 Forest and its subsidiaries had 22 exploratory wells (11.0 net) and 14
development wells (6.5 net) that were in the process of being drilled.
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Delivery Commitments

At December 31, 2001, the ProMark Netback Pool had entered into fixed price contracts to sell
natural gas at the following quantities and weighted average prices:

Natural Gas

Annual Sales Price

Volume (BCF) per MCF
2002 5.5 $2.74 CDN
2003 L e 5.5 $2.85 CDN
2004 . e 55 $2.95 CDN
2005 L e e 5.5 $3.07 CDN
2006 .. e e 55 +  $3.19 CDN
2007 . e e 5.5 $3.31 CDN
2008 . e e 55 $3.44 CDN
2009 e e 3.6 $4.17 CDN
2000 . e 1.7 $6.46 CDN
200 e 0.8 $6.82 CDN

Canadian Forest, as one of the producers in the ProMark Netback Pool, is obligated to deliver a
portion of this gas. In 2001 Canadian Forest supplied 39% of the gas for the ProMark Netback Pool.
Approximately 63% of Canadian Forest’s natural gas production was sold through the ProMark Netback
Pool in 2001.

In addition to its commitments to the ProMark Netback Pool, Canadian Forest has term contracts to
sell .6 BCF of natural gas annually from 2002 through 2006 at prices increasing ratably from $3.68 CDN
per MCF in 2002 to $4.27 CDN per MCF in 2006.

There were no long-term delivery commitments in the United States as of December 31, 2001.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Forest, in the ordinary course of business, is a party to various legal actions. While we believe that the
amount of any ultimate potential loss would not be material to our consolidated financial position, the
ultimate outcome of these proceedings is inherently difficult to predict with any certainty. In the event of
an unfavorable outcome, the ultimate potential loss could have an adverse effect on our results of
operations and cash flow in the reporting periods in which any such actions are resolved.

On December 7, 2000, Forest completed a merger transaction with Forcenergy Inc, in which Forest
was the surviving company. Prior to the merger with Forest, Forcenergy was a party to various claims and
routine litigation arising in the normal course of its business. On March 21, 1999, Forcenergy and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Forcenergy Resources Inc., filed voluntarily under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code. Forcenergy continued to operate as a debtor-in-possession subject to the bankruptcy
court’s supervision and orders until its plan of reorganization (which was confirmed on January 19, 2000)
became effective on February 15, 2000. Obligations of Forcenergy arising out of activities prior to
March 21, 1999, the bankruptcy petition date, will be discharged in accordance with the plan of
reorganization. Pursuant to the plan of reorganization, Forcenergy established a reserve of Forcenergy
common stock to be distributed to claimants in the event their disputed claims are ultimately determined
by the bankruptcy court to be allowed claims. The reserved shares of Forcenergy common stock became
Forest common shares in accordance with the terms of the merger. If the shares in the reserve are
inadequate to cover all allowed claims, then under the Forcenergy plan of reorganization Forest would be
required to issue additional shares of common stock to the holders of these claims. Forest currently
believes, however, that the shares in the reserve are adequate to cover all remaining disputed claims that
may be subsequently allowed. We cannot give assurances, however, that this will be the case.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of our shareholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001.
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Item 4A. Executive Officers of Forest

The following persons were serving as executive officers of Forest as of February 28, 2002.

Years with
Name @ Forest Office(1)
Robert S. Boswell ... ... ... 52 16 Chairman of the Board since March 2000. Chief

Executive Officer since December 1995 and
President from November 1993 to March 2000. Chief
Financial Officer from May 1991 until December
1995. Member of the Board of Directors since 1986.
Chairman of the Nominating Committee and
member of the Executive Committee. Director of
C.E. Franklin Ltd.

H. Craig Clark ... ........ 45 1 President and Chief Operating Officer since September
5, 2001. Prior to joining Forest, from May 2000 to
September 2001 Mr. Clark served as Executive Vice
President—U.S. Operations for Apache Corporation,
a publicly traded independent energy company.
Mr. Clark was employed by Apache Corporation in
Houston, Texas, from 1989 to 2001. He served
in various management positions during this
period, including Vice  President—Southern
Exploration & Production/North American Gas
Marketing, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer—
Producers Energy Marketing, LLC, an affiliate of
Apache Corporation, and Vice President—North
American Exploration & Production.

David H. Keyte .......... 45 14 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
since November 1997. Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer from December 1995 to November
1997. Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
from December 1993 until December 1995.

Gary E. Carlson ... ....... 55 1 Senior Vice President—Alaska since December 2000.
Vice President—Alaska Division of Forcenergy Inc
from March 1997 to December 2000. General
Manager for Health, Environment and Safety
Support Worldwide of Unocal from 1995 to 1996.

Forest D. Dorn........... 47 24 Senior Vice President—Corporate Services since
December 2000. Senior Vice President—Gulf Coast
Region from November 1997 to December 2000. Vice
President—Gulf Coast Region from August 1996 to
October 1997. Vice President and General Business
Manager from December 1993 to August 1996.

James W. Knell. ... .. .. ... 51 14 Senior Vice President—Gulf Coast Region since
December 2000. Vice President—Gulf Coast
Offshore from May 1999 to December 2000. Gulf
Coast Offshore Business Unit Manager from March
1998 to May 1999. Gulif Coast Region Business Unit
Manager from November 1997 to March 1998.
Corporate Drilling and Production Manager from
December 1991 to November 1997.
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Years with
Name Age Forest Office(1)

Neal A, Stanley .......... 54 5 Senior Vice President—Western Region since
November 1997. Vice President—Western Region
from August 1996 to November 1997. Prior thereto
President of Teton Oil and Gas Corporation.

Newton W. Wilson IIT . . . . .. 51 1 Senior Vice President—Legal Affairs and Corporate
Secretary since December 2000. Consultant to
Mariner Energy LLC from 1999 to December 2000.
Consultant to Sterling City Capital from 1998 to
1999. President and Chief Operations Officer of
Union Texas Americas Ltd. from 1996 to 1998.
General Counsel, Vice President Administration and
Secretary of Union Texas Petroleum Holdings Inc.
from 1993 to 1996.

Cecil N. Colwell . ......... 51 13 Vice President—Drilling since December 2000. Prior
thereto, Drilling Manager since November 1988,
Joan C. Sonnen .......... 48 12 Vice President—Controller, Chief Accounting Officer

and Assistant Secretary since December 2000. Vice
President—Controller and Corporate Secretary from
May 1999 to December 2000. Corporate Secretary
from March 1999 to December 2000. Controller since
December 1993.

Donald H. Stevens . .. ..... 49 4 Vice President—Capital Markets and Treasurer since
November 1998. Vice President—Capital Markets
and Strategic Initiatives from August 1997 to
November 1998. Prior thereto Vice President—
Corporate Relations and Capital Markets of Barrett
Resources Corporation from 1992 to 1997. Director
of FieldPoint Petroleum Corporation.

Matthew A. Wurtzbacher ... 39 3 Vice President—Corporate Planning and Development
since December 2000. Manager—OQOperational
Planning and Corporate Engineering from June 1998
to December 2000. Financial Engineering Manager
of Schlumberger GeoQuest, Reservoir Technologies
and Oilfield Services, North America from 1996 to
1998. Senior Reservoir Engineer of Enron Qil and
Gas Company from 1993 to 1996.

(1) The term of office of each officer is one year from the date of his or her clection immediately
following the last annual meeting of shareholders and until the officer’s respective successor has been
elected and qualified or until his or her earlier death, resignation or removal from office whichever
occurs first. Each of the named persons has held the office indicated since the last annual meeting of
Forest’s shareholders, except for Mr. Clark as noted above.
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PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stoeckholder Matters

Commen Stock

Forest has one class of common shares outstanding, its common stock, par value $.10 per share
(Common Stock). Forest’s Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
“FST”. On February 28, 2002, there were 46,823,509 outstanding shares of our Common Stock held by
1,825 holders of record. The number of holders does not include the shareholders for whom shares are
held in a “nominee” or “street’” name.

The table below reflects the high and low closing sales prices of the Common Stock on the New York
Stock Exchange composite tape during each fiscal quarterly period of 2000 and 2001. On December 7,
2000, Forest completed a 1-for-2 reverse stock split, and periods prior to December 2000 have been
restated giving retroactive effect to this stock split. There were no dividends declared on the Common
Stock in 2000 or 2001. On February 28, 2002, the closing price of Forest Common Stock was $25.69.

High Low
2000: TFirst QUArer ..o vttt e e $ 2525 §$ 1438
Second Quarter . ....... .t e 34.50 20.25
Third Quarter. . . ... o e 38.00 23.50
Fourth Quarter. . ... ... i e 37.50 24.75
2001: First Quarter .. ... ...t e 36.00 29.00
Second Quarter . ....... ... e 37.29 27.96
Third Quarter. . . ... .. e 29.65 23.45
Fourth Quarter. . ........ . i 28.58 24.11

Warrants

Forest has three series of warrants outstanding, which are each quoted on the NASDAQ Bulletin
Board. At February 28, 2002, Forest had outstanding 232,517 warrants expiring on February 15, 2004 (the
2004 Warrants), which were held by 509 holders of record. Each 2004 Warrant entitles the holder to
purchase 0.8 shares of Common Stock for $16.67, or an equivalent per share price of $20.84. On
February 28, 2002, the closing price of the 2004 Warrants was $13.75. The table below reflects the high and
low closing sales prices of the 2004 Warrants on the NASDAQ Bulletin Board during each fiscal quarter in
2000 and 2001.

High Low
2000:  First QUATter . . .o i i it e $ NA § NA
Second Quarter .. ......... . e e 9.00 0.25
Third Quarter. . . ... .. e 13.00 5.00
Fourth Quarter. .. ... ... ... .. .. ... 15.50 8.00
2001:  First Quarter ... ... ... 15.00 10.13
Second Quarter . ......... .. .. e 16.00 9.70
Third Quarter. . . ... ... e 11.00 6.70
Fourth Quarter . . ....... . .. .. . . . .. 12.10 8.00

At February 28, 2002, Forest also had outstanding 232,922 warrants expiring on February 15, 2005 (the
2005 Warrants), which were held by 510 holders of record. Each 2005 Warrant entitles the holder to
purchase 0.8 shares of Common Stock for $20.83, or an equivalent per share price of $26.04. On
February 28, 2002, the closing price of the 2005 Warrants was $6.90. The table below reflects the high and
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low closing sales prices of the 2005 Warrants on the NASDAQ Bulletin Board during each fiscal quarter in

2000 and 2001.

High Low
2000:  First QUarter ... .o e $ N/A § N/A
Second Quarter . ........ .. ... 6.00 0.03
Third Quarter. . ... ... . 8.50 3.00
Fourth Quarter. . . ... ... .. .. .. . . . 14.00 6.00
2001:  First QUArter . . ...ttt i e e 13.63 10.75
Second Quarter ... .. ... . e 15.25 9.63
Third Quarter. . . ... .. . . 9.75 7.00
Fourth Quarter. . ... ... ... ... ... ...... e 9.00 7.06

At February 28, 2002, Forest also had outstanding 1,773,885 subscription warrants (the Subscription
Warrants), which were held by 13 holders of record. The Subscription Warrants are detachable and expire
on March 20, 2010 or earlier upon notice of expiration by Forest if, after March 20, 2004, the market price
of the Common Stock has exceeded the exercise price for a period of 30 consecutive trading days. Each
Subscription Warrant entitles the holder to purchase 0.8 shares of Common Stock for $10.00, or an
equivalent per share price of $12.50. On February 28, 2002, the closing price of the Subscription Warrants
was $15.00. The table below reflects the high and low closing sales prices of the Subscription Warrants on
the NASDAQ Bulletin Board during each fiscal quarter in 2000 and 2001.

High Low
2000:  First QUAITET . .\ v vt i e e e e $ NA § NA
Second Quarter . ...... ... .. e N/A N/A
Third Quarter. . . ... ... . . 17.13 12.00
Fourth Quarter. ... ... ... .. . . . 23.50 12.00
2001: First Quarter .. ... ..o 23.50 17.50
Second Quarter . ......... ... . .. . 21.50 17.00
Third Quarter. . . . ... ... . . . . . . 16.75 13.80
Fourth Quarter. . ........ ... .. . . . . . 14.75 13.25

During 2001, Forest issued 706 shares of common stock pursuant to the exercise of warrants. The
warrants were originally issued by Forcenergy in connection with its plan of reorganization under the
Bankruptcy Code, and were converted into warrants to purchase Forest common stock pursuant to our
merger with Forcenergy on December 7, 2000. The issuance of Forest common stock upon exercise of the
warrants is exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to section 1145 of the
Bankruptcy Code.

Dividend Restrictions

Forest’s present or future ability to pay dividends is restricted by (i) the provisions of the New York
Business Corporation Law, (ii) certain restrictive provisions in the Indentures executed in connection with
Canadian Forest’s 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due September 15, 2007, which are guaranteed by
Forest, Forest’s 102% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2006, Forest’s 8% Senior Notes due 2008 and
Forest’s 8% Senior Notes due 2011, and (iii) our credit facilities dated as of December 7, 2000 with
JPMorgan Chase and J.P. Morgan Bank Canada.

Forest has not paid dividends on its Common Stock during the past five years and does not anticipate
that it will do so in the foreseeable future. The future payment of dividends, if any, on the Common Stock
is within the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend on Forest’s earnings, capital
requirements, financial condition and other relevant factors. There is no assurance that Forest will pay any
dividends. For further information regarding our equity securities and our ability to pay dividends on our
Common Stock, see Notes 3 and 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 6. Selected Fimancial and Operating Data

The following table sets forth selected financial and operating data of Forest as of and for each of the
years in the five-year period ended December 31, 2001. This data should be read in conjunction with
Part II, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

On December 7, 2000, Forest completed its merger with Forcenergy. The merger was accounted for as
a pooling of interests for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Under this method of accounting,
the recorded assets and liabilities of Forest and Forcenergy were carried forward to the combined company
at their recorded amounts, and income of the combined company includes income of Forest and
Forcenergy for the entire year. The results of operations of Forcenergy prior to December 31, 1999, the
effective date of its reorganization and fresh-start reporting, are not included in the financial statements of
the combined company.
Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts, Volumes and Prices)

FINANCIAL DATA

Revenue:

Marketing and processing . ............. $ 303,527 288,133 166,283 151,079 184,399

Oilandgassales..................... 714,852 624,925 193,841 173,701 158,450

Total revenue .. ... .. ... ... . ... $1,018,379 913,058 360,124 324,780 342,849
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary items . ... § 109,354 130,608 19,641 (197,786) 3,089
Net earnings (loss) ... ... ... ......... $ 103,743 130,608 19,043 (191,590) (9,270)
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding. . .. ... ... L 47,674 46,330 23,971 20,455 16,834
Net earnings (loss) attributable to common

stock ... § 103,743 126,440 19,043 (191,590)  (9,459)

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (loss) aftributable to common stock

before extraordinary items .. .......... $ 2.30 2.73 .82 (9.67) 17
Extraordinary items. . . ................ (.12) — (.03) .30 (.73)
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stock  $ 2.18 2.73 .79 (9.37) (.56)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stock

before extraordinary items ............ $ 222 2.64 81 (9.67) 18
Extraordinary items. . . ................ (.11) — (.02) .30 (.72)
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stock  $ 2.11 2.64 79 (9.37) (.54)

Total assets . ........ ... ... .. ... $1,796,369 1,752,378 1,474,689 759,736 647,782
Longtermdebt . ............. ... ... ... § 594,178 622,234 686,153 505,450 254,760
Other long-term liabilities . . ... ........... $ 37,950 31,241 25,112 24,267 51,787
Shareholders’ equity . . ......... ... ... ... $ 923,943 858,966 558,984 168,991 261,827
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Item 6. Selected Financial and Operating Data (Continued)

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts, Volumes and Prices)

QPERATING DATA
Annual production:

Gas (MMCF) ... .. ... ... ... 108,394 113,842 61,702 62,310 49,035

Liquids (MBBLS) ................... 10,600 11,427 4,397 4,269 3,207
Average price received:

Gas (per MCF) . ...... ... .. ... .. ... $ 432 3.23 2.18 1.98 2.10

Liquids (per Barrel) .. ................ $ 2331 22.46 13.51 11.79 17.29
Capital expenditures, net of asset sales . ... .. $ 416,316 372,688 104,612 461,452 147,130
Proved Reserves:

Gas MMCF) ........... ... 828,549 844,058 825,623 564,264 378,315

Liquids (MBBLS) . .................. 119,549 89,241 97,086 35,069 24,636

Standardized measure of discounted future net
cash flows relating to proved oil and gas
TESEIVES « v v v ot e ettt e e $1,346,653 3,694,431 1,419,022 522,831 439,570

Prices used in calculating present value at end
of year proved reserves:
Gas (per MCF)

United States . . ..o, $ 2.66 9.52 2.37 2.03 2.55

Canada ............. .. .. ... .... $ 2.06 6.11 1.66 1.38 1.30
Liquids (per Barrel):

United States . .. .................. $  17.01 23.84 22.38 9.51 16.73

Canada ......... ... .. .. ....... $ 1505 23.59 19.98 8.91 13.71




Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

All expectations, forecasts, assumptions and beliefs about our future financial results, condition,
operations, strategic plans and performance are forward-looking statements, as described in more detail in
Part I, Item 1, under the heading “Forward-Looking Statements” of this Form 10-K. Our actual results
may differ materially because of a number of risks and uncertainties. Some of these risks and uncertainties
are detailed under the heading “—Risk Factors” below and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Historical
statements made herein are accurate only as of the date of filing of this Form 10-K with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and may be relied upon only as of that date.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with Forest’s Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

On December 7, 2000, Forest completed its merger with Forcenergy Inc (Forcenergy). The merger
was accounted for as a pooling of interests for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Under this
method of accounting, the recorded assets and liabilities of Forest and Forcenergy were carried forward to
the combined company at their recorded amounts, and income of the combined company includes income
of Forest and Forcenergy for the entire year. The results of operations of Forcenergy prior to
December 31, 1999, the effective date of its reorganization and fresh-start reporting, are not included in
the financial statements of the combined company.

Results of Operations

Net earnings for 2001 were $103,743,000 compared to net earnings of $130,608,000 in 2000. The
decrease in earnings was due primarily to higher deferred income tax expense in 2001. In 2000, the income
tax expense was lower due to a credit for previously unrecognized deferred tax assets. Earnings before
income taxes were higher in 2001 than in 2000 as a result of higher product prices, offset partially by higher
operating expense and lower production volumes.

Net earnings for 2000 were $130,608,000 compared to net earnings of $19,043,000 in 1999. The
improvement in earnings was due primarily to higher production volumes resulting from the merger with
Forcenergy and higher product prices.

Marketing and processing revenue increased by 5% to $303,527,000 in 2001 from $288,133,000 in 2000
and the related marketing and processing expense increased by 5% to $300,062,000 in 2001 from
$285,039,000 in the previous year. The earnings contribution reported for marketing and processing
activities increased 12% to $3,465,000 in 2001 from $3,094,000 in 2000. The increase is due primarily to an
increase in volumes marketed by ProMark in 2001 as well as higher margins on arrangements where the
margin was determined on a percentage of natural gas prices.

Marketing and processing revenue increased by 73% to $288,133,000 in 2000 from $166,283,000 in
1999, and the related marketing and processing expense increased by 75% to $285,039,000 in 2000 from
$162,617,000 in the previous year. The gross margin for marketing and processing activities decreased to
$3,094,000 in 2000 from $3,666,000 in 1999. The decrease in the margin was due primarily to lower margins
on processing activities in the United States.

Oil and gas sales revenue increased by 14% to $714,852,000 in 2001 from $624,925,000 in 2000 due
primarily to higher oil and gas prices, offset partially by lower production volumes. The average sales prices
received for natural gas and liquids in 2001 increased 33% and 4%, respectively, compared to the average
sales prices received in 2000. Production volumes for natural gas and liquids on an MCFE basis decreased
6% in 2001 compared to 2000. Volume decreases were attributable primarily to normal declines and
property sales affecting Gulf of Mexico properties.

Oil and gas sales revenue increased by 222% to $624,925,000 in 2000 from $193,841,000 in 1999 due
primarily to higher production volumes resulting from the merger with Forcenergy and higher oil and gas
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prices. The average sales prices received for natural gas and liquids in 2000 increased 48% and 66%,
respectively, compared to the average sales prices received in 1999. Production volumes on an MMCFE
basis were 107% higher in 2000 compared to 1999.

Oil and gas production expense includes costs incurred to operate and maintain wells and related
equipment and facilities, including product transportation costs, production taxes and ad valorem taxes. In
2001 production expense increased 33% to $186,250,000 from $140,218,000 in 2000. On an MCFE basis,
production expense was $1.08 per MCFE in 2001 compared to $.77 in 2000. The increase in the per-unit
rate in 2001 was due primarily to increased workover activity, platform refurbishment in the Gulf of
Mexico, pipeline maintenance in Alaska, general service cost increases, higher transportation costs and
higher ad valorem tax expense.

Qil and gas production expense increased 185% to $140,218,000 in 2000 from $49,145,000 in 1999. On
an equivalent basis, production expense was $.77 per MCFE in 2000 compared to $.56 per MCFE in 1999.
The increases in expense and per-unit rates were primarily the result of higher operating costs associated
with Forcenergy properties, higher production taxes and increased workover activity.
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and 1999 were as follows:

Production volumes and weighted average sales prices for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Natural Gas
Production (MMCF):
United States . . ..t e 97,400 102,320 49,279
Canada. . . ... ... e PR 10,994 11,522 12,423
Total . .o 108,394 113,842 61,702
Sales price received (per MCF) . . ... ... . i $§ 416 3.87 217
Effects of energy swaps and collars (per MCF)(1) ................ .16 (.64) 0.01
Average sales price(per MCF) .. ...... ... ... .. ... .... $ 432 3.23 2.18
Liquids
Oil and condensate:
Production (MBBLS) . . ... ... 9,219 9,885 3,239
Sales price received (per BBL) .. ... ... ... oo $ 23.82 28.72 1751
Effects of energy swaps and collars (per BBL)(1) ... .............. S5 (5.65) (2.82)
Average sales price (per BBL) .. ... ... ... . L. $ 24.37 23.07  14.69
Natural gas liquids:
Production (MBBLS) . ... ... 1,381 1,542 1,158
Average sales price (per BBL). .. ... .. ... . o $ 16.21 18.57  10.23
Total Liquids Production (MBBLS):
United States . . . .o 9,239 9,891 2,712
Canada . . ... ... .. e 1,361 1,536 1,685
Total . ..o 10,600 11,427 4,397
Average sales price (per BBL). .. ............ . ... . L $ 2331 2246 1351
Total Production
Production volumes (MMCFE) . . . ... ... ... ... ... . ... .. ... .. 171,994 182,404 88,084
Average sales price (per MCFE) . . ... ... .. o o il $ 415 3.43 220

(1) Energy swaps were transacted to hedge the price of spot market volumes against price fluctuations.

Certain of the arrangements have been designated as cash flow hedges. Hedged natural gas volumes
were 42,870 MMCE, 53,078 MMCEF and 32,481 MMCF in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Hedged
oil and condensate volumes were 3,742,500 barrels, 6,953,000 barrels and 2,075,000 barrels in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively. The aggregate net realized gains (losses) under energy swap agreements
were $22,781,000, $(129,091,000) and $(8,684,000), respectively, for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 and were accounted for as increases (reductions) to oil and gas sales. We also
realized a gain of $11,556,000 in 2001 related to derivative instruments that did not qualify as cash
flow hedges under the provisions of SFAS No. 133 adopted January 1, 2001. This gain was recorded as
other income rather than oil and gas revenue and has not been given effect in the average sales prices
shown below.

General and administrative expense decreased 14% to $30,514,000 in 2001 compared to $35,580,000

in 2000. General and administrative expense was $.18 per MCFE and $.20 per MCFE in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in the rate for the year was due primarily to operating synergies associated with
the merger with Forcenergy, as well as higher recoveries of overhead related to exploration and
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development activities and production operations. General and administrative expense increased 132% to
$35,580,000 in 2000 compared to $15,362,000 in 1999. General and administrative expense was $.20 per
MCEFE and $.17 per MCFE in 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in the rate was due primarily to
general and administrative expenses related to Forcenergy operations in 2000.

Total overhead costs decreased 8% in 2001 compared to 2000 and increased 134% in 2000 compared
to 1999. The decrease in 2001 was due to operating synergies and higher overhead recoveries; the increase
in 2000 compared to 1999 was due primarily to addition of Forcenergy operations. The amount of
overhead capitalized increased to 41% of total overhead in 2001 compared to 37% in 2000 and 1999. The
increase in the capitalization rate in 2001 was due primarily to an increase in the relative numbers of
exploration and development personnel compared to administrative personnel following the merger with
Forcenergy. The following table summarizes total overhead costs incurred during the periods:

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)
Overhead costs capitalized. . . .................... $21,474 21,086 8,873
General and administrative costs expensed(1) . ... ... .. 30,514 35,580 15,362
Total overhead costs . ........ ... ... oo, $51,988 56,666 24,235
Number of salaried employees at end of year . .. ... ... 352 349 207

(1) Includes $1,376,000, $1,386,000 and $2,059,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, related to
marketing and processing operations.

Merger and seismic licensing costs of $9,836,000 in 2001 and $31,577,000 in 2000 include banking,
legal, accounting, printing and other consulting costs related to the merger; severance paid to terminated
employees; expenses for office closures, employee relocation, data migration and systems integration; and
costs of transferring seismic licenses from Forcenergy to Forest.

Depreciation and depletion expense increased 6% to $226,033,000 in 2001 from $212,480,000 in 2000
due primarily to a higher per-unit rate. The depletion rate increased to $1.29 per MCFE in 2001 compared
to $1.15 per MCFE in 2000, due primarily to capital spending and higher estimates for future development
costs during the first nine months of 2001, offset partially by a reduction in future development costs,
credits to the full cost pool for property sales and increases in estimated proved reserves in the last three
months of 2001. Depreciation and depletion expense increased 141% to $212,480,000 in 2000 from
$88,190,000 in 1999 due primarily to increased production as a result of the merger with Forcenergy and an
increased per-unit rate. The depletion rate increased to $1.15 per MCFE in 2000 compared to $.96 per
MCEFE in 1999, due primarily to higher finding costs in 2000 and higher estimated future development
costs in the inflationary environment for oilfield services at that time.

At December 31, Forest had the following costs of undeveloped properties which were not subject to
depletion:

United
States Canada International Total
(In Thousands)
2001 . . e $ 86,460 48,577 51,577 186,614
2000 . . $132,307 33,524 40,432 206,763
1999 . $114,545 39,580 21,493 175,618

The decrease during 2001 compared to 2000 was due primarily to wells in progress in Alaska at
December 31, 2000 for which reserves were recorded in 2001, offset partially by costs incurred for wells in
progress and lease acquisitions in Canada and exploration activities in South Africa. The increase in 2000
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compared to 1999 was due primarily to wells in progress in Alaska and exploration activities in South
Africa, offset partially by surrendered and abandoned leases in the United States and Canada.

In 2001, Forest recorded an impairment of international oil and gas properties of $18,072,000. Of this
amount, approximately $10,000,000 related to an unsuccessful well in Albania. Impairments were also
recognized in other countries based on expiration of certain concessions and evaluations of the viability of
projects in those countries. In 2000, Forest recorded an impairment of $5,876,000 related to unsuccessful
exploratory wells drilled in Switzerland and Thailand.

Writedowns of the full cost pools in the United States and Canada may be required if oil and gas
prices decline, undeveloped property values decrease, estimated proved reserve volumes are revised
downward or estimated future development costs in the respective full cost pools increase such that the
book values of our properties exceed the discounted future net cash flows from the reserves attributable to
each of the cost pools. Additional impairments of international oil and gas properties may also be required
in the future.

There was an impairment of contract value of $3,239,000 in 2001 related to the netback pool
administered by ProMark. The unamortized portion of the contract values recorded in the 1996 acquisition
of ProMark were reduced to more closely match the remaining cash flows.

Other expense of $9,592,000 in 2001 consisted primarily of a reserve of $8,305,000 for 100% of
receivables due from Enron for physical sales of natural gas. Other income of $1,757,000 in 2000 consisted
primarily of interest income earned by Forcenergy. Other income of $2,629,000 in 1999 consisted primarily
of a gain from the sale of gas processing facilities in Canada.

Interest expense of $49,910,000 in 2001 decreased $10,359,000 or 17% compared to 2000 due to lower
average debt balances, lower rates on variable and fixed rate debt and a net gain of $1,163,000 recognized
under interest rate swap agreements. Interest expense of $60,269,000 in 2000 increased $19,396,000 or 47%
compared to 1999 due primarily to the merger with Forcenergy.

Foreign currency translation gains {losses) were $(7,872,000) in 2001, $(7,102,000) in 2000 and
$10,561,000 in 1999. Foreign currency translation gains and losses relate to translation by Canadian Forest
of the 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes, and are attributable to the increases and decreases in the value of
the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar during the period. The value of the Canadian dollar was
$.6279 per $1.00 U.S. at December 31, 2001 compared to $.6672 at December 31, 2000, $.6924 at
December 31, 1999 and $.6535 at December 31, 1998. Forest is required to recognize the noncash foreign
currency translation gains or losses related to the 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes because the debt is
denominated in U.S. dollars and the functional currency of Canadian Forest is the Canadian dollar.

The realized gain on oil and gas derivative instruments of $11,556,000 in 2001 was due primarily to oil
and natural gas prices being, in the aggregate, lower than the prices established in the related derivative
contracts. This gain was partially offset by a $2,255,000 writeoff of 100% of the asset value of derivative
contracts where Enron was the counterparty. There was a net unrealized gain on derivative instruments of
$376,000 in 2001 representing primarily the excess of the fair value over the intrinsic value of options
designated as hedges. The realized and unrealized gains on derivative instruments were recorded
separately in non-operating income since the instruments do not qualify as hedges under the provisions of
SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which Forest adopted on
January 1, 2001.

Forest recorded current income tax expense of $2,365,000 in 2001 compared to current tax expense of
$1,666,000 in 2000 and a current tax benefit of $2,921,000 in 1999. The increases in 2001 and 2000 are due
primarily to increased pre-tax profitability and higher state tax provisions. Deferred income tax expense
was $77,212,000 in 2001 compared to $4,400,000 in 2000 and $407,000 in 1999. The increase in 2001 was
due primarily to increased pre-tax profitability and to the recognition in 2000 of the future income tax
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benefit of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets. The increase in 2000 compared to 1999 was due
primarily to increased pre-tax profitability.

The extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt of $5,611,000 in 2001 resulted from the redemption
of $129,152,000 and $8,820,000 principal amount of 8%% and 10%% Senior Subordinated Notes,
respectively, at 102.764% and 106% of par value, respectively. The extraordinary loss on extinguishment of
debt of $598,000 in 1999 resulted from redemption of $8,631,000 remaining principal amount of 11%%
Senior Subordinated Notes at 103.792% of par value.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measure of a company’s ability to access cash. We have historically addressed our
long-term liquidity requirements through the issuance of debt and equity securities, when market
conditions permit, and through the use of bank credit facilities and cash provided by operating activities.
The prices we receive for future oil and natural gas production and the level of production have significant
impacts on operating cash flows. We are unable to predict with any degree of certainty the prices we will
receive for our future oil and gas production.

We continue to examine alternative sources of long-term capital, including bank borrowings, the
issuance of debt instruments, the sale of common stock, preferred stock or other equity securities of
Forest, the issuance of net profits interests, sales of non-strategic assets, prospects and technical
information, and joint venture financing. Availability of these sources of capital and, therefore, our ability
to execute our operating strategy will depend upon a number of factors, some of which are beyond our
control.

Securities Issued. In June 2001, we issued $200,000,000 principal amount of 8% Senior Notes due
2008 at par for proceeds of $199,500,000 (net of related issuance costs). The net proceeds were used to
repay a portion of our U.S. credit facility.

In October 2001, we issued an additional $65,000,000 principal amount of 8% Senior Notes due 2008
at 99% of par for proceeds of $63,550,000 (net of related issuance costs). The net proceeds were initially
used to repay a portion of our U.S. credit facility. Subsequently, borrowings were made under the U.S.
credit facility to repurchase approximately $58,000,000 principal amount of our 8%% Senior Subordinated
Notes.

In December 2001, we issued $160,000,000 principal amount of 8% Senior Notes due 2011 at par for
proceeds of $157,500,000 (net of related issuance costs). The net proceeds were used to repay a portion of
our U.S. credit facility, to repurchase approximately $8,820,000 principal amount of our 10%% Senior
Subordinated Notes and for general corporate purposes.

Securities Repurchased. During 2001, we repurchased 2,074,300 shares of our common stock at an
average price of $26.90 per share, $129,152,000 principal amount of 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes and
$8.,820,000 principal amount of 10¥2% Senior Subordinated Notes.

Bank Credit Facilities. 'We have credit facilities totalling $600,000,000, consisting of a $500,000,000
U.S. credit facility through a syndicate of banks led by JPMorgan Chase and a $100,000,000 Canadian
credit facility through a syndicate of banks led by J.P. Morgan Bank Canada. Under the credit facilities,
Forest, Canadian Forest and certain of their subsidiaries are subject to certain covenants and financial
tests, including restrictions or requirements with respect to dividends, additional debt, liens, asset sales,
investments, hedging activities, mergers and reporting responsibilities. As of December 31, 2001, under the
most restrictive of these covenants and financial tests, our available borrowing amount under the credit
facilities was estimated to be approximately $385,000,000. If the rating on our bank credit facilities is
downgraded, the available borrowing amount under the credit facilities would be determined by a
borrowing base subject to semi-annual re-determination. Reduction of the borrowing base could result in a
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substantial reduction in the available borrowing amount. In addition, we could be obligated to pledge
additional assets as collateral.

Our U.S. credit facility is secured by a lien on, and a security interest in, a portion of our proved oil
and gas properties and related assets in the United States and Canada, a pledge of 65% of the capital stock
of Canadian Forest and its parent, 3189503 Canada Ltd., and a pledge of 100% of the capital stock of
Forest Pipeline Company.

At December 31, 2001, the outstanding borrowings under the U.S. credit facility were $19,000,000 and
there were no outstanding borrowings under the Canadian Forest credit facility. At March 1, 2002, the
outstanding borrowings under the U.S. credit facility were $61,000,000 with an average effective interest
rate of 3.123%, and there were outstanding borrowings under the Canadian credit facility of $1,246,000
with an average effective interest rate of 3.875%. At March 1, 2002, Forest had used the credit facilities for
letters of credit in the amount of $4,523,000 U.S. and $3,112,000 CDN.

Credit Ratings. Currently, our credit facilities, our senior subordinated notes and our senior notes are
separately rated by two ratings agencies, Moody’s Investor Services and Standard & Poor’s (S&P’s). In
addition, S&Ps has assigned Forest a general corporate credit rating. From time to time, our assigned
credit ratings may change. In assigning ratings, the rating agencies evaluate a number of factors, such as
our industry segment, volatility of our industry segment, the geographical mix and diversity of our asset
portfolio, the allocation of properties and exploration and drilling activities among short-lived and longer-
lived properties, the need and ability to replace reserves, our cost structure, our debt and capital structure,
and our general financial condition and prospects.

Cur credit facilities include conditions that are linked to our credit rating. The fees and interest rates
on our commitments and loans, as well as our collateral obligations, are affected by our credit rating. For
example, if our credit rating is downgraded from its current level, we will be subject to tests to determine
our borrowing base and the amount of credit that is available. The agreements governing our senior
subordinated notes and our senior notes do not include adverse triggers that are tied to our credit rating.
The terms of our senior notes include provisions that will allow us greater flexibility if the credit ratings
improve to investment grade and other tests have been satistied. In this event, we would have no further
obligation to comply with certain restrictive covenants contained in the indentures governing the senior
notes. Our ability to raise funds and the costs of such financing activities may be affected by our credit
rating at the time any such activities are conducted.

Contractual Obligations. The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of
December 31, 2001:

2002 2003-2004 2004-2006 After 2006 Total
(In Thousands)

Long-term debt(1) . ................. $ — — 107,180 488,248 595,428
Operating leases(2) . ................ 3,379 6,093 4,431 — 13,903
Unconditional purchase obligations(3)(4) . 21,105 30,340 27,465 3,078 81,988
Obligations related to international

concessions(5) ... ... 2,000 5,313 2,250 1,875 11,438
Total contractual obligations . . ......... $ 26,484 41,746 141,326 493,201 702,757

(1) Long-term debt consists of our U.S. and Canadian lines of credit, subordinated notes and senior
subordinated notes. For a more detail discussion of our long-term debt, see [tem 7a, Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Interest Rate Risk and Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(2) Consists primarily of leases for office space.
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(3) Consists primarily of firm commitments for gathering, processing and pipeline capacity. Commitments
in areas that have secondary markets may be mitigated in the future if firm capacities are no longer
required. ProMark, on behalf of the ProMark Netback Pool, has firm commitments for pipeline
capacity of approximately $56,712,000. Canadian Forest, as one of the producers in the ProMark
Netback Pool, supplied 39% of the gas to the ProMark Netback Pool in 2001.

(4) Purchase commitments associated with ProMark’s trading activities were excluded from the table as
all purchase commitments are immediately offset by sales commitments. For a more detailed
discussion of ProMark’s trading activities, see Part II, Item 7a, Qualitative and Quantitative
Disclosures About Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk and Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(5) Consists of unconditional obligations under work programs in Albania and Gabon. In addition to
these unconditional obligations, we are committed to make $55,589,000 of capital expenditures over
the next six years pursuant to the terms of other foreign concessions. Nonperformance under any
concession agreement could result in the loss of concession rights.

Forest also makes delay rental payments to lessors during the primary terms of oil and gas leases to
delay drilling of wells, usually for one year. Although we are not obligated to make such payments,
discontinuing them would result in the loss of the oil and gas lease. Our total maximum commitment under
these leases, through 2012, totaled $4,912,000 as of December 31, 2001.

Commercial Commitments.

Guarantees. We hold a 30% equity interest in an affiliate that owns and operates a petroleum
pipeline system within the Cook Inlet area of Alaska. In our capacity as a shareholder, we have provided a
guarantee for our proportionate interest of the obligations of this affiliate under a credit facility. At
December 31, 2001, the maximum amount available under the credit facility was $24,000,000 and
$10,500,000 was outstanding. Our proportionate share of the amount outstanding was $3,150,000. This
credit facility will expire in January 2003. In addition, in our capacity as a shareholder, we may have other
contingent obligations in the event the affiliate experiences cash deficiencies or is unable to meet its
indemnification requirements or its obligations to the operator of the pipeline. We are unable to predict or
quantify the amount of these obligations.

Surety Bonds. 1In the ordinary course of our business and operations, we are required to post surety
bonds from time to time with third parties, including governmental agencies. As of February 28, 2002, we
have obtained surety bonds from a number of insurance and bonding institutions covering certain of our
operations in the United States and Canada in the aggregate amount of approximately $24,200,000. In
connection with their administration of offshore leases in the Gulf of Mexico, the MMS annually evaluates
each lessee’s plugging and abandonment liabilities. The MMS reviews this information and applies certain
financial tests including, but not limited to, current asset and net worth tests. The MMS determines
whether each lessee is financially capable of paying the estimated costs of such plugging and abandonment
liabilities. We annually provide the MMS with our financial information. If we do not satisfy the MMS
requirements, we could be required to post supplemental bonds. In the past, Forest has not been required
to post supplemental bonds; however, we cannot assure you that we will satisfy the financial tests and
remain on the list of MMS lessees exempt from the supplemental bonding requirements. We cannot
predict or quantify the amount of any such supplemental bonds or the annual premiums related thereto,
but the amount could be substantial.

Working Capital. Working capital is the amount by which current assets exceed current liabilities. It is
normal for Forest to report working capital deficits at the end of a period. Such working capital deficits are
principally the result of accounts payable for capitalized exploration and development costs. Settlement of
these payables is funded by cash flow from operations or, if necessary, by drawdowns on long-term bank
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credit facilities. For cash management purposes, drawdowns on the credit facilities are not made until the
due dates of the payables.

Forest had a working capital deficit of approximately $38,333,000 at December 31, 2001 compared to
a deficit of approximately $1,109,000 at Becember 31, 2000. The increase in the deficit was due primarily
to a decrease in accounts receivable as a result of lower oil and gas prices, offset partially by an increase in
other short-term assets, primarily derivative instruments.

Cash Flow. Historically, one of our primary sources of capital has been net cash provided by
operating activities. Net cash provided by operating activities was $498,013,000 in 2001 compared to
$306,532,000 in 2000. The increase was due primarily to higher production revenue as a result of higher oil
and gas prices. Cash used for investing activities in 2001 was $421,196,000 compared to $376,061,000 in
2000. The increase was due primarily to increased exploration and development activity in 2001, offset
partially by an increase in property sales in 2001, Net cash used by financing activities in 2001 was
$81,196,000 compared to $16,172,000 in 2000. The 2001 period included net repayments of bank debt of
$313,560,000, cash used for redemption of 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes of $131,933,000, cash used for
the purchase of treasury stock of $55,803,000, and net cash inflows of $420,550,000 from the issuance of
two series of 8% Senior Notes. The 2000 period included net repayments of bank debt of $52,006,000 and
net proceeds of $38,800,000 from Forcenergy’s issuance of 14% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock.

Net cash provided by operating activities increased to $306,532,000 in 2000 compared to $110,513,000
in 1999. The 2000 period included higher production revenue due to higher oil and gas prices and
increased production due primarily to the merger with Forcenergy. We used $376,061,000 for investing
activities in 2000 compared to $105,646,000 in 1999. The increase was due primarily to higher exploration
and development expenditures in 2000 as a result of the merger with Forcenergy. Cash used by financing
activities in 2000 was $16,172,000 compared to cash provided of $91,367,000 in 1999. The 2000 period
included net repayments of bank debt of $52,006,000, offset partially by net proceeds of $38,800,000 from
Forcenergy’s issuance of 14% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock. The 1999 period included net
proceeds of $98,561,000 from the issuance of the 10%4% Notes, net proceeds of $131,188,000 from the
issuance of common stock, and $96,506,000 of cash attributable to fresh start accounting of Forcenergy,
offset by net repayments of bank borrowings of $225,765,000.
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Capital Expenditures. Expenditures for property acquisition, exploration and development for the
past three years were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)

Property acquisition costs:
Proved properties . . .. ... ... . ... $ 31 20,213 1,043
Undeveloped properties .. .................. — 2,486 1,200

31 22,699 2,243

Exploration costs:

Direct COStS . .. v v v 214,194 126,367 61,978
Overhead capitalized ................... ... 9,820 7,013 3,789

224,014 133,380 65,767

Development costs:

Direct costs . .. .. i 328,962 217,886 49,259
Overhead capitalized . .................. ... 11,654 14,073 5,084
340,616 231,959 54,343

Basis of Forcenergy properties acquired .......... — — 510,000
Total capital expenditures . . ................... $564,661 388,038 632,353

Forest’s anticipated expenditures for exploration and development in 2002 are approximately
$250,000,000 to $350,000,000. We intend to meet our 2002 capital expenditure financing requirements
using cash flows generated by operations, sales of non-strategic assets and, if necessary, borrowings under
existing lines of credit. There can be no assurance, however, that we will have access to sufficient capital to
meet these capital requirements. The planned levels of capital expenditures could be reduced if we
experience lower than anticipated net cash provided by operations or develop other needs for liquidity, or
could be increased if we experience increased cash flow or access additional sources of capital.

In addition, while we intend to continue a strategy of acquiring reserves that meet our investment
criteria, no assurance can be given that we can locate or finance any property acquisitions.

Dispositions of Assets. As a part of our ongoing operations, we routinely dispose of non-strategic
assets. Assets with marginal value or which are not consistent with our operating strategy are identified for
sale or trade. At the present time, Forest is offering for sale certain marginal properties in each of our
operating regions.

During 2001, we disposed of properties with estimated proved reserves of approximately 69.8 BCF of
natural gas and 4,868,000 barrels of oil for total proceeds of approximately $152,872,000. Of this amount,
approximately $118,000,000 related to properties located in the offshore Gulf of Mexico area in which we
sold 50% of our interests to Unocal in connection with a strategic joint venture program. During 2000,
Forest disposed of properties with estimated proved reserves of approximately 28.3 BCF of natural gas and
913,000 barrels of oil for total net proceeds of $17,304,000. During 1999, we disposed of properties with
estimated proved reserves of approximately 7.7 BCF of natural gas and 956,000 barrels of oil for total net
proceeds of $8,756,000. Also during 1999, we disposed of gas processing facilities for net proceeds of
$7,174,000 and disposed of a long-term investment for net proceeds of $4,565,000.
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Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements. During 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued four new pronouncements:

Statement 141, Business Combinations, requires that the purchase method of accounting be used to
account for all business combinations and applies to all business combinations initiated or completed after
June 30, 2001. The statement also establishes specific criteria for the recognition of intangible assets
separately from goodwill. The provisions of this statement would be applied if we were to enter into any
future business combination. The adoption of this statement as of July 1, 2001 had no impact on our
historical financial statements.

Statement 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142), requires that goodwill no longer
be amortized but tested for impairment at least annually. Other intangible assets are to be amortized over
their useful lives and reviewed for impairment. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life will not be
amortized until its useful life becomes determinable. The effective date of this statement is January 1,
2002. The impact of the adoption and implementation of SFAS No. 142 on Forest’s financial statements
has not been determined, including whether any transitional impairment losses will be required to be
recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. As of January 1, 2002, we had
unamortized goodwill in the amount of $10,537,000 that will be subject to the transition provisions of
SFAS No. 142. Amortization expense related to goodwill was $720,000 and $765,000 during the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Statement 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (SFAS No. 143) requires entities to record
the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred and a
corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. We will be required to adopt
SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003 using a cumulative effect approach to recognize transition amounts
for asset retirement obligations, asset retirement costs and accumulated depreciation. We currently record
estimated costs of dismantlement, removal, sit> reclamation, and similar activities as part of our provision
for depreciation, depletion, and amortization of oil and gas properties without recording a separate
liability for such amounts. We have not completed our assessment of the impact of SFAS No. 143 on our
financial condition and results of operations, but expect that adoption of the statement will result in
increases in the capitalized costs of our oil and gas properties and in the recognition of additional liabilities
related to asset retirement obligations.

Statement 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144) retains
the fundamental provisions of SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of (SFAS No. 121) for recognizing and measuring impairment losses
while resolving significant implementation issues associated with SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 also
expands the basic provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions, regarding presentation of discontinued operations in the income statement. The scope
for reporting a discontinued operation has been expanded to include a “component” of an entity. A
component comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
entity. It could be a segment, a reporting unit, a consolidated subsidiary, or an asset group.

Forest adopted SFAS No. 144 as of January 1, 2002. Because we have elected the full-cost method of
accounting for oil and gas exploration and development activities, the impairment provisions of
SFAS No. 144 do not apply to our oil and gas assets, which are instead subject to ceiling limitations. For
our non-oil and gas assets, the method of impairment assessment is largely unchanged from SFAS No. 121.
The adoption of SFAS No. 144 is not expected to have an impact on our financial statements.
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Risk Factors

Forest has made in this Form 10-K, and may from time to time otherwise make in other public filings, press
releases and discussions with management, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking
statements include statements, among others, about Forest’s operations, performance and financial results and
condition, as described in more detail in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-K, under the heading “—Forward--
Looking Statements.” Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ
materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Some of these risks and
uncertainties are detailed below and elsewhere in this Form 10-K and in Forest's other public filings, press
releases and discussions with Forest’s management. Forest undertakes no obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements, except as required by law.

In addition to the information set forth elsewhere in this Form 10-K, the following factors should be
carefully considered when evaluating Forest.

Oil and gas price declines and their volatility could adversely affect Forest’s revenue, cash flows and
profitability.  Prices for oil and natural gas fluctuate widely. Forest’s revenues, profitability and future rate
of growth depend substantially upon the prevailing prices of oil and natural gas. Increases and decreases in
prices also affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow
money or raise additional capital. The amount we can borrow from banks may be subject to
redetermination based on changes in prices. In addition, we may have ceiling test writedowns when prices
decline. Lower prices may also reduce the amount of oil and natural gas that Forest can produce
economically. Any substantial or extended decline in the prices of or demand for oil and natural gas would
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We cannot predict future oil and natural gas prices. Factors that can cause price fluctuations include:
» relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil and natural gas;

e market uncertainty;

o the level of consumer product demand;

e weather conditions;

° domestic and foreign governmental regulations;

 the price and availability of alternative fuels;

e political and economic conditions in oil producing countries, particularly those in the Middle East;
e the foreign supply of oil and natural gas;

* the price of oil and gas imports; or

° general economic conditions.

Hedging transactions may limit our potential gains. In order to manage our exposure to price risks in
the marketing of our oil and natural gas, we enter into oil and gas price hedging arrangements with respect
to a portion of our expected production. Our hedges are limited in duration, usually for periods of one year
or less. While intended to reduce the effects of volatile oil and gas prices, such transactions may limit our
potential gains if oil and gas prices were to rise substantially over the price established by the
arrangements. In addition, such transactions may expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain
circumstances, including instances in which:

° our production is less than expected;
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o there is a widening of price differentials between delivery points for our production and the delivery
point assumed in the hedge arrangement;

° the counterparties to our future contracts fail to perform under the contracts; or
° a sudden unexpected event materially impacts oil or natural gas prices.

For example, a subsidiary of Enron Corp. that is a counterparty on several of our derivative contracts
filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in December 2001. We have fully impaired
the $2.5 million value of the related derivative asset at December 31, 2001. We cannot give any assurance
as to whether we will be able to collect any amounts due us on such contracts. In addition, we may continue
to be liable for payments of any amounts which may become due to the counterparty and its affiliates that
are parties to such contracts, regardless of the bankruptcy proceeding.

We cannot assure you that our hedging transactions will reduce the risk or minimize the effect of any
decline in oil or natural gas prices. For further information concerning prices, market conditions and
energy swap and collar agreements, see Part II, Item 7a, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk of this Form 10-K, and Notes 8 and 10 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Certain parties with whom we have long-term and short-term contracts may fail to perform. We have
long-term and short-term contracts, including agreements for the sale of oil and natural gas. The other
parties to these contracts could fail to perform their contractual obligations as a result of circumstances
that are beyond our control. Our ability to enforce these contractual obligations may be adversely affected
by bankruptcy and other creditors’ rights laws. For example, in 2001 we sold natural gas to a subsidiary of
Enron Corp. that filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. This sale was on a
month-to-month basis. We have fully reserved the amounts due to us under the Enron contracts and,
because of the bankruptcy, cannot give any assurance as to whether we will be able to collect the amounts
due.

We may not be able to obtain adequate financing to execute our operating strategy. We have historically
addressed our long-term liquidity needs through the use of bank credit facilities, the issuance of debt and
equity securities and the use of cash provided by operating activities. We continue to examine the following
alternative sources of long-term capital:

e bank borrowings or the issuance of debt securities;

° the issuance of common stock, preferred stock or other equity securities;

° the issuance of nonrecourse production-based financing or net profits interests;
° sales of non-strategic properties;

° sales of prospects and technical information; and

° joint venture financing.

The availability of these sources of capital will depend upon a number of factors, some of which are
beyond our control. These factors include general economic and financial market conditions, oil and
natural gas prices and the value and performance of Forest. We may be unable to execute our operating
strategy if we cannot obtain capital from these sources.

We may not be able to fund our planned capital expenditures. We spend and will continue to spend a
substantial amount of capital for the development, exploration, acquisition and production of oil and
natural gas reserves. Our capital expenditures during 2001, 2000 and 1999 totaled $565 million,
$388 million and $632 million, respectively. We expect our total capital expenditures in 2002 to be at least
$250 million. If low oil and natural gas prices, drilling or production delays, operating difficulties or other
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factors, many of which are beyond our control, cause our revenues and cash flows from operations to
decrease, we may be limited in our ability to spend the capital necessary to complete our drilling and
development program.

In addition, if our borrowing base under our credit facility is redetermined to a lower amount, this
could adversely affect our ability to fund our planned capital expenditures. After utilizing our available
sources of financing, we may be forced to raise additional debt or equity proceeds to fund such
expenditures. We cannot assure you that additional debt or equity financing or cash generated by
operations will be available to meet these requirements.

A curtailment of capital spending could adversely affect our ability to replace production and our
future cash flow from operations.

Estimates of oil and gas reserves are uncertain and inherently imprecise. This Form 10-K contains
estimates of our proved oil and gas reserves and the estimated future net revenues from such reserves.
These estimates are based upon various assumptions, including assumptions required by the Securities and
Exchange Commission relating to oil and gas prices, drilling and operating expenses, capital expenditures,
taxes and availability of funds. The process of estimating oil and gas reserves is complex. Such process
requires significant decisions and assumptions in the evaluation of available geological, geophysical,
engineering and economic data for each reservoir. Therefore, these estimates are inherently imprecise.

Actual future production, oil and gas prices, revenues, taxes, development expenditures, operating
expenses and quantities of recoverable oil and gas reserves most likely will vary from those estimated. Any
significant variance could materially affect the estimated quantities and present value of reserves set forth.
In certain situations, hydrocarbon reservoirs underlying our properties may extend beyond the boundaries
of our own acreage to adjacent acreage owned by others. In this case, our properties may also be
susceptible to hydrocarbon drainage from production by the operators on those adjacent properties. Also,
we may adjust estimates of proved reserves to reflect production history, results of exploration and
development, prevailing oil and gas prices and other factors, many of which are beyond our control. Actual
production, revenue, taxes, development expenditures and operating expenses with respect to our reserves
will likely vary from the estimates used. Such variances may be material.

At December 31, 2001, approximately 39% of our estimated proved reserves were undeveloped
compared to 27% at December 31, 2000. The increase in the percentage of undeveloped reserves is
attributable primarily to our discovery at Redoubt Shoal, Alaska. Recovery of undeveloped reserves
requires significant capital expenditures and successful drilling operations. In estimating our proved
reserves we have assumed that we will make significant capital expenditures to develop our reserves.
Although we have prepared estimates of our oil and gas reserves and the costs associated with these
reserves in accordance with generally accepted petroleum engineering and evaluation principles, we cannot
assure you that the estimated costs are accurate, that development will occur as scheduled or that the
results will be as estimated. See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

You should not assume that the present value of future net revenues referred to in this Form 10-K is
the current market value of our estimated oil and gas reserves. In accordance with Securities and Exchange
Commission requirements, the estimated discounted future net cash flows from proved reserves are
generally based on prices and costs as of the date of the estimate. Actual future prices and costs may be
materially higher or lower than the prices and costs as of the date of the estimate. Any changes in
consumption by gas purchasers or in governmental regulations or taxation will also affect actual future net
cash flows. The timing of both the production and the expenses from the development and production of
oil and gas properties will affect the timing of actual future net cash flows from estimated proved reserves
and their present value. In addition, the 10% discount factor, which is required by the Securities and
Exchange Commission to be used in calculating discounted future net cash flows for reporting purposes, is
not necessarily the most appropriate discount factor for Forest. The effective interest rate at various times
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and the risks associated with Forest or the oil and gas industry in general will affect the appropriateness of
the 10% discount factor.

Leverage will materially affect our operations. As of December 31, 2001, our long-term debt was
approximately $594 million, including approximately $19 million outstanding under our global bank credit
facilities with a syndicate of banks led by JPMorgan Chase and J.P. Morgan Bank Canada. Our long-term
debt represented 39% of our total capitalization at December 31, 2001.

Cur level of debt affects our operations in several important ways, including the following:
o a significant portion of our cash flow from operations is used to pay interest on borrowings;

o the covenants contained in the agreements governing our debt limit our ability to borrow additional
funds, to dispose of assets, or to pay dividends;

° the covenants contained in the agreements governing our debt may affect our flexibility in planning
for, and reacting to, changes in business conditions;

o a high level of debt could impair our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working
capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, general corporate or other purposes; and

o the terms of the agreements governing our debt permit our creditors to accelerate payments upon
an event of default (including an event of default under other agreements) or a change of control.

In addition, we may alter our capitalization significantly in order to make future acquisitions or
develop our properties. These changes in capitalization may increase our level of debt significantly. A high
level of debt increases the risk that we may default on our debt obligations. Our ability to meet our debt
obligations and to reduce our level of debt depends on our future performance. General economic
conditions and financial, business and other factors affect our operations, our future performance and our
ability to raise additional capital. Many of these factors are beyond our control.

If we are unable to repay our debt at maturity out of cash on hand, we could attempt to refinance such
debt, or repay such debt with the proceeds of any equity offering. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to generate sufficient cash flow to pay the interest on our debt or that future debt or equity financing will
be available to pay or refinance such debt. In addition, if our bank credit facility rating is downgraded, our
ability to borrow under our credit facilities would be subject to a borrowing base that would re-determined
semi-annually. If, following such a re-determination, our outstanding borrowings exceeded the amount of
the re-determined borrowing base, we would be forced to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings in
excess of the re-determined borrowing base. We cannot assure you that we will have sufficient funds to
make such repayments. If we are not able to negotiate renewals of our borrowings or to arrange new
financing, we may have to sell significant assets. Any such sale would have a material adverse effect on our
business and financial results. Factors that will affect our ability to raise cash through an offering of our
capital stock or a refinancing of our debt include financial market conditions, our credit ratings and our
value and performance at the time of such offering or other financing. We cannot assure you that any such
offering or refinancing can be successfully completed.

Lower oil and gas prices may cause us to record ceiling limitation writedowns. We use the full cost
method of accounting to report our oil and gas operations. Accordingly, we capitalize the cost to acquire,
explore for and develop oil and gas properties. Under full cost accounting rules, the net capitalized costs of
oil and gas properties may not exceed a “ceiling limit” which is based upon the present value of estimated
future net cash flows from proved reserves, discounted at 10%, plus the lower of cost or fair market value
of unproved properties. If net capitalized costs of oil and gas properties exceed the ceiling limit, we must
charge the amount of the excess to earnings. This is called a “ceiling test writedown.” This charge does not
impact cash flow from operating activities, but does reduce our shareholders’ equity. The risk that we will
be required to write down the carrying value of our oil and gas properties increases when oil and gas prices
are low or volatile. In addition, writedowns may occur if we experience substantial downward adjustments
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to our estimated proved reserves or our undeveloped property values, if estimated future development
costs increase or if purchasers cancel long-term contracts for our natural gas production. We cannot assure
you that we will not experience ceiling test writedowns in the future.

We may incur significant abandonment costs or be required to post substantial performance bonds in
connection with the plugging and abandonment of wells, platforms and pipelines. We are responsible for the
costs associated with the plugging of wells, the removal of facilities and equipment and site restoration on
our oil and gas properties, pro rata to our working interest. We provide for expected future abandonment
liabilities by accruing for such costs as a component of depletion, depreciation and amortization as
production occurs. We also account for these future liabilities by including all projected abandonment costs
as a reduction in the future cash flows from our reserves in our reserve reporting. As of December 31,
2001, total undiscounted future abandonment costs were estimated to be approximately $153 million,
primarily for properties in offshore Gulf of Mexico and Alaska waters. Approximately $5 million in
abandonment costs are anticipated to be incurred in 2002, all of which are expected to be funded by cash
flow from operations. Estimates of abandonment costs and their timing may change due to many factors,
including actual drilling and production results, inflation rates, changes in abandonment techniques and
technology, and changes in environmental laws and regulations.

We may not be able to replace production with new reserves.  In general, the volume of production from
oil and gas properties declines as reserves are depleted. The decline rates depend on reservoir
characteristics. Gulf of Mexico reservoirs experience steep declines, while the declines in long-lived fields
in other regions are relatively slow. Production from Gulf of Mexico reservoirs represented approximately
55% of our total production in 2001. Our reserves will decline as they are produced unless we acquire
properties with proved reserves or conduct successful exploration and development activities. Forest’s
future natural gas and oil production is highly dependent upon its level of success in finding or acquiring
additional reserves. The business of exploring for, developing or acquiring reserves is capital intensive and
uncertain. We may be unable to make the necessary capital investment to maintain or expand our oil and
gas reserves if cash flow from operations is reduced and external sources of capital become limited or
unavailable. We cannot assure you that our future exploration, development and acquisition activities will
result in additional proved reserves or that we will be able to drill productive wells at acceptable costs.

Our operations are subject to numerous risks of oil and gas drilling and production activities. QOil and gas
drilling and production activities are subject to numerous risks, including the risk that no commercially
productive oil or natural gas reservoirs will be found. The cost of drilling and completing wells is often
uncertain. Oil and gas drilling and production activities may be shortened, delayed or canceled as a result
of a variety of factors, many of which are beyond our control. These factors include:

* unexpected drilling conditions;

e geological pressure or irregularities in formations;
» equipment failures or accidents;

¢ weather conditions;

e shortages in experienced labor; and

* shortages or delays in the delivery of equipment.

The prevailing prices of oil and natural gas also affect the cost of and the demand for drilling rigs,
production equipment and related services.

We cannot assure you that the new wells we drill will be productive or that we will recover all or any
portion of our investment. Drilling for oil and natural gas may be unprofitable. Drilling activities can result
in dry wells and wells that are productive but do not produce sufficient net revenues after operating and
other costs.
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Our Redoubt Shoal Prospect in Alaska is an important property on which we have spent and have
budgeted to spend substantial amounts. Qur discovery at Redoubt Shoal in the Cook Inlet of Alaska is an
important property on which we have recorded 50 MMBBLS of estimated proved reserves and where we
expect to spend substantial amounts in 2002 to bring the discovery on production. In order to complete the
construction of our facilities and conduct ongoing operations in the Cook Inlet area, we will need to obtain
various Federal and state governmental approvals, permits and licenses and enter into agreements with
individual landowners. We cannot control the timing or the issuance of these approvals, and there also
exists the possibility that a third party will commence a legal challenge to such approvals and permits. We
may encounter difficulties commencing production. Once production begins, it will be through a single
production facility. Since a significant portion of our oil recovery at Redoubt Shoal will come from a
secondary recovery water injection program, there is risk that ultimate recovery will vary from our
estimates based on the performance of the water injection program. In addition, the area in which we
operate in Alaska may experience valcanic activity, tremors and earthquakes. Depending on the severity of
these types of disturbances, they could cause substantial damage to our facilities and interrupt production.

A delay in the commencement of production or curtailment of production for a significant period of
time could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we may
be restrained in our ability to market production due to the availability, proximity and capacity limits of
pipelines,

Our industry experiences numerous operating risks. The exploration, development and production of
oil and natural gas involves risks. These operating risks include the risk of fire, explosions, blow-outs, pipe
failure, abnormally pressured formations and environmental hazards. Environmental hazards include oil
spills, gas leaks, pipeline ruptures or discharges of toxic gases. If any of these industry operating risks
occur, we could have substantial losses. Substantial losses may be caused by injury or loss of life, severe
damage to or destruction of property, natural resources and equipment, pollution or other environmental
damage, clean-up responsibilities, regulatory investigation and penalties and suspension of operations. For
example, a substantial portion of our oil and gas operations is located offshore in the Gulf of Mexico. The
Gulf of Mexico area experiences tropical weather disturbances, some of which can be severe enough to
cause substantial damage to facilities and possibly interrupt production. In accordance with industry
practice, we maintain insurance against some, but not all, of the risks described above. We cannot assure
you that our insurance will be adequate to cover losses or liabilities. Also, we cannot predict the continued
availability of insurance at premium levels that justify its purchase.

The profitability of our gas marketing activities may be limited. Our operations include gas marketing
through our subsidiary, ProMark. ProMark’s gas marketing operations consist of the marketing of gas
production in Canada, the purchase and direct sale of third parties’ natural gas, the handling of
transportation and operations of third party gas and spot purchasing and selling of natural gas. The
profitability of such natural gas marketing operations depends on our ability to assess and respond to
changing market conditions, including credit risk. Profitability also depends on our ability to maximize the
volume of third party natural gas that we purchase and resell or exchange and to obtain a satisfactory fee
for service or margin between the negotiated purchase price and the sales price for such volumes. If we are
unable to respond accurately to changing conditions in the gas marketing business, our results of
operations could be materially adversely affected. ProMark does not buy or sell gas to hold as a speculative
position. All transactions are immediately offset, establishing the margin to be earned. ProMark is exposed
to credit risk because the counterparties to agreements might not perform their contractual obligations.

Our international operations may be adversely affected by currency fluctuations and economic and
political developments. We have significant oil and gas operations in Canada. The expenses of such
operations, which represented approximately 10% of consolidated cash costs of oil and gas operations, are
payable in Canadian dollars. Most of the revenue from Canadian natural gas and oil sales, which
represented 8% of total oil and gas revenue in 2001, is based upon U.S. dollars price indices. As a resulit,
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Canadian operations are subject to the risk of fluctuations in the relative value of the Canadian and U.S.
dollars. Forest is also required to recognize foreign currency translation gains or losses related to the debt
issued by our Canadian subsidiary because the debt is denominated in U.S. dollars and the functional
currency of such subsidiary is the Canadian dollar. We have also acquired additional oil and gas assets in
other countries. Although there are no material operations in these countries, our foreign operations may
also be adversely affected by political and economic developments, royalty and tax increases and other laws
or policies in these countries, as well as U.S. policies affecting trade, taxation and investment in other
countries. In South Africa we have an interest in offshore properties with the potential for gas production.
No proved reserves have been assigned to these properties as commercial use has not been established. If
we are unable to arrange for commercial use of these properties, we may not be able to recoup our
investment and will not realize our anticipated financial and operating results for these properties.

Competition within our industry may adversely affect our operations. ~"We operate in a highly
competitive environment. Forest competes with major and independent oil and gas companies for the
acquisition of desirable oil and gas properties and the equipment and labor required to develop and
operate such properties. Forest also competes with major and independent oil and gas companies in the
marketing and sale of oil and natural gas. Many of these competitors have financial and other resources
substantially greater than ours.

Our future acquisitions may not contain economically recoverable reserves. Our recent growth is due in
part to our merger with Forcenergy in 2000 and acquisitions of producing properties. A successful
acquisition of producing properties requires an assessment of a number of factors beyond our control.
These factors include recoverable reserves, future oil and gas prices, operating costs and potential
environmental and other liabilities. Such assessments are inexact and their accuracy is inherently uncertain.
In connection with such assessments, we perform a review of the subject properties, which we believe is
generally consistent with industry practices. However, such a review will not reveal all existing or potential
problems. In addition, the review will not permit a buyer to become sufficiently familiar with the properties
to fully assess their deficiencies and capabilities. We do not inspect every platform or well. Even when a
platform or well is inspected, structural and environmental problems are not necessarily discovered. We
are generally not entitled to contractual indemnification for preclosing liabilities, including environmental
liabilities. Normally, we acquire interests in properties on an “as is” basis with limited remedies for
breaches of representations and warranties. In addition, competition for producing oil and gas properties is
intense and many of our competitors have financial and other resources which are substantially greater
than those available to us. Therefore, we cannot assure you that we will be able to acquire oil and gas
properties that contain economically recoverable reserves or that we will acquire such properties at
acceptable prices.

There are uncertainties in successfully integrating our acquisitions. Integrating acquired businesses and
properties involves a number of special risks. These risks include the possibility that management may be
distracted from regular business concerns by the need to integrate operations and that unforeseen
difficulties can arise in integrating operations and systems and retaining and assimilating the employees. In
addition, although we perform a diligent review of the properties acquired in connection with such
acquisitions in accordance with industry practices, such reviews are inherently incomplete. These reviews
may not necessarily reveal all existing or potential problems or permit us to fully assess the deficiencies and
potential associated with the properties. Any of these or similar risks could lead to potential adverse
short-term or long-term effects on our operating resulits.

The marketability of our production depends largely upon the availability, proximity and capacity of gas
gathering systems, pipelines and processing facilities. The marketability of our production depends in part
upon the availability, proximity, operation and capacity of gas gathering systems, pipelines and processing
facilities. Transportation space on such gathering systems and pipelines is occasionally limited and at times
unavailable due to repairs or improvements being made to such facilities or due to such space being
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utilized by other companies with priority transportation agreements. The available capacity, or lack of
available capacity, on these systems and facilities, could result in the shutting-in of producing wells or the
delay or discontinuance of development plans for properties. OQur access to transportation options can also
be affected by U.S. federal and state and Canadian regulation of oil and gas production and transportation,
general economic conditions, and changes in supply and demand. These factors and the availability of
markets are beyond our control. If market factors dramatically change, the financial impact on Forest
could be substantial and could adversely affect our ability to produce and market oil and natural gas.

Cur oil and gas operations are subject to various governmental regulations that materially affect our
operations. Our oil and gas operations are subject to various U.S. federal, state and local and Canadian
federal and provincial governmental regulations. These regulations may be changed in response to
economic or political conditions. Matters regulated include permits for discharges of wastewaters and
other substances generated in connection with drilling operations, bonds or other financial responsibility
requirements to cover drilling contingencies and well plugging and abandonment costs, reports concerning
operations, the spacing of wells, and unitization and pooling of properties and taxation. At various times,
regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and limitations on oil and gas production. In order to
conserve supplies of oil and gas, these agencies have restricted the rates of flow of oil and gas wells below
actual production capacity. In addition, the Federal Qil Pollution Act (OPA), as amended, requires
operators of offshore facilities to prove that they have the financial capability to respond to costs that may
be incurred in connection with potential oil spills. Under the OPA and other federal and state
environmental statutes, owners and operators of certain defined facilities are strictly liable for such spills of
oil and other regulated substances, subject to certain limitations. A substantial spill from one of our
facilities could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, competitive position or financial
condition. U.S. and non-U.S. laws regulate production, handling, storage, transportation and disposal of oil
and gas, by-products from oil and gas and other substances and materials produced or used in connection
with oil and gas operations. We cannot predict the ultimate cost of compliance with these requirements or
their effect on our operations.

The significant ownership position of Anschutz could limit Forest’s ability to enter into certain transactions.
As of February 28, 2002, The Anschutz Corporation owned approximately 32.5% of our common stock and
its principal owner currently serves as the chairman of the Executive Committee of our board of directors.
Three of Forest’s directors are officers of Anschutz. Therefore, Anschutz may substantially influence
matters being considered by Forest and its board of directors.

Applicable law requires that the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding Forest common shares
approve a future merger with a third party; therefore, control of Forest most likely could not be transferred
to a third party without Anschutz’s consent and agreement. A third party probably would not offer to pay a
premium to acquire Forest without the prior agreement of Anschutz, even if the board of directors should
choose to attempt to sell Forest in the future. In addition, shareholder approval would be required by New
York Stock Exchange rules for the issuance of common stock to a third party in an amount in excess of
20% of the outstanding common stock. Anschutz’s opposition to such a transaction could significantly
reduce the likelihood of its approval.

Anschutz engages in the oil and gas business and we have entered into oil and gas transactions with
Anschutz in the past. Anschutz is actively engaged in the oil and gas exploration and production business
and may compete with us in certain geographic areas. We have periodically entered into transactions with
Anschutz that are approved by disinterested members of our Board of Directors. Forest can give no
assurance that any transaction with Anschutz, regardless of Board approval, will ultimately be in Forest’s
best interests or that Forest will not be significantly disadvantaged by such a transaction.

We do not pay dividends. We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock in a number
of years and have no intention to do so in the near future. In addition, we are limited in the amount we can
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pay by our global credit agreement and the indentures pursuant to which our subordinated notes were
issued.

Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws have provisions that discourage corporate takeovers
and could prevent shareholders from realizing a premium on their investment. Certain provisions of our
Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws and provisions of the New York Business Corporation
Law may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control. Cur directors are elected to
staggered terms. Also, our Restated Certificate of Incorporation authorizes our board of directors to issue
preferred stock without sharcholder approval and to set the rights, preferences and other designations,
including voting rights of those shares as the board may determine. Additional provisions include
restrictions on business combinations and the availability of authorized but unissued common stock. These
provisions, alone or in combination with each other and with the rights plan described below, may
discourage transactions involving actual or potential changes of control, including transactions that
otherwise could involve payment of a premium over prevailing market prices to shareholders for their
common stock.

Our board of directors has adopted a shareholder rights plan. The existence of the rights plan may
impede a takeover of Forest not supported by the board of directors, including a proposed takeover that
may be desired by a majority of our shareholders or involving a premium over the prevailing market price
of our common stock.

Critical Accounting Policies

Alternatives exist among accounting methods we use to report our financial results. The choice of an
accounting method can have a significant impact on reported amounts. In addition, application of
generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements as well as the
revenues and expenses reported during the period. Changes in these estimates, judgments and assumptions
will occur as a result of future events, and, accordingly, actual results could differ from amounts estimated.

The more significant areas requiring the use of assumptions, judgments and estimates relate to
volumes of oil and gas reserves used in calculating depletion, depreciation and amortization, the amount of
future net revenues used in computing the ceiling test limitations and the amount of abandonment
obligations used in such calculations. Assumptions, judgments and estimates are also required in
determining impairments of undeveloped properties and the valuation of deferred tax assets.

The use of estimates, judgments and assumptions and the potential effects thereof are further
described in “—Risk Factors” in this Item 7 and in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Full Cost Method of Accounting. We use the “full cost method” of accounting for our oil and gas
operations. Separate cost centers are maintained for each country in which we incur costs. All costs
incurred in the acquisition, exploration and development of properties (including costs of surrendered and
abandoned leascholds, delay lease rentals, dry holes and overhead related to exploration and development
activities) are capitalized. Capitalized costs applicable to each full cost center are depleted using the units
of production method based on conversion to common units of measure using one barrel of oil as an
equivalent to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas. A reserve is also provided for estimated future
development costs related to proved reserves and for estimated future costs of site restoration,
dismantlement and abandonment as a component of depletion expense. Changes in estimates of reserves,
future development costs or future abandonment costs are accounted for prospectively in the depletion
calculations.

Unusually significant investments in unproved properties, including related capitalized interest costs,
are not depleted pending the determination of the existence of proved reserves. Unproved properties are
assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. Unproved properties whose costs are
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individually significant are assessed individually by considering the primary lease terms of the properties,
the holding period of the properties, and geographic and geologic data obtained relating to the properties.
Where it is not practicable to individually assess the amount of impairment of properties for which costs
are not individually significant, such properties are grouped for purposes of assessing impairment. The
amount of impairment assessed is added to the costs to be amortized in the appropriate full cost pool.

Where proved reserves are established, the net capitalized costs of oil and gas properties may not
exceed a “ceiling limitation” which is based on the present value of estimated future net cash flows from
proved reserves, discounted at 10%, plus the lower of cost or estimated fair value of unproved properties,
all net of expected income tax effects. To the extent the net capitalized costs of oil and gas properties
exceed the ceiling limit, the excess is charged to earnings.

Changes in estimates of discounted future net revenues will affect the calculation of the ceiling
limitation. We did not have any writedowns related to the full cost ceiling limitation in 2001, 2000 or 1999.
As of December 31, 2001, the ceiling limitation exceeded the carrying value of the Company’s oil and gas
properties by approximately $203,517,000 in the U.S. and $17,024,000 (CDN) in Canada. Estimates of
discounted future net cash flows at December 31, 2001 were based on average natural gas prices of
approximately $2.66 per MCF in the U.S. and approximately $2.06 per MCF in Canada and on average
liquids prices of approximately $17.01 per barrel in the U.S. and approximately $15.05 per barrel in
Canada. A reduction in oil and gas prices and/or estimated quantities of oil and gas reserves would reduce
the ceiling limitation in the U.S. and Canada and could result in a ceiling test writedown.

In countries where the existence of proved reserves has not yet been determined, leasehold costs,
seismic costs and other costs incurred during the exploration phase remain capitalized as unproved
property costs until proved reserves have been established or until exploration activities cease. If
exploration activities result in the establishment of proved reserves, amounts are reclassified as proved
properties and become subject to depreciation, depletion and amortization and the application of the
ceiling test. If exploration efforts are unsuccessful in establishing proved reserves and exploration activities
cease, the amounts accumulated as unproved costs are charged against earnings as impairments. As of
December 31, 2001, costs related to these international projects of approximately $51,577,000 were not
being depleted pending determination of the existence of proved reserves. In 2001, we recorded an
impairment of $18,072,000 related to the concessions in Albania, Australia, Ttaly, Romania, Tunisia and
Thailand.

Under the alternative “successful efforts method” of accounting, surrendered, abandoned and
impaired leases, delay lease rentals, dry holes and overhead costs are expensed as incurred. Capitalized
costs are depleted on a property by property basis under the successful efforts method. A reserve is
provided for estimated future costs of site restoration, dismantlement and abandonment activities as a
component of depletion. Impairments are assessed on a property-by-property basis and are charged to
expense when assessed.

We believe the full cost method is the appropriate method to use to account for our oil and gas
exploration and development activities. We conduct significant exploration programs in the Gulf of
Mexico, the Cook Inlet area of Alaska, frontier areas in Canada and in various international regions. We
believe the full cost method more appropriately treats the costs of these exploration programs as part of an
overall investment in discovering and developing proved reserves.

Entitlements Method of Accounting for Oil and Gas Sales. 'We account for oil and gas sales using the
“entitlements method.” Under the entitlements method, revenue is recorded based upon our ownership
share of volumes sold, regardless of whether we have taken our ownership share of such volumes. We
record a receivable or a liability to the extent we receive less or more than our share of the volumes and
related revenue. Under the alternative “sales method” of accounting for oil and gas sales, revenue is
recorded based on volumes taken by us or allocated to us by third parties, regardless of whether such
volumes are more or less than our ownership share of volumes produced. Reserve estimates are adjusted

46




to reflect any overproduced or underproduced positions. Receivables or payables are recognized on a
company’s balance sheet only to the extent that remaining reserves are not sufficient to satisfy volumes
over- or under-produced.

Make-up provisions and ultimate settlements of volume imbalances are generally governed by
agreements between Forest and its partners with respect to specific properties or, in the absence of such
agreements, through negotiation. The value of volumes over- or under-produced can change based on
changes in commodity prices.

Forest prefers the entitlements method of accounting for oil and gas sales because it allows for
recognition of revenue based on our actual share of jointly owned production, results in better matching of
revenue with related operating expenses, and provides baiance sheet recognition of the estimated value of
product imbalances. At December 31, 2001, Forest had-taken approximately 758 MMCF more than its
entitled share of production. The estimated value of this imbalance of approximately $1,752,000 was
recorded as a long-term liability.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets. We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income
taxes. Under this method, future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences
between the financial statement carrying values and their respective income tax bases (temporary
differences). Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to be in
effect when the temporary differences are likely to reverse. The effect on future income tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is included in operations in the period in which the change is enacted.
The amount of future income tax assets recognized is limited to the amount of the benefit that is more
likely than not to be realized.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred
tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. In
order to fully realize its United States net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2001, the Company will need
to generate future taxable income of approximately $86,253,000 prior to the expiration of the net operating
loss carryforwards in 2003 to 2019. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes
it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences, net of the
existing valuation allowances at December 31, 2001. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered
realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the
carryforward periods are reduced.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk, including the effects of adverse changes in commodity prices, foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates as discussed below.

Commodity Price Risk

We produce and sell natural gas, crude oil and natural gas liquids for our own account in the United
States and Canada and, through ProMark, our marketing subsidiary, we market natural gas for third
parties in Canada. As a result, our financial results are affected when prices for these commodities
fluctuate. Such effects can be significant. In order to manage commodity prices and to reduce the impact of
fluctuations in prices, we enter into long-term contracts and use a hedging strategy. Under our hedging
strategy, Forest enters into energy swaps, collars and other financial instruments. All of our energy swaps
and collar agreements and a portion of our basis swaps in place at December 31, 2001 have been
designated as cash flow hedges. These arrangements, which are based on prices available in the financial
markets at the time the contracts are entered into, are settled in cash and do not require physical deliveries
of hydrocarbons. We periodically assess the estimated portion of our anticipated production that is subject
to hedging arrangements, and we adjust this percentage based on our assessment of market conditions and
the availability of hedging arrangements that meet our criteria. Hedging arrangements covered 47%, 52%
and 51% of our consolidated production, on an equivalent basis, during the years ended December 31,
2001, 20600 and 1999, respectively.

Long-Term Sales Contracts. A significant portion of Canadian Forest’s natural gas production is sold
through the ProMark Netback Pool. At December 31, 2001, the ProMark Netback Pool had entered into
fixed price contracts to sell natural gas at the following quantities and weighted average prices:

Natural Gas

Sales Price

BCF per MCF
2002 L e 55 $2.74 CDN
2003 . e e 55 $2.85 CDN
2004 . e 55 $2.95 CDN
2005 L 5.5 $3.07 CDN
2006 . .. e e e 55 $3.19 CDN
2007 L e 55 $3.31 CDN
2008 . e 5.5 $3.44 CDN
2000 L e e 3.6 $4.17 CDN
2000 L e 1.7 $6.46 CDN
200 L e e e 0.8 $6.82 CDN

Canadian Forest, as one of the producers in the ProMark Netback Pool, is obligated to deliver a
portion of this gas. In 2001 Canadian Forest supplied 39% of the gas for the ProMark Netback Pool.
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In addition to its commitments to the ProMark Netback Pool, Canadian Forest is committed to sell
natural gas at the following quantities and weighted average prices:

Natural Gas

Sales Price
BCF per MCF

2002 0.6 $3.68 CDN
2003 L 0.6 $3.82 CDN
2004 . 0.6 $3.96 CDN
2005 . 0.6 $4.11 CDN
2000 .. 0.5 $4.27 CDN

Hedging Program. 1In a typical swap agreement, Forest receives the difference between a fixed price
per unit of production and a price based on an agreed upon published, third-party index if the index price
is lower. If the index price is higher, Forest pays the difference. By entering into swap agreements we
effectively fix the price that we will receive in the future for the hedged production. Cur current swaps are
settled in cash on a monthly basis. We enter into swap agreements when prices are less volatile or when
collar arrangements are not attractively priced. As of December 31, 2001, Forest had entered into the
following swaps:

Natural Gas Qil

Average Average
BBTU’s Hedged Price  Barrels Hedged Price
per Day per MMBTU  per Day per BBL

First Quarter 2002 . ... ............ 75.0 $3.09 11,500 $23.04
Second Quarter 2002 ... ........... 75.0 $2.82 11,500 $22.89
Third Quarter 2002 ............... 65.0 $3.33 10,000 $22.44
Fourth Quarter 2002 .............. 21.9 $3.33 10,000 $22.22

Between January 1, 2002 and March 20, 2002 we entered into oil swaps for 3,000 barrels per day in
2003 at an average hedged price of $21.26 per barrel and for 1,000 barrels per day in the first quarter of
2004 at an average hedged price of $22.80 per barrel, and also entered into additional natural gas swaps
covering an aggregate of 25 BBTU’s per day for the period April through June 2002 at a weighted average
price of $3.04 per MMBTU and covering an aggregate of 25 BBTU’s per day for the period November
2002 through March 2003 at a weighted average price of $3.62 per MMBTU.

We also enter into collar agreements with third parties. A collar agreement is similar to a swap
agreement, except that we receive the difference between the floor price and the index price only if the
index price is below the floor price, and we pay the difference between the ceiling price and the index price
only if the index price is above the ceiling price. Collars are also settled in cash, either on a monthly basis
or at the end of their terms. By entering into collars we effectively provide a floor for the price that we will
receive for the hedged production; however, the collar also establishes a maximum price that we will
receive for the hedged production if prices increase above the ceiling price. We enter into collars during
periods of volatile commodity prices in order to protect against a significant decline in prices in exchange
for forgoing the benefit of price increases in excess of the ceiling price on the hedged production. As of
December 31, 2001, Forest had entered into the following collars for 2002:

Natural Gas
Average Floor  Average Ceiling

Price Price BBTU’s Per
per MMBTU per MMBTU Day
First Quarter 2002 . ............... $4.00 $8.05 10.0
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Between January 1, 2002 and March 20, 2002, we entered into oil collars for 1,500 barrels per day for
all of 2003 at an average ceiling price and floor price of $25.50 and $22.00, respectively.

We also use basis swaps in connection with natural gas swaps to fix the differential price between the
NYMEX price and the index price at which the hedged gas is sold. As of December 31, 2001, Forest had
entered into basis swaps with weighted average volumes of 55.0 BBTU’s per day in 2002. Between
January 1, 2002 and March 20, 2002, we entered into additional basis swaps covering weighted average
volumes of 25 BBTU’s per day from April through June 2002 and 25 BBTU’s per day from November 2002
through March 2003.

The fair value of our cash flow hedges as of December 31, 2001 was a gain of approximately
$24,508,000.

Trading Activities. Profits or losses generated by the purchase and sale of third parties’ gas are based
on the spread between the prices of natural gas purchased and sold. ProMark does not enter into
agreements to buy or sell natural gas to hold as a speculative or open position. All transactions represent
physical volumes and are immediately offset, thereby fixing the margin and eliminating the market risk on
the related agreements. At December 31, 2001, ProMark’s trading operations had the following purchase
and sales commitments in place for 2002 and 2003:

Natural Gas
Purchase Price Sales Price
@ per MCF per MCF
2002 . e e 24  $583 CDN $5.88 CDN
2003 L. 0.6 $4.65 CDN $4.93 CDN

As of December 31, 2001, Forest had entered into basis swaps that were not designated as cash flow
hedges with weighted average volumes of 10.3 BBTU’s per day in 2002.

The fair value of our derivative instruments not designated as cash flow hedges as of December 31,
2001 was a gain of approximately $376,000.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We conduct business in several foreign currencies and thus are subject to foreign currency exchange
rate risk on cash flows related to sales, expenses, financing and investing transactions. In the past, we have
not entered into any foreign currency forward contracts or other similar financial instruments to manage
this risk.

Canada. The Canadian dollar is the functional currency of Canadian Forest. As a result, Canadian
Forest is exposed to foreign currency translation risk related to translation of the principal amount of the
8%% Senior Subordinated Notes that it issued in late 1997 and early 1998 because these notes are
denominated in U.S. dollars. The $63,248,000 principal amount of the debt is due in 2007.

Operations outside of North America. Expenditures incurred relative to the foreign concessions held
by Forest have been primarily U.S. dollar-denominated.
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Interest Rate Risk

The following table presents principal or notional amounts and related average interest rates by year
of maturity for Forest’s debt obligations at December 31, 2001:

2005 2006 2007 2008 2011 Total Fair Value
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Bank credit facilities:

Variable rate . ................ $19,000 — — — — 19,000 19,000

Average interest rate. .. ......... 422% — — — — 4.22%
Long-term debt:

Fixedrate ................... $§ — 88,180 63,248 265,000 160,000 576,428 583,395

Average interest rate. . .......... — 105% 8.75% 8.00% 8.00% 8.46%

In connection with the issuance of $200,000,000 8% Senior Notes due 2008, we entered into an
interest rate swap under which we will pay a variable rate based on the six month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 195 basis points in exchange for a fixed rate of 8% on $100,000,000 over the
term of the note issue. In connection with the issuance of $160,000,000 8% Senior Notes due 2011, we
entered into an interest rate swap under which we will pay a variable rate based on LIBOR plus 181.25
basis points in exchange for a fixed rate of 8% on $50,000,000 over the term of the note issue. The fair
value of these interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2001 was a gain of approximately $5,040,000.

Item 8. Fimancial Statements and Supplementary Data

Information concerning this Item begins on the following page.

Etem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Forest Oil Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Forest Oil Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Forest Qil Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2001, the
Company changed its method of accounting for derivative financial instruments.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 12, 2002
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . ... ... ... .. ..
Accounts receivable . . ... ... e
Derivative InStruUmMeEntS . . . . oottt it sttt et ettt e e
Other CUITent a886tS . . . o v it e it it e et et et e e

Total current assets . . ... ..
Net property and equipment, at cost, full cost method (Note 3) ...........

Deferred income taxes (NOte 4) . .. .. it i i

Goodwill and other intangible assets, net . ... ....... ... .. ... . ...
Other A8SeES . . o o ot e e e

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ..... ... ..
Accrued INEETESE « o . v ot it e e
Current portion of deferred income tax liability .....................
Other current liabilities . . . ... .. .

Total current liabilities . . . . . .. .. o e

Long-term debt (Notes 3and 14) . ... ... . . . . it
QOther liabilities . ... ... .
Deferred income taxes (Note 4) . ... ... ...

Shareholders’ equity (Notes 2, 3, 5 and 6)
Common stock, 48,834,306 shares in 2001 (48,397,177 shares in 2000) ... ..
Capital sUrplus . .. .. ..
Accumulated deficit ....... .. ... e e
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. . ......... ... . L
Treasury stock, at cost, 2,089,831 shares in 2001 (167,931 shares in 2000) . ..

Total shareholders’ equity . . . ......... ...

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 31,
2001 2660
(In Thousands)

$ 8387 14,003
134,090 203,245
31,632 —
27,856 21,580

201,965 238,828

1,516,900 1,359,756
43,930 119,300
13,263 19,412
20,311 15,082

$1,796,369 1,752,378

§ 209,163 192,200
7,364 11,436
11,154 —
12,617 36,301

240,298 239,937

594,178 622,234
21,524 16,376
16,426 14,865

4,883 4,840
1,145282 1,139,136
(165,824)  (269,567)
(4,147)  (12,177)
(56,251} (3,266)

923,943 858,966
$1,796,369 1,752,378




FOREST OIL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2001

2000

1599

(In Thousands Except Per

Share Amounts)

Revenue:
Marketing and proCessing . . . . . . oo e e $ 303,527 288,133 166,283
Oil and gas sales:
GaS . e 467,767 368,245 134,426
Oil, condensate and natural gas liquids. . .. . ... ... .. ... ... .. L 247,085 256,680 59,415
Total oil and gas sales . . . ... .. . 714,852 624,925 193,841
Total revenue . . . . .. e e e e e e 1,018,379 913058 360,124
Operating expenses:
Marketing and processing . . .. .. .. ... e 300,062 285,039 162,617
Oil and gas production . . . . . . . .. e 186,250 140,218 49,145
General and administrative . . . . . .. . ... e e e 30,514 35,580 15,362
Merger and seismic licensing (Note 2) . .. .. ... . .. 9,836 31,577 —
Depreciation and depletion . .. . . ... . 226,033 212,480 88,190
Impairment of oil and gas properties . . ... ... .. . 18,072 5,876 —
Impairment of contract value . .. ... . ... .. ... 3,239 — —
Total operating eXpenses . . . . . . . ... e e 774,006 710,770 315,314
Earnings from operations . . . .. .. ... e 244373 202,288 44,810
Other income and expense:
Other expense (iNCOME), NEL. . . . . . . . . i it i e e et 9,592 1,757y (2,629)
Interest @Xpense . . . . . ... 49,910 60,269 40,873
Translation (gain) loss on subordinated debt (Note 3) . . . . .. ... .. ..... ... ... 7,872 7,102 (10,561)
Realized gain on derivative instruments, net (Note 8) . . . . . ... ... ... ... ...... (11,556) — —
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net (Note &) ... ...... .. ............ (376) — —
Total other income and expense . . . .......... ... ... ... ... ... 55,442 65,614 27,683
Earnings before income taxes and extraordinary items . . ... ... ... L L oL L 188,931 136,674 17,127
Income tax expense (benefit) (Note 4):
CUITENL . . o o e e e e e 2,365 1,666 (2,921)
Deferred . . . .. . 77,212 4,400 407
79,577 6,066 2,514)
Net earnings before extraordinary items . . . . ... ... ... . . . 109,354 130,608 19,641
Extraordinary items—Iloss on extinguishment of debt (Note 3) . . . .. ..... ... ........ (5,611) — (598)
Net earnings . ............... e $ 103,743 130,608 19,043
Earnings attributable to common stock . . . ... ... ... .. .. $ 103,743 126,440 19,043
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding . . .. . ... ................ 47,674 46,330 23,971
Basic earnings per common share:
Earnings attributable to common stock before extraordinaryitems . .. ........... ... b3 2.30 273 82
Extraordinary items—Iloss on extinguishment of debt . ... ... ... .... ... ... ... ... (12) — (.03)
Earnings attributable to common stock . . .. ... ... .. L oo Lo o $ 2.18 273 .79
Diluted earnings per common share:
Earnings attributable to common stock before extraordinary items . . . .. .. .. .. ... ... $ 222 2.64 .81
Extraordinary items—Iloss on extinguishment of debt . . ... ....... .. ... ... .... (1) — (.02)
Earnings attributable t0 common StOCK . . . . . .. . e $ 211 2.64 .79

See accompanying Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance December 31, 1998

Total comprehensive income

FOREST OIL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock issued, net of offering costs
(NOte 6) . . oot
Common Stock issued as compensation (Note 6) . .
Stock options exercised (Note 6) . .. ... ... ...
Employee stock purchase plan (Note 6) ... .. ..
Equity of Forcenergy on a fresh-start basis
(Note2) .. ... . ..
Comprehensive income:
Netearnings . . . . ... ...
Reduction in unfunded pension liability (Note 7) . .
Foreign currency translation . . . ... .........

Total comprehensive income

Balance December 31,1999 . ... ... .........
Preferred Stock issued (Note 5). .. ... ... . ...
Preferred Stock dividends paid in kind (Note 5) . .
Preferred Stock exchanged for Common Stock
(Note 5) . .. .o
Exercise of warrants (Note 6) . . . ...........
Stock options exercised (Note 6) . ... ........
Employee stock purchase plan (Note 6)
Common stock issued as compensation (Note 6) . .
Stock option compensation (Note 6) . . . . .. .. ..
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . . . ... ...
Purchase of treasury stock (Note 6)
Fresh start tax benefits recognized (Note 4)
Comprehensive income:
Netearnings . . .. ... ... ...
Unrealized gain on market value of investment . . .
Increase in unfunded pension liability (Note 7) . . .
Foreign currency translation . ... . ....... ...

Total comprehensive income

Balance December 31, 2000
Exercise of warrants (Note 6) . . .. ..........
Stock options exercised (Note 6)
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . . . ... ...
Employee stock purchase plan (Note 6)
Purchase of treasury stock (Note 6)
Retirement of treasury stock (Note 6) . . . .. .. ..
Stock option compensation (Note 6) . . . . .. .. ..
Cash in licu of shares exchanged . . ... ... ... .
Shares retired in lieu of taxes on restricted stock

Comprehensive income:

Netearnings. .. ....... ... ... ...

Unrealized loss on market value of investment . . .

Unrealized gain on effective derivative instruments,
net (Note 8)

Increase in unfunded pension liability (Note 7) . . .

Foreign currency translation . . ... ... ... .. ..

Balance December 31, 2001

Accumulated
Other Total
Preferred Common Capital Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders’
Stock Stock Surplus Deficit Income (Loss)  Stock Equity
(In Thousands)
$ — 2233 592,204 (415,050) (9,948) (448) 168,991
— 450 130,738 — — — 131,188
— 1 103 — — — 104
— 7 1,421 — — — 1,428
— — 56 — — — 56
— 1,920 238,080 — — — 240,000
— — — 19,043 — — 19,043
— — — — 493 — 493
— — — — (2,319) — (2,319)
17,217
— 4,611 962,602  (396,007) (11,774) (448) 558,984
38,858 — — — — — 38,858
4,168 — — (4,168) — — —
(43,026) 152 42,874 — — — —
— 2 294 — — — 296
— 69 11,849 — — —_ 11,918
— 3 338 — — — 341
— 3 595 — — — 598
— — 3,013 — — — 3,013
— — 2,900 — — — 2,900
— — —_ — — (2,818) (2,818)
— — 114,671 — — — 114,671
— — — 130,608 — — 130,608
— — — — 39 — 39
— — — — (2,072) — (2,072)
— — —_ — 1,630 — 1,630
130,205
— 4840 1,139,136 (269,567) (12,177) (3,266) 858,966
— — 17 — — — 17
— 57 7,970 — — — 8,027
— — 40 — — — 40
— 1 433 — — — 434
— — — — — (55,803) (55,803)
— 15) (2,803) — — 2,818 —
— — 595 — — — 595
- - (50) - - — (50)
- - (56) — — - (56)
— — —_ 103,743 — — 103,743
— — — — (426) —_ (426)
— — — — 19,293 — 19,293
_ _ _ — {4,251) — (4,251)
— — — — (6,586) -— (6,586)
111,773
$ — 4883 1,145282  (165,824) (4,147) (56,251) 923,943

See accompanying Notes to Consclidated Financial Statemeats.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings before preferred dividends and extraordinary items . ... .. ... .... ... $ 109,354 130,608 19,641
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and depletion . . ... ... ... . e 226,033 212,480 88,190
Impairment of oil and gas properties . . . ......... . . ... . . o 18,072 5,876 —
Impairment of contract value . . .. ... ... .. .. 3,239 — —
Amortization of deferred debt costs . . . . ... . ... . .. ... 1,793 1,517 1,341
Translation loss (gain) on subordinated debt. . . .. ...... ... ... ... ... . ... 7,872 7,102 (10,561)
Loss on derivative instruments, N€t . . . . . . . . i it e e e 1,353 — —
Deferred income tax expense .. ............... e 77,212 4,400 407
Stock and stock option compensation . . .. ... ... 595 3,611 —
Other, NEL . . .. . (59) (1,452) (3,529)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable . . ... ... ... L. L L L L 66,358 (97,195) (4,949)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets . . . . ... .. ...t (5,341) 2,983 (3,304)
Increase in accounts payable . . ... ... ... ... L 50,241 10,661 18,244
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and other current liabilities . .. ... .. .. ... (58,709) 37,177 5,033
Net cash provided by operating activities before reorganization item . . ... ... ... 498,013 317,768 110,513
Decrease in reorganization costs payable . . .. . ... ... .. L oL — (11,236) —
Net cash provided by operating activities after reorganization item . . ....... ... 498,013 306,532 110,513
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures for property and equipment . . ... .......... ... .. .. .. (569,188) (389,992) (125,083)
Proceeds from sale of assets . . . . . . . . .. e 152,872 17,304 20,471
Increase in other assets, MEt . . . . . . . . . .. e (4,880) (3,373) (1,034)
Net cash used by investing activities . . ... . ........ .. ... ... .. ... (421,196)  (376,061) (105,646)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings . . ... ... ... . L. L 766,986 638,407 112,427
Repayments of bank borrowings . . ... ... .. .. .. (1,080,546) (690,413) (338,192)
Proceeds from issuance of 8% senior notes, netofcosts . . ... ............... 420,550 — —
Issuance of 102% senior subordinated notes, net of issuance costs . . ........... — — 98,561
Redemption of 8%% senior subordinated notes . .. ........... ... . ...... (131,933) (7,184) —
Redemption of 10%4% senior subordinated notes . . . . . ... ... ... ... ... . .... (9,350) (3,067) —
Redemption of 11%% senior subordinated notes . . . . ... ... .. v — — (9,083}
Proceeds from issuance of preferredstock . . ... ... .. .. L. L Lo L — 38,800 —_
Cash balance of Forcenergy at date of fresh-start . . ... ...... .. ... ... .. ... —_ — 96,506
Proceeds of common stock offering, net of offering costs. . . ... ....... . ... ... — — 131,188
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants . . . ...................... 8,430 12,556 1,589
Purchase of treasury stock . . . .. ... ... . L (55,803) (2,818) —
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities, met . . . .. ... ... ... ... . o 0L 470 (2,453) (1,629)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities . . . ... ........ ... .. ... ... (81,196)  (16,172) 91,367
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ... ... ... ... ... ... . ... .. . .... (1,237) 43 12
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . ...................... (5,616)  (85,658) 96,246
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . ... 14,003 99,661 3,415
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . ... ...... .. ... ... .. .. .. . .. $ 8,387 14,003 99,661
Cash paid (refunded) during the year for:
T T $ 48,081 79,381 42,596
Income taxes . . . . . ... $ 4527 (2,167) (101)

See accempanying Notes to Conselidated Fimancial Statements.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Description of the Business—Forest Oil Corporation is engaged in the acquisition, exploration,
development, production and marketing of natural gas and liquids. The Company was incorporated in New
York in 1924, the successor to a company formed in 1916, and has been publicly held since 1969. The
Company is active in several of the major exploration and producing areas in and offshore the United
States and in Canada, and has exploratory interests in various other foreign countries.

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Conssolidation—The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of Forest Oil Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (Forest or the Company).
Significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated. The Company generally consolidates
all subsidiaries in which it controls over 50% of the voting interests. Entities in which the Company does
not have a direct or indirect majority voting interest are generally accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the initial investment in the affiliated entity is recorded at cost and subsequently
increased or reduced to reflect the Company’s share of gains or losses or dividends received from the
affiliate. The Company’s share of the income or losses of the affiliate is included in the Company’s
reported net income.

On December 7, 2000, Forest completed its merger with Forcenergy Inc (Forcenergy). The merger
was accounted for as a pooling of interests for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Under this
method of accounting, the recorded assets and liabilities of Forest and Forcenergy were carried forward to
the combined company at their recorded amounts, and income of the combined company includes income
of Forest and Forcenergy for the entire year. The results of operations of Forcenergy prior to
December 31, 1999, the effective date of its reorganization and fresh start reporting, are not included in
the financial statements of the combined company.

Assumptions, Judgments and Estimates—In the course of preparing the consolidated financial
statements, management makes various assumptions, judgments and estimates to determine the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and in the disclosures of commitments and
contingencies. Changes in these assumiptions, judgments and estimates will occur as a result of the passage
of time and the occurrence of future events and, accordingly, actual results could differ from amounts
initially established.

The more significant areas requiring the use of assumptions, judgments and estimates relate to
volumes of oil and gas reserves used in calculating depletion, depreciation and amortization, the amount of
future net revenues used in computing the ceiling test limitations and the amount of abandonment
obligations used in such calculations. Assumptions, judgments and estimates are also required in
determining impairments of undeveloped properties and the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Cash Equivalents—For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all debt
instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment—The Company uses the full cost method of accounting for oil and gas
properties. Separate cost centers are maintained for each country in which the Company has operations.
During 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company’s primary oil and gas operations were conducted in the United
States and in Canada. All costs incurred in the acquisition, exploration and development of properties
(including costs of surrendered and abandoned leaseholds, delay lease rentals, dry holes and overhead
related to exploration and development activities) are capitalized. Capitalized costs applicable to each cost
center are depleted using the units of production method based on conversion to common units of
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

measure using one barrel of oil as an equivalent to six thousand cubic feet (MCF) of natural gas. A reserve
is provided for estimated future costs of site restoration, dismantlement and abandonment activities as a
component of depletion.

Unusually significant investments in unproved properties, including related capitalized interest costs,
are not depleted pending the determination of the existence of proved reserves. Unproved properties are
assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. Unproved properties whose costs are
individually significant are assessed individually by considering the primary lease terms of the properties,
the holding period of the properties, and geographic and geologic data obtained relating to the properties.
Where it is not practicable to individually assess the amount of impairment of properties for which costs
are not individually significant, such properties are grouped for purposes of assessing impairment. The
amount of impairment assessed is added to the costs to be amortized.

As of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, there were undeveloped property costs of $86,460,000,
$132,807,000 and $114,545,000, respectively, which were not being depleted in the United States and
$48,577,000, $33,524,000 and $39,580,000, respectively, which were not being depleted in Canada. Of the
undeveloped costs in the United States not being depleted at December 31, 2001, approximately 29% were
incurred in 2001, 3% in 2000, 27% in 1999, 37% in 1998, 3% in 1997 and 1% in 1996. Of the undeveloped
costs in Canada not being depleted at December 31, 2001, 47% were incurred in 2001, 23% in 2000, 14%
in 1999, 4% in 1998, 2% in 1997 and 10% in 1996.

The Company holds interests in various international projects. As of December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, costs related to these international interests of approximately $51,577,000, $40,432,000 and
$21,493,000, respectively, were not being depleted pending determination of the existence of proved
reserves. In the fourth quarter of 2001, Forest recorded an impairment of $18,072,000 related to
concessions in Albania, Australia, Italy, Romania, Tunisia and Thailand. In the fourth quarter of 2000,
Forest recorded an impairment of $5,876,000 related to unsuccessful exploratory wells drilled in
Switzerland and Thailand.

Depletion per unit of production (MCFE) for each of the Company’s cost centers was as follows:

United States Campada

2001 .. $1.32 1.02
2000 ... 1.18 87
1999 1.06 70

Pursuant to full cost accounting rules, capitalized costs less related accumulated depletion and
deferred income taxes for each cost center may not exceed the sum of (1) the present value of future net
revenue from estimated production of proved oil and gas reserves using current prices and a discount
factor of 10%; plus (2) the cost of properties not being amortized, if any; plus (3) the lower of cost or
estimated fair value of unproved properties included in the costs being amortized, if any; less (4) income
tax effects related to differences in the book and tax basis of oil and gas properties. There were no such
provisions for impairment of oil and gas properties in 2001, 2000 or 1999. Gain or loss is not recognized on
the sale of oil and gas properties unless the sale significantly alters the relationship between capitalized
costs and proved oil and gas reserves attributable to a cost center.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continuned)

Buildings, transportation and other equipment are depreciated on the straight-line method based

upon estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from five to forty-five years.

Net property and equipment at December 31 consists of the following:

2001 2000
(In Thousands)
Oil and gas properties . . . ... . ... .. L $ 3,408,317 3,020,778
Buildings, transportation and other equipment . ........ 23,137 21,399

3,431,454 3,042,177

Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and valuation

allowance ......... .. .. (1,914,554) (1,682,421)

$ 1,516,900 1,359,756

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—Goodwill and other intangible assets recorded in the
acquisition of the Company’s gas marketing subsidiary consist of the following at December 31, 2001 and

2000:
2001 2000
(In Thousands)
Goodwill . ... ... . .. $ 14,394 15,295
Gas marketing contracts . ............. . .. i 12,558 13,344
26,952 28,639
Less accumulated amortization . ............ ... ... ... ... (13,689) (9,227)
$ 13,263 19,412

Goodwill is being amortized on a straight line basis over 20 years. The amount attributed to the value
of gas marketing contracts acquired is being amortized on a straight line basis over the average life of such

contracts of 12 years.

In 2001, the Company recorded an impairment of $3,239,000 of the gas marketing contracts related to
the netback pool administered by ProMark. The book values of the contracts were reduced to reflect the

estimated fair market value of the contracts.

Gas Marketing—The Company’s gas marketing subsidiary, ProMark, enters into fixed price
agreements to purchase and sell natural gas. ProMark’s general strategy for this business is to enter into
offsetting purchase and sales contracts. Net open positions relating to these contracts do occur, but have
not been significant to date. Revenue from the sale of the gas is recorded as marketing revenue and the
cost of the gas sold is recorded as marketing expense. ProMark also provides natural gas marketing
aggregation services for third parties. Fees earned for such services are recorded as marketing revenue as

the services are performed.

01l and Gas Sales—The Company accounts for oil and gas sales using the entitlements method. Under
the entitlements method, revenue is recorded based upon the Company’s share of volumes sold, regardless
of whether the Company has taken its proportionate share of volumes produced. The Company records a
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

receivable or payable to the extent it receives less or more than its proportionate share of the related
revenue. As of December 31, 2001 the Company had produced approximately 758 MMCE more than its
entitled share of production. The estimated value of this imbalance of approximately $1,752,000 is included
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a long-term liability.

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of total revenue in 2001, 2000 or 1999.

Hedging Transactions—Forest periodically hedges a portion of its oil and gas production using swap
and collar agreements. The purpose of the hedges is to provide a measure of stability to the Company’s
cash flows in an environment of volatile oil and gas prices and to manage the exposure to commodity price
risk.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 137
and No. 138. SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and hedging activities. It requires the
recognition of all derivative instruments as assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measurement of
those instruments at fair value. The accounting treatment of the changes in fair value is dependent upon
whether or not a derivative instrument is designated as a hedge. For derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges, changes in fair value, to the extent the hedge is effective, are recognized in other comprehensive
income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings as oil and gas revenue. For all other derivatives,
changes in fair value are recognized in earnings as non-operating income or expense.

All of Forest’s energy swap and collar agreements and a portion of basis swaps in place at
December 31, 2000 were designated as cash flow hedges. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1,
2001 the Company recorded a liability of approximately $52,700,000 (of which $10,900,000 was classified as
current) and a deferred tax asset of approximately $20,000,000 (of which $4,200,000 was classified as
current) and a corresponding reduction in other comprehensive income of approximately $32,700,000.

Prior to January 1, 2001, gains and losses from all of these financial instruments were recognized as
revenue in the periods covered by the derivative financial instruments.

Forest also periodically enters into interest rate swap agreements in an attempt to achieve a desired
mix of fixed and floating rates in its debt portfolio. Interest rate swap agreements are generally designated
as cash flow hedges and, as such, the fair value of the derivative instrument is recorded as an asset or a
liability with a corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive income. Periodic settlements under the
swap agreements are accounted for as adjustments to interest expense.

Income Taxes—The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes which
requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between financial accounting bases and tax bases of assets and liabilities. The tax
benefits of net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred taxes are recorded as an asset to the extent
that management assesses the utilization of such assets to be more likely than not. When the future
utilization of some portion of the deferred tax asset is determined not to be more likely than not, a
valuation allowance is provided to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets. Management believes that it
could implement tax planning strategies to prevent these carryforwards from expiring.

Foreign Currency Translatiom—The functional currency of Canadian Forest Gil Ltd. (Canadian
Forest), the Company’s wholly owned Canadian subsidiary, is the Canadian dollar. Assets and liabilities
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

related to the Company’s Canadian operations are generally translated at current exchange rates, and
related translation adjustments are reported as a component of shareholders’ equity in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Income statement accounts are translated at the average rates during the period. The
Company is also required to recognize foreign currency translation gains or losses related to its 8%%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2007 (the 8%% Notes) because the debt is denominated in U.S. dollars
and the functional currency of Canadian Forest is the Canadian dollar. As a result of the change in the
value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar, the Company reported noncash translation (gains)
losses of approximately $7,872,000, $7,102,000 and ($10,561,000) for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

Earnings (Loss) per Share—Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss)
attributable to common stock by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each
period, excluding treasury shares. Net earnings (loss) attributable to common stock represents net earnings
(loss) less preferred stock dividends of $4,168,000 in 2000. The preferred stock dividends related to
Forcenergy’s Preferred Stock that was exchanged for Forest’s Common Stock in conjunction with the
merger with Forcenergy.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by adjusting the average number of common shares
outstanding for the dilutive effect, if any, of convertible preferred stock, stock options and warrants. The
effect of potentially dilutive securities is based on earnings (loss) before extraordinary items.

On December 7, 2000, in conjunction with the merger with Forcenergy, a 1-for-2 reverse stock split
was approved by the Company’s shareholders. Unless otherwise indicated, all share and per share amounts
in these financial statements have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to this reverse stock split.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

The following sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for income before
extraordinary items for the years ended December 31:

2001(1) 2000(2) 1999(3)

(In Thousands Except
Per Share Amounts)

Earnings before extraordinary items . ............. $109,354 130,608 19,641
Less: Preferred stock dividends. .. ............... —  (4,168) —
Earnings before extraordinary items available to

common stockholders . .. .................... $109,354 126,440 19,641
Weighted average common shares outstanding during

theperiod ........ ... i 47,674 46,330 23,971
Add dilutive effects of:
Stock options . . ... .. 709 1,178 162
Warrants . ... ... o e 899 469 —

Weighted average common shares outstanding during
the period including the effects of dilutive securities . 49,282 47,977 24,133

Basic earnings per share before extraordinary items. .. $  2.30 2.73 82

Diluted earnings per share before extraordinary items . $§  2.22 2.64 .81

(1) At December 31, 2001, options to purchase 1,594,750 shares of common stock at prices ranging from
$29.75 to $50.00 per share were outstanding, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2001. The exercise prices of these options were
greater than the average market price of the common shares. These options expire at various dates
from 2002 to 2011.

(2) At December 31, 2000, options to purchase 1,867,400 shares of common stock at prices ranging from
$27.30 to $50.00 per share were outstanding, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2000. The exercise prices of these options were
greater than the average market price of the common shares. These options expire at various dates
from 2002 to 2010.

(3) At December 31, 1999, options to purchase 829,680 shares of common stock at prices ranging from
$22.50 to $50.00 per share were outstanding, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 1999. The exercise prices of these options were
greater than the average market price of the common shares. These options expire at various dates
from 2002 to 2008.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued) '

QOther Comprehensive Income (Loss)—The components of other comprehensive income consist of
foreign currency translation, changes in the unfunded pension liability, unrealized gain (loss) on securities
available for sale and unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments, net and are as follows:

Unrealized
gain (loss) Unrealized
on gain on Accunmulated
Foreign Unfunded securities derivative Other
Currency Pension  available for instruments, Comprehensive
Translation  Liability sale net Income (Loss)
(In Thousands)
Balance at December 31,1998 . ... ... . ... ... .. $ (5,922) (4,026) — — (9,948)
1999 activity . . . .. ... L (2,319) 493 — — (1,826)
Balance at December 31,1999 . . .. ... ... .. .. (8,241) (3,533) — — (11,774)
2000 activity . . . ..o 1,630 (2,072) 39 — (403)
Balance at December 31,2000 . .. ... .......... (6,611) (5,605) 39 — (12,177)
2001 activity . . . . Lo (6,586) (4,251) (426) 19,293 8,030
Balance at December 31,2001 . .. ............. $(13,197) (9,856) (387) 19,293 (4,147)

|

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements—During 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued four new pronouncements:

Statement 141, Business Combinations, requires that the purchase method of accounting be used to
account for all business combinations and applies to all business combinations initiated or completed after
June 30, 2001. The statement also establishes specific criteria for the recognition of intangible assets
separately from goodwill. The provisions of this statement would be applied if the Company were to enter
into any future business combination. The adoption of this statement as of July 1, 2001 had no impact on
the Company’s historical financial statements.

Statement 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142), requires that goodwill no longer
be amortized but tested for impairment at least annually. Other intangible assets are to be amortized over
their useful lives and reviewed for impairment. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life will not be
amortized until its useful life becomes determinable. The effective date of this statement is January 1,
2002. Any goodwill and any intangible asset determined to have an indefinite useful life that are acquired
in a purchase business combination completed after June 30, 2001 will not be amortized, but will be
evaluated for impairment in accordance with the appropriate existing accounting literature. Goodwill and
intangible assets acquired in business combinations completed before July 1, 2001 will continue to be
amortized prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142.

Implementation of SFAS No. 142 is required as of January 1, 2002. The impact of the adoption and
implementation of SFAS No. 142 on Forest’s financial statements has not been determined, including
whether any transitional impairment losses will be required to be recognized as the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle. As of January 1, 2002, Forest had unamortized goodwill in the amount of
$10,537,000 that will be subject to the transition provisions of SFAS No. 142. Amortization expense related
to goodwill was $720,000 and $765,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended
December 31, 2000, respectively.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Statement 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (SFAS No. 143) requires entities to record
the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred and a
corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The Company will be
required to adopt SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003 using a cumulative effect approach to recognize
transition amounts for asset retirement obligations, asset retirement costs and accumulated depreciation.
The Company currently records estimated costs of dismantlement, removal, site reclamation, and similar
activities as part of its provision for depreciation, depletion, and amortization of oil and gas properties
without recording a separate liability for such amounts. The Company has not yet completed its assessment
of the impact of SFAS No. 143 on its financial condition and results of operations, but expects that
adoption of the statement will result in increases in the capitalized costs of its oil and gas properties and in
the recognition of additional liabilities related to asset retirement obligations.

Statement 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144) retains
the fundamental provisions of SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of (SFAS No. 121) for recognizing and measuring impairment losses
while resolving significant implementation issues associated with SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 also
expands the basic provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions, regarding presentation of discontinued operations in the income statement. The scope
for reporting a discontinued operation has been expanded to include a “component” of an entity. A
component comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
entity. It could be a segment, a reporting unit, a consolidated subsidiary, or an asset group.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 as of January 1, 2002. Because the Company has elected the
full-cost method of accounting for oil and gas exploration and development activities, the impairment
provisions of SFAS No. 144 do not apply to the Company’s oil and gas assets, which are instead subject to
ceiling limitations. For the Company’s non-oil and gas assets, the method of impairment assessment is
largely unchanged from SFAS No. 121. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 is not expected to have an impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

(2) MERGER WITH FORCENERGY INC:

On December 7, 2000 Forest announced the completion of its merger with Forcenergy. Pursuant to
the terms of the merger agreement, and after giving effect to the reverse split of Forest common shares,
Forcenergy stockholders received 0.8 of a Forest common share for each share of Forcenergy common
stock they owned and 34.307 Forest common shares for each $1,000 stated value amount of Forcenergy
preferred stock. In addition, each warrant to purchase Forcenergy common stock was exchanged for a
warrant to purchase 0.8 shares of Forest common stock. The merger was accounted for as a pooling of
interests for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Under this method of accounting, the recorded
assets and liabilities of Forest and Forcenergy were carried forward to the combined company at their
recorded amounts, and income of the combined company includes income of Forest and Forcenergy for
the entire year. The results of operations of Forcenergy prior to December 31, 1999, the effective date of
its reorganization and fresh start reporting, are not included in the financial statements of the combined
company.
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(2) MERGER WITH FORCENERGY INC: (Continued)

The results of operations previously reported by the separate companies for the nine months ended

September 30, 2000 are as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2000

Forest Forcenergy Combined

(In Thousands)
Total revenue . .......... .. ... . ... . ... ... . $353,942 250,835 604,777
Netearnings . .........o.oueiinunn ... $ 28,936 46,132 75,068

There were no intercompany transactions between Forest and Forcenergy prior to the combination.

Merger and seismic licensing costs reported in the Statements of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000 of $9,836,000 (approximately $6,015,000 net of tax) and $31,577,000
(approximately $28,500,000 net of tax), respectively, included the following merger-related costs: banking,
legal, accounting, printing and other consulting costs related to the merger; severance paid to terminated
employees; expenses for office closures, employee relocation, data migration and systems integration; and
costs of transferring seismic licenses from Forcenergy to Forest.

(3) LONG-TERM DEBT:

Long-term debt at December 31 consisted of the following:

2001 2000

(In Thousands)
US. Credit Facility . .. ... .. . $ 19,000 305,000
Canadian Credit Facility ............. . .............. — 28,690
8% Senior Notes Due 2008 . . . . ...... ... ... ... .. ...... 264,366 —
8% Senior Notes Due 2011 ... . ... ... .. .. .. o ..... 160,000 —
8%4% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2007 ............... 63,243 192,382
10%4% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2006 .............. 87,569 96,162
Total long-term debt . . . ..o oo $594,178 622,234

Bank Credit Facilities:

Forest has credit facilities totalling $600,000,000, consisting of a $500,000,000 U.S. credit facility
through a syndicate of banks led by JPMorgan Chase and a $100,000,000 Canadian credit facility through a
syndicate of banks led by J.P. Morgan Bank Canada. Under the credit facilities, Forest, Canadian Forest
and certain of their subsidiaries are subject to certain covenants and financial tests, including restrictions
or requirements with respect to dividends, additional debt, liens, asset sales, investments, hedging
activities, mergers and reporting responsibilities. If the rating on Forest’s bank credit facilities is
downgraded, the available borrowing amount under the credit facilities would be determined by a
borrowing base subject to semi-annual re-determination, and the Company could be obligated to pledge
additional assets as collateral.

The Forest U.S. credit facility is secured by a lien on, and a security interest in, a portion of the
Company’s proved oil and gas properties and related assets in the United States and Canada, a pledge of
65% of the capital stock of Canadian Forest and its parent, 3189503 Canada Ltd., and a pledge of 100% of
the capital stock of Forest Pipeline Company.
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(3) LONG-TERM DEBT: (Continued)

At December 31, 2001, the outstanding borrowings under the U.S. credit facility were $19,000,000
with a weighted average annual interest rate of 3.92%. There were no outstanding borrowings under the
Canadian Forest credit facility as of December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2001, Forest had used the credit
facilities for letters of credit in the amount of $4,524,000 U.S. and $3,112,000 (CDN).

8% Senior Notes Due 2008:

In June 2001, the Company issued $200,000,000 principal amount of 8% Senior Notes Due 2008 (the
8% Notes Due 2008) at par for proceeds of $199,500,000 (net of related issuance costs). In October 2001,
the Company issued an additional $65,000,000 principal amount of 8% Notes Due 2008 at 99% of par for
proceeds of $63,550,000 (net of related issuance costs).

8% Senior Notes Due 2011:

In December 2001, the Company issued $160,000,000 principal amount of 8% Senior Notes Due 2011
(the 8% Notes Due 2011) at par for proceeds of $157,500,000 (net of related issuance costs).

8%1% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2007:

In September 1997 Canadian Forest completed an offering of $125,000,000 of 8%% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2007 (the 8%:% Notes), which were sold at 99.745% of par and guaranteed on a
senior subordinated basis by the Company. In February 1998 Canadian Forest issued $75,000,000 principal
amount of 8%% Notes, an add-on to the September 1997 offering.

The Company is required to recognize foreign currency translation gains or losses related to the 8%:%
Notes because the debt is denominated in U.S. dollars and the functional currency of Canadian Forest is
the Canadian dollar. As a result of the change in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S.
dollar during 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company reported noncash translation gains (losses) of
approximately $(7,872,000), $(7,102,000) and $10,561,000 respectively, in those years.

In 2001, the Company purchased $129,152,000 principal amount of 8% Notes at an average price of
102.8% of par value. In 2000, the Company purchased $7,600,000 principal amount of 8%:% Notes at an

average price of 94.0% of par value. As a result of these purchases, Forest recorded gains (losses) of
$(4,990,000) and $239,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

10¥:% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 20006:
In February 1999, Forest issued $100,000,000 principal amount of 10%:% Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2006 (the 10¥2% Notes) at 98.8% of par.

In December 2001, the Company purchased $8,820,000 principal amount of 10%2% Notes at 106.0% of
par value. In December 2000, the Company purchased $3,000,000 principal amount of 102% Notes at
102.3% of par value. As a result of these purchases, Forest recorded losses of $621,000 and $110,000 in
2001 and 2000, respectively.

11V4% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2003:

In September 1999 Forest redeemed the remaining principal amount of its 11%:% Notes at 103.792%
of par. As a result of this redemption, Forest recorded an extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt of
$598,000 in 1999.
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(4) INCOME TAXES:

The income tax expense (benefit) was different from amounts computed by applying the statutory
Federal income tax rate for the following reasons:

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)

Federal income tax at 35% of income before income

taxes and extraordinary item . ................. $ 66,126 47,836 5,994
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit . . 5,668 4,100 —
Adjustment for additional acquired net operating losses

and other tax assets . . ................ ... .... (31,670) — —

Change in the valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets, including an increase in the vajuation
allowance in 2001 for additional acquired net

operating losses and other tax assets of $31,670,000 . . 35,160 (55,833) (8,346)
Effect of higher effective rate on Canadian income

(JOS8) « v (440) 404 425
Canadian branch income taxable in both Canada and

United States . ......... .. .. . — — 409
Canadian Crown payments (net of Alberta Royalty Tax

Credit) .. ... 5,727 6,079 3261
Canadian resource allowance . . .. ................ (4,359) (6,781} (4,853)
Canadian non-deductible depletion and amortization . . 856 945 1,335
Canadian large corporation tax . ................. 562 513 314
Expiration of tax carryforwards . ................. 73 523 515
Nondeductible (nontaxable) foreign exchange (gains)

loSSes .« 339 2,100  (1,634)
Nondeductible merger costs. . . ................ .. — 4,318 —
Adjustment to deferred tax assets for filed returns and

other ... .. .. . 1,535 1,862 66

Total income tax expense (benefit) . .. ............. $ 79,577 6,066 (2,514)

Deferred income taxes generally result from recognizing income and expenses at different times for
financial and tax reporting. In the United States, the largest differences are the tax effect of the
capitalization of certain development, exploration and other costs under the full cost method of
accounting, recording proceeds from the sale of properties in the full cost pool, and the provision for
impairment of oil and gas properties for financial accounting purposes. In Canada, differences result in
part from accelerated cost recovery of oil and gas capital expenditures for tax purposes.
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(4) INCOME TAXES: (Continued)

The components of the net deferred tax liability by geographical segment at December 31, 2001 and
2000 are as follows:

December 31, 2001
United States Canada Total
(In Thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts . ........... $ 4,364 — 4,364
Investment in subsidiaries . . ............... 2,151 — 2,151
Accrual for medical and retirement benefits . . . . 2,968 227 3,195
Unrealized foreign exchange losses .......... — 2,459 2,459
Net operating loss carryforwards .. .......... 164,614 627 165,241
Capital loss carryforward . ................ — 3,646 3,646
Depletion carryforward . . . ................ 7,554 — 7,554
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward . . . 3,222 — 3,222
Other ... . .. 1,634 — 1,634
Total gross deferred tax assets . ........... 186,507 6,959 193,466
Less valuation allowance ... ............. (121,913)  (6,105) (128,018)
Net deferred tax assets . ................ 64,594 854 65,448
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment . ................. (19,691) (15,184) (34,875)
Unrealized gains on derivative contracts, net . . . (12,127) —  (12,127)
Deferred income on long term contracts . . . . .. — (1,302)  (1,302)
Other ... . .. .. ... . — (794) (794)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities . . ... ... .. (31,818) (17,280) (49,098)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ... ...... $ 32,776  (16,426) 16,350
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(4) INCOME TAXES: (Continved)

December 31, 20060

Deferred tax assets:
Property and equipment. ... ...............
Investment in subsidiaries .................
Accrual for medical and retirement benefits . . . .
Unrealized foreign exchange losses . .. ........
Net operating loss carryforward
Depletion carryforward ...................
Investment tax credit carryforwards. . .. ... .. ..
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward . . . .
Other . ..... .. ... .. .. . ., Ce

Total gross deferred tax assets. ... .........
Less valuation allowance. . ...............

Net deferred tax assets . . . ...............
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment. . . ....... ... ... ...
Deferred income on long term contracts . . .. . ..
Other ... ... . . .

Total gross deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) . . ... ... ..

United States Canada Total
(In Thousands)

$ 45,834 — 45834

2,366 — 2,366

2,920 (37) 2,883

— 2,542 2,542

............. 144,361 3,450 147,811
7,554 — 7,554

73 — 73

2,768 — 2,768

3,740 — 3,740

209,616 5,955 215,571
(90,316)  (2,542) (92,858)

119,300 3,413 122,713
—  (14,051) (14,051)
—  (3514) (3,514)
— (713)  (713)
.......... —  (18,278) (18,278)
$119,300  (14,865) 104,435

The net deferred tax assets (liabilities) are reflected in the accompanying balance sheets as follows:

December 31, 2001

Non-current deferred tax assets . ... ...........
Current deferred tax liabilities . ... ............
Non-current deferred tax liabilities. . ...........

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Non-current deferred tax assets .. .............
Current deferred tax liabilities . . ... ...........
Non-current deferred tax liabilities . . .. ...... ...

United States Canada Total
(In Thousands)
$ 43,930 — 43,930
(11,154) —  (11,154)
—  (16,426) (16,426)
........... $ 32,776 (16,426) 16,350
December 31, 2000
United States Canada Total
(In Thousands)
$119,300 — 119,300
—  (14,865) (14,865)
........... $119,300 (14,865)- 104,435

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)
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(4) INCOME TAXES: (Continued)

The net changes in the valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
were as follows:

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)

Increase (decrease) in the valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets, including an increase in the

valuation allowance in 2001 for additional acquired

net operating losses and other tax assets of

$31,670,000. . ... .. $35,160  (55,833) (8,346)
Decrease in the valuation allowance attributable to the

difference between book basis and tax basis of

acqUISItIONS . . . . v v i e — — (537)
Decrease in the valuation allowance attributable to

fresh start deferred tax assets recognized ......... —  (114,671) —
Increase (decrease) in the valuation allowance

attributable to extraordinary gains (losses) ........ — — 209
Net increase (decrease) in the valuation allowance . ... $35,160 (170,504) (8,674)

The Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT) credit carryforward available to reduce future U.S. Federal
regular taxes aggregated $3,222,000 at December 31, 2001. This amount may be carried forward
indefinitely. U.S. Federal regular and AMT net operating loss carryforwards at December 31, 2001 were
approximately $433,193,000 and $304,431,000, respectively, and will expire in the years indicated below:

Regular AMT
(In Thousands)
2003 .. e $ 22,359 —
2004 . . 82,713 28,869
200 L e 59,357 45,096
2006 . . e e e 26,370 14,996
2007 L e e e 27,802 7,992
2008 . e e 38,212 34,147
2009 . 32,325 16,342
2000 . e 33,043 48,009
200 L e 1,244 214
2002 e e 206 580
2007 e e e e 69,110 67,599
2008 L 39,143 40,587
2000 1,309 —

$433,193 304,431

AMT net operating loss carryforwards can be used to offset 90% of AMT income in future years.
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4y INCOME TAXES: (Continued)

Canadian net operating losses available to reduce future Canadian Federal income taxes were
approximately $1,506,000 ($2,399,000 CDN) at December 31, 2001 and will expire in 2007.

Canadian tax pools relating to the exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas
which are available to reduce future Canadian Federal income taxes aggregated approximately
$181,854,000 ($289,623,000 CDN) at December 31, 2001. These tax pool balances are deductible on a
declining balance basis ranging from 10% to 100% of the balance annually. The amounts may be carried
forward indefinitely.

The availability of some of the U.S. tax attributes to reduce current and future U.S. Federal taxable
income of the Company is subject to various limitations under the Internal Revenue Code. In particular,
the Company’s ability to utilize such tax attributes could be limited due to the occurrence of an “ownership
change” within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. “Ownership changes” occurred
in the Company in 1995 following the issuance of securities to Anschutz, in 1996 following the public stock
issuance, and in 2000 following the merger with Forcenergy. “Ownership changes” occurred in Forcenergy
in 2000 following its emergence from bankruptcy.

Under the general provisions of Section 382 of the Code, the Company’s ability to utilize substantially
all of Forest Oil’s net operating loss carryforwards will be subject to an annual limitation of approximately
$5,800,000 and the Company’s ability to utilize substantially all of Forcenergy’s built-in losses and net
operating loss carryforwards will be subject to an annual limitation of approximately $20,600,000. To the
extent of any net unrealized built-in gains at the time of an ownership change, the annual limitation can be
increased by (a) any gains recognized in the five years following an ownership change on the disposition of
certain assets, to the extent that the value of the assets disposed of exceeded their tax basis on the date of
the ownership change, or (b) any item of income which is properly taken into account in the five years
following the ownership change but which is attributable to periods before the ownership change. The
ability of the Company to fully utilize its net operating loss carryforwards may be limited by these
provisions. The Company has provided a valuation allowance for a portion of its net operating loss
carryforwards and other tax attributes that it estimates will not ultimately be realized due to the limitation
under Section 382.

(5) PREFERRED STOCK:

In March 2000, Forcenergy issued 40,000 shares of 14% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock (the
Preferred Stock) for net proceeds of approximately $38,800,000 as part of a rights offering to holders of
unsecured claims. The Preferred Stock was non-convertible, and dividends were payable quarterly in
additional shares of Preferred Stock. On December 7, 2000, in conjunction with the merger with
Forcenergy, the Company issued 1,514,004 shares of Common Stock in exchange for the 44,131
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock.

(6) COMMON STOCK:
Common Stock:

At December 31, 2001 the Company had 200,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $.10 per
share, authorized.
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(6) COMMON STOCK: (Continued)

During 2001, the Company purchased 2,074,300 shares of Common Stock for approximately
$55,803,000.

During 2000, the Company purchased 152,400 shares of Common Stock for approximately $2,818,000.
"The shares were retired in January 2001.

On December 7, 2000, in conjunction with the merger with Forcenergy, a 1-for-2 reverse stock split
was approved by the Company’s shareholders. Unless otherwise indicated, all share and per share amounts
in these financial statements have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to the 1-for-2 reverse stock split.

In August 1999, 4,500,000 shares of Common Stock were sold for $30.875 per share in a public
offering. The net proceeds to Forest from the issuance of shares totaled approximately $131,000,000 after
deducting issuance costs and underwriting fees.

Rights Agreement:

In October 1993, the Board of Directors adopted a shareholders’ rights plan (the Plan) and entered
into the Rights Agreement. The Company distributed one Preferred Share Purchase Right (the Rights) for
each outstanding share of the Company’s Common Stock. The Rights are exercisable only if a person or
group acquires 20% or more of the Company’s Common Stock or announces a tender offer which would
result in ownership by a person or group of 20% or more of the Common Stock. Each Right initially
entitles each shareholder to buy 1/100th of a share of a new series of Preferred Stock at an exercise price of
$60.00, subject to adjustment upon certain occurrences. Each 1/100th of a share of such new Preferred
Stock that can be purchased upon exercise of a Right has economic terms designed to approximate the
value of one share of Common Stock. The Rights will expire on October 29, 2003, unless extended or
terminated earlier. The Company has amended the Rights Agreement to exempt from the provisions of
the Rights Agreement certain shares of Common Stock held by Anschutz.

Warrants:

At December 31, 2001 the Company had outstanding 238,667 warrants to purchase shares of its
Common Stock (the 2004 Warrants). Each 2004 Warrant entitles the holder to purchase 0.8 shares of
Common Stock for $16.67, or an equivalent per share price of $20.84. The 2004 Warrants expire on
February 15, 2004.

At December 31, 2001 the Company had outstanding 238,287 warrants to purchase shares of its
Common Stock (the 2005 Warrants). Each 2005 Warrant entitles the holder to purchase 0.8 shares of
Common Stock for $20.83, or an equivalent per share price of $26.04. The 2005 Warrants expire on
February 15, 2005.

At December 31, 2001 the Company had outstanding 1,773,885 warrants to purchase shares of its
Common Stock (Subscription Warrants). Each Subscription Warrant entitles the holder to purchase 0.8
shares of Common Stock for $10.00, or an equivalent per share price of $12.50. The Subscription Warrants
are detachable and expire on March 20, 2010 or earlier upon notice of expiration by the Company if, after
March 20, 2004, the market price of the Common Stock has exceeded the exercise price of the Subscription
Warrants for a period of 30 consecutive trading days.
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(6) COMMON STOCK: (Continued)

During 2001 the Company issued 706 shares of Common Stock for approximately $17,000 upon
exercise of warrants. During 2000, 22,604 shares of Common Stock were issued for approximately $296,000
upon exercise of warrants.

Restricted Stock Awards:

During 2000, the Company issued 32,486 shares of restricted Common Stock to officers and
employees as a portion of the bonuses earned pursuant to the Business Unit Annual Incentive Plan for the
year ended December 31, 1999. All of the shares issued vested immediately upon issuance, but are subject
to a two-year restriction on transfer.

In 1999, the Company entered into restricted stock agreements with two executives covering 20,168
shares of Common Stock. The shares carry restrictions as to forfeiture, transfer and encumbrance. The
restrictions lapse 20% annually beginning January 1, 2000.

During 2000 and 1999, the Company issued 4,393 and 5,497 shares of restricted common stock,
respectively, to members of its board of directors as payment of a portion of their annual retainer. All of
the shares issued vested immediately upon issuance but are subject to a two-year restriction on transfer.

Stock Options:

In 2001, the Company adopted the Forest Oil Corporation 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001
Plan”) under which stock options, restricted stock and other awards may be granted to employees,
consultants and non-employee directors. The aggregate number of shares of Common Stock which the
Company may issue under the 2001 Plan may not exceed 1,800,000 shares. The exercise price of an option
shall not be less than the fair market value of one share of Common Stock on the date of grant. Options
under the 2001 Plan generally vest in increments of 25% on each of the first four anniversary dates of the
date of grant.

The Company had a Stock Incentive Plan (the “1996 Plan”) that expired on March 5, 2002 under
which non-qualified stock options and restricted stock were granted to employees and director stock
awards were granted to non-employee directors. The aggregate number of shares of Common Stock which
the Company could issue under this plan could not exceed an amount equal to the difference, if any,
between (i) 10% of the total number of shares then outstanding plus the total number of shares issuable at
the date of grant pursuant to outstanding rights, warrants, convertible or exchangeable securities or other
options, and (ii) 1,800,000 shares of Common Stock. The exercise price of an option could not be less than
85% of the fair market value of one share of Common Stock on the date of grant. Options under the 1996
Plan generally vested in increments of 20% on the date of grant and on each of the first four anniversary
dates of the date of the grant.

On February 15, 2000, Forcenergy adopted the Forcenergy 1999 Stock Plan. On December 7, 2000, in
connection with the merger, the Company assumed the obligations of the plan and all options outstanding
on that date became fully vested. No additional awards will be granted under the Forcenergy 1999 Stock
Plan.
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(6) COMMON STOCK: (Continued)

The following table summarizes the activity in the Company’s stock-based compensation plans for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999:

Weighted

Average Number of

Number of  Exercise Shares

Shares Price Exercisable

Outstanding at December 31, 1998 . ........... 037,680 $28.84 499,150
Granted at fairvalue . . . .................. 626,500 14.94
Granted in excess of fairvalue . .. ........... 384,000 20.00
Exercised .. ...... ... ... ... (73,000)  19.58
Cancelled .. ... ........ .. ... . .. (60,950) 27.19

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 ............ 1,814,230 22.63 782,590
Granted at fairvalue . . .. ................. 2,422,011 22.05
Granted below fairvalue . . ................ 252,500 14.06
Exercised ........ ... ... . .. e (686,004)  17.06
Cancelled .. ...... ... .. . .. . .. (68,964) 22.38

Outstanding at December 31, 2000 ............ 3,733,773 22.70 2,033,573
Granted at fairvalue . . . .................. 929,650 26.63
Exercised .. ...... .. ... .. (573,805) 13.99
Cancelled .......... .. .. .. .. ... ... (127,276)  28.04

Outstanding at December 31,2001 ............ 3,962,342 $24.71 2,072,342

The fair value of each option granted in 2001, 2000 and 1999 was estimated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The following assumptions were used to compute the weighted average fair market
value of options granted:

2001 2000 1999

Expected life of options. . . .. 5 years 5 years S years
Risk free interest rates . . ... 3.52%-4.91% 5.14%-6.68% 5.06%-6.31%
Estimated volatility . . ... ... 60.61% 60.64% 59.29%
Dividend yield ........... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average fair market

value of options granted

during the year ......... $14.79 $12.95 $9.16
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(6) COMMON STOCK: (Continued)

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Options Cutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Number Average Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
Range of as of Contractual Exercise as of Exercise

Exercise Prices 12/31/2001 Life Price 12/31/2001 Price
$12.50-14.88 822,692 7.72 $13.66 630,092 $13.29
16.75-22.50 514,600 7.13 2042 357,300 20.60
23.30-25.00 547,650 9.93 24.97 5,750 24.13
25.25-29.50 482,650 7.58 27.31 267,900 27.57
28.75 1,222,100 8.81 29.75 529,250 29.75
29.88-50.00 372,650 6.83 34.80 282,050 35.46
3,962,342 8_}§ $24.71 2,072,342 $23.65

Stock Purchase Plan:

In June 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, under which the
Company is authorized to issue up to 125,000 shares of Common Stock. Employees who are regularly
scheduled to work more than 20 hours per week and more than five months in any calendar year may
participate in this plan. Under the terms of the plan, employees can choose each quarter to have up to 15%
of their annual base earnings withheld to purchase Common Stock, up to a limit of $25,000 of Common
Stock per calendar year. The purchase price of the Common Stock is 85% of the lower of its
beginning-of-quarter or end-of-quarter market price. The employee is restricted from selling the shares of
Common Stock purchased under the Plan for a period of six months after purchase. Under this plan, the
Company sold 19,140 shares, 6,735 shares and 2,445 shares of Common Stock to employees in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

The fair value of each stock purchase right granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following assumptions were used to compute the weighted
average fair market value of purchase rights granted:

2001 2600 1999
Expected option life . . ... ....... 3 months 3 months 3 months
Risk free interest rates . .. ....... 1.72% to 4.28% 5.83% to 6.50% 4.65% to 4.86%
Estimated volatility ............ 60.61% 60.64% 57.93%
Dividend yield . . . ........ ... ... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average fair market value ‘
of purchase rights granted . ... .. $9.60 $7.00 $7.62

On February 15, 2000, Forcenergy adopted the Forcenergy 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
under which Forcenergy was authorized to issue up to 384,000 shares of common stock to employees who
were full-time employees, or part-time employees meeting certain criteria. On December 7, 2000, in
connection with the merger, the Company assumed the outstanding obligations of the plan through
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(6) COMMON STOCK: (Continued)

December 31, 2000, and the plan was terminated. The purchase price of the stock was 85% of the lower of
the market price at the beginning or end of each semi-annual peried. Under this plan, 26,377 shares of
Common Stock were sold to employees in 2000.

The fair value of each stock purchase right granted during 2000 was estimated using the Black-Sholes
option pricing model. The following assumptions were used to compute the weighted average fair market
value of the purchase rights granted:

2000
Expected option life .......... ... ... ... ... . L. 6 months
Risk free interestrates . ... ...... ... ... i 6.12% to 6.50%
Estimated volatility . . ... ... .. 60.64%
Dividend yield . ..... ... ... . . 0.0%
Weighted average fair market value of purchase rights granted . .. $5.08

The Company applies APB Opinion 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its plans.
Accordingly, no compensation cost is recognized for options granted at a price equal to or greater than the
fair market value of the Common Stock. Compensation cost is recognized over the vesting period of
options granted at a price less than the fair market value of the Common Stock at the date of the grant. No
compensation cost is recognized for stock purchase rights that qualify under Section 423 of the Internal
Revenue Code as a noncompensatory plan.

Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based compensation plans been determined using
the fair value of the options at the grant date, the Company’s pro forma net earnings and earnings per
common share would be as follows:

Years Ended December 32,

2001 2600 1999
(In Thousands Except Per Share
Amounts)

Net earnings:

Asreported .. ... ... $103,743 130,608 19,043

Proforma ......... ... . ... i, $ 92,187 113,986 14,321
Basic earnings per share:

Asreported . .. ... $ 218 2.73 0.79

Proforma .......... ..t iiiiin.. $ 193 2.37 0.60
Diluted earnings per share:

Asreported . . ... e § 211 2.64 0.79

Proforma .......... ... ... ... . ... ... $ 187 2.29 0.59
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(7y EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

The Company has a qualified defined benefit pension plan which covers its employees in the United
States (Pension Plan). The Pension Plan has been curtailed and all benefit accruals were suspended
effective May 31, 1991. The Company also has a non-qualified unfunded supplementary retirement plan
(the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan) that provides certain officers with defined retirement
benefits in excess of qualified plan limits imposed by Federal tax law. Benefit accruals were suspended
effective May 31, 1991 in connection with suspension of benefit accruals under the Pension Plan. Amounts
for both the Pension Plan and the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan are combined in the “Pension
Benefits” column below.

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans described above, the Company also accrues expected
costs of providing postretirement benefits to employees, their beneficiaries and covered dependents in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” (SFAS No. 106). These amounts, which consist primarily of
medical benefits payable on behalf of retirees in the United States, are presented in the “Postretirement
Benefits” column below.

The following tables set forth the plans’ benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets and funded status
at December 31, 2001 and 2000:

Benefit Obligations:

Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2001 2000 2001 2000
(In Thousands) (In Thousands)
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of
theyear ........ ... ... . . .. ... $26,689 26,377 7,176 6,595
Service cost ... ... — — 482 219
Interest COSt . ... vt i i i 1,944 1,974 431 507
Actuarial (gain) loss ............ ... ... ..., 1,695 691  (804) 248
Benefitspaid ......... ... . ... ... L. (2,309) (2,353) (452) (471)
Retiree contributions. . . . .................. — —_ 69 78

Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year  $28,019 26,689 6,902 7,176
Fair Value of Plan Assets:

Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2001 2000 2001 2000
(In Thousands) (In Thousands)
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year.. $22,208 23,815 — —
Actual return on plan assets. . .. ... ... ... .. 392 618 — —
Plan participants’ contribution . .............. — — 69 78
Employer contribution . .. .................. 1,324 128 383 393
Benefitspaid. . ............... ... ... ..., (2,309) (2,353) (452) (471)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year ... $21,615 22,208 — —
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(7) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)
Funded Status:

Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2001 2000 2001 2000
(In Theusands) (In Thousands)
Excess of projected benefit obligation over plan
BSSELS « v vt e $(6,405) (4,480) (6,902) (7,176)
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) loss ........... 8,588 5,603 (211) 592
Net amount recognized . ............. .. ... $2,183 1,123 (7,113) (6,584)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
Prepaid pension cost ... ........ . ... ... .. $2593 1,542 — —
Accrued benefit liability . . ... ........ ... ... (6,405) (4,480) (7,113) (6,584)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . . .. 5,995 4,061 — —
Net amount recognized . .................. $2,183 1,123 (7,113) (6,584)

The following tables set forth the components of the net periodic cost of the plans and the underlying
weighted average actuarial assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2001 2060 1999 E@E 2000 ﬂ_@@ﬂ
(In Thousands) (In Thousands)
Service CoSt. . v v vt $§ — — — 482 219 269
Interest COSt . . . v oo i 1,944 1,974 1,931 431 507 478
Expected return on plan assets. .. .......... (1,921) (2,032) (2,165) — — —
Recognized actuarial loss . .. .............. 240 34 22 1 - 39
Total net periodic expense (benefit) ......... $ 263 24) (2) 912 726 786
Discountrate ............c.vviiinenn. 7.00%  750%  8.00% 7.00% 7.50% 8.00%
Expected return on plan assets. .. .......... 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% nj/a  n/a n/a

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
postretirement benefits. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would
have the following effects for 2001:

Postretirement Benefits

1% Increase 1% Decrease

(In Thousands)
Effect on service and interest cost components. .. ....... $ 185,000 $(146,000)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation ............ $1,056,000  $(853,000)
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(7) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)

For measurement purposes, a 7.1% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health
care benefits was assumed for 2001. The rate was assumed to decrease .8% per year until it reaches 5.5%
in 2003 and to remain at that level thereafter.

As a result of suspension of benefit accruals under the Pension Plan and the Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan, the Company records as a liability the unfunded pension liabilities attributable to these
plans. The following changes in the minimum unfunded pension liability were recorded as adjustments to
other comprehensive income (in thousands):

2001 . oo $(4,251)
2000 . $(2,072)
1999 .o $ 493

Canadian Forest has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan (the Canadian Defined Benefit
Plan). Benefits under the Canadian Defined Benefit Plan are based on years of service, the employee’s
average annual compensation during the highest consecutive sixty month period of pensionable service and
the employee’s age at retirement.

The following tables set forth the estimated benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets and funded
status of the Canadian Defined Benefit Plan at December 31, 2001 and 2000:

Benefit Obligations:

2001 2000

(In Thousands of
Canadian Dollars)

Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year . ....... $4,959 6,062
SEIVICE COSt . . .o it 379 326
Interest COSt. . ... i 336 362
Actuarial 1oSs . . . . .ot 186 220
Benefits paid . ... ... ... . L (600)  (463)

Benefit obligation settled on conversion of employees to members
of the defined contribution plan . ......... ... ... ... ...

Projected benefit obligation at the end of theyear .. ... ........ $5,260 4,959

|
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(7) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)
Fair Value of Plan Assets:

2001 2009

(In Thousands of
Canadian Dollars)

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year . .. ........... $7,180 9,031
Actual returnonplan assets . . ...... ... i 246 524
Employer contributions . ......... ... . . i i, 65 81
Benefits paid .. ........ ... (600) (463)
Settlement payments on conversion to defined contribution plan . . . — (1,984)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of theyear ............... $6,900 7,189

Funded Status:

2001 2000

(In Thousands of
Canadian Dollars)

Excess of assets over projected benefit obligation. . ............ $1,640 2,230
Unamortized transitional obligation asset. . .................. (2,046) (2,272)
Unamortized net actuarial loss .. ............ .. ... ........ 615 165
~ Prepaid pension cost ... ... ... $ 209 123

On April 1, 2000, a defined contribution plan (the Canadian Defined Contribution Plan) was
introduced and many of Canadian Forest’s employees elected to be covered under the new plan.
Employees who did not elect to be covered under the Canadian Defined Contribution Plan continue to be
covered under the Canadian Defined Benefit Plan. The Company recorded a curtailment gain of $323,000
for the decrease in the projected benefit obligation related to those employees who are no longer covered
by the Canadian Defined Benefit Plan. :

The following table sets forth the components of net periodic pension cost and the underlying
weighted average actuarial assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2001 2000 and 1999. The
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(7) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)

amounts shown include costs of both of the Canadian plans because the surplus attributable to the defined
benefits plan is being used to meet the obligations of both plans:

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands of Canadian
Dollars)

Service COSt .« .ot $ 379 326 400
Interest COSt . . ..o v it e 336 362 426
Expected return on plan assets . ................... (509)  (525) 47D
Amortization of transition asset . ... ................ (227)  (246) (68)
Recognized actuarial gains. . ............ ... ... .... — — (138)
Settlement gain. . .............. .. . . i — (323) —
Total net periodic pension expense (benefit) ... ........ $ (21) (406) 143
Discountrate . .......... . .ttt 6.70% 725% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets .. .................. 7.00% 7.00% 6.00%

Retirement Savings Plans:

The Company sponsors a qualified tax-deferred savings plan for its employees in the United States in
accordance with the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Effective January 1, 2002,
employees may defer up to 80% of their compensation, subject to certain limitations. Prior thereto,
employees could defer up to 15% of their compensation, subject to certain limitations. The Company
matches employee contributions up to 5% of eligible employee compensation. The expense associated with
the Company’s contributions was $882,000 in 2001, $578,000 in 2000 and $518,000 in 1999. In each of these
years, the Company matched employee contributions in cash.

The Company also sponsored a qualified tax-deferred savings plan in accordance with the provisions
of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for employees formerly employed by Forcenergy. This
plan was merged into the Forest Qil 401(k) plan effective August 1, 2001. Employees could.defer up to
15% of their compensation, subject to certain limitations. The Company matched employee contributions
up to 50% of the first 5% of the employee compensation. The expense associated with the Company’s
contributions was $125,000 and $183,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Canadian Forest also provides a savings plan which is available to all of its employees. Employees may
contribute up to 4% of their salary, subject to certain limitations, with Canadian Forest matching the

employee contribution in full. The expense associated with Canadian Forest’s contributions to the plan was
$160,000 in 2001, $153,000 in 2000 and $150,000 in 1999.

The Company has a deferred compensation plan pursuant to which certain executives may defer a
portion of their compensation after contributing the maximum allowable amount to the Retirement
Savings Plan. The deferred compensation plan is not funded, but the Company records a liability for
matching contributions and accrues interest on each executive’s account balance at the rate of 1% per
month. The expense associated with the Company’s matching contributions and interest was $115,000 in
2001, $80,000 in 2000 and $78,000 in 1999.
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(7) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)
Life Insurance:

The Company provides life insurance benefits for certain key employees and retirees under split
dollar life insurance plans. Under the life insurance plans, the Company is assigned a portion of the
benefits which is designed to recover the premiums paid.

(8) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
Interest Rate Swaps:

In connection with the issuance of $200,000,000 principal amount of 8% Senior Notes due 2008, the
Company entered into an interest rate swap under which a variable rate based on the six months London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 195 basis points will be paid in exchange for a fixed rate of 8% on
$100,000,000 principal amount over the term of the note issue. In connection with the issuance of
$160,000,000 principal amount of 8% Senior Notes due 2011, the Company entered into an interest rate
swap under which a variable rate based on LIBOR plus 181.25 basis points will be paid in exchange for a
fixed rate of 8% on $50,000,000 principal amount over the term of the note issue.

At December 31, 2001, with respect to the interest rate swaps, the Company had a derivative asset of
$5,461,000 (of which $5,200,000 was classified as current), a long-term derivative liability of $421,000, a
long-term deferred tax asset of $160,000, a deferred tax liability of $2,075,000 (of which $1,976,000 was
classified as current), and accumulated other comprehensive income of $3,125,000.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company recognized net gains of $1,163,000 under these
agreements, which were recorded as reductions of interest expense.

Energy Swaps and Collars:

Forest periodically hedges a portion of its oil and gas production through swap and collar agreements.
The purpose of the hedges is to provide a measure of stability to the Company’s cash flows in an
environment of volatile oil and gas prices and to manage the exposure to commodity price risk.

All of the Company’s energy swaps and collar agreements and a portion of its basis swaps in place at
December 31, 2001 have been designated as cash flow hedges. At December 31, 2001 the Company had a
current derivative asset of $26,432,000, a current derivative liability of approximately $1,548,000, a current
deferred tax liability of approximately $10,211,000 and accumulated other comprehensive income of
approximately $16,169,000.
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(8) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: (Continued)

The Company’s gains (losses) under these agreements were:

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges ......... $22,781 (129,091) (8,684)
Derivatives not designated as cash flow hedges. . ... .. 11,932 — —
Total gain (I0SS) . ..t vv e $34,713  (129,091) (8,684)

In a typical swap agreement, the Company receives the difference between a fixed price per unit of
production and a price based on an agreed-upon third party index if the index price is lower. If the index
price is higher, the Company pays the difference. By entering into swap agreements the Company
effectively fixes the price that it will receive in the future for the hedged production. The Company’s
current swaps are settled on a monthly basis. As of December 31, 2001 Forest had the following swaps in
place:

Natural Gas Oit

Average Barrels Average

BBTU’s Hedged Price per Hedged Price
per Day  per MMBTU Day per BBL
First Quarter 2002 . ............... 75.0 $3.09 11,500 $23.04
Second Quarter 2002 .. ............ 75.0 $2.82 11,500 $22.89
Third Quarter 2002 ............... 65.0 $3.33 10,000 $22.44
Fourth Quarter 2002 . ............. 21.9 $3.33 10,000 $22.22

The Company also enters into collar agreements with third parties. A collar agreement is similar to a
swap agreement, except that the Company receives the difference between the floor price and the index
price only if the index price is below the floor price, and the Company pays the difference between the
ceiling price and the index price only if th= index price is above the ceiling price. Collars are also settled in
cash, either on a monthly basis or at the end of their terms. By entering into collars the Company
effectively provides a floor for the price taat it will receive for the hedged production; however, the collar
also establishes a maximum price that the Company will receive for the hedged production if prices
increase above the ceiling price. The Company enters into collars during periods of volatile commodity
prices in order to protect against a significant decline in prices in exchange for forgoing the benefit of price
increases in excess of the ceiling price of the hedged production. As of December 31, 2001, the Company
had the following collars in place:

Natural Gas

Average Floor Price  Average Ceiling Price BBTU’s Per
per MMBTU per MMBTU Day

First Quarter 2002 .. ....... $4.00 $8.05 10.0

The Company also uses basis swaps in connection with natural gas swaps to fix the differential price
between the NYMEX price and the index price at which the hedged gas is sold. At December 31, 2001
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(8) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: (Continued)

there were basis swaps designated as cash flow hedges in place with weighted average volumes of 55.0
BBTU’s per day in 2002. At December 31, 2001 there were basis swaps not designated as cash flow hedges
in place with weighted average volumes of 10.3 BBTU’s per day in 2002.

The Company is exposed to risks associated with swap and collar agreements arising from movements
in the prices of oil and natural gas and from the unlikely event of non-performance by the counterparties
to the swap and collar agreements.

Set forth below is the estimated fair value of certain financial instruments, along with the methods and
assumptions used to estimate such fair values as of December 31, 2001:

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable:

The carrying amount of these instruments approximates fair value due to their short maturity.

Senior Subordinated Notes:

The fair value of the Company’s 8%% Notes was approximately $65,462,000, based upon quoted
market prices of the notes. The fair value of the Company’s 102% Notes was approximately $93,471,000,
based upon quoted market prices of the Notes.

Senior Notes:

The fair value of the Company’s 8% Notes Due 2008 was approximately $265,663,000 based upon
quoted market prices for the notes. The fair value of the Company’s 8% Notes Due 2011 was
approximately $158,800,000, based upon quoted market prices for the Notes.

Interest rate swap agreements:

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate swap agreements was a gain of approximately $5,040,000
based on the discounted intrinsic value of the derivatives.
Energy swap agreements:

The fair value of the Company’s energy swap agreements was a gain of approximately $23,734,000,
based upon the discounted intrinsic value of the derivatives.
Energy collar agreements:

The fair value of the Company’s energy collar agreements was a gain of approximately $1,306,000,
based upon the discounted intrinsic value and option value of the derivatives.
Basis swap agreements:

The fair value of the Company’s basis swap agreements was a loss of approximately $156,000, based
upon the discounted intrinsic value of the derivatives.
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(3) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Beginning in 1995, the Company consummated certain transactions with The Anschutz Corporation
and related entities (Anschutz) pursuant to which Anschutz acquired a significant ownership position in
the Company. As of December 31, 200 Anschutz owned 32.5% of Forest’s outstanding common shares
and, in addition, holds options to purchase 5,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 522,216
shares of common stock.

In 1998, the Company purchased certain oil and gas assets from Anschutz for $67,565,000. Included in
the purchase were exploration concessions in Tunisia and South Africa. Forest and Anschutz subsequently
agreed to acquire additional concessions in Tunisia and South Africa. Effective October 1, 1999, Forest and
Anschutz entered into an agreement under which Anschutz repurchased 30% of the original Tunisia and
South Africa blocks sold to Forest and Forest purchased 20% of the new Tunisia and South Africa
concessions from Anschutz. Consideration was based on the original purchase price paid to Anschutz by
Forest and based on actual costs incurred by the respective parties in obtaining the new concessions. On
April 9, 2001 Forest and Anschutz entered into an agreement under which Anschutz purchased Forest’s
30% interest in the Tunisia concessions for $450,000 and an overriding royalty interest. As a result of these
agreements, Forest has a 70% interest in the two South African concessions and a 1.25% overriding royalty
interest in the two Tunisia concessions. J'orest is the operator of the South Africa concession blocks and is
reimbursed by Anschutz for general, technical and administrative overhead.

In August 2001, the Company corn: pleted a joint exploration agreement with Anschutz Exploration
Corporation (AEC) concerning propertizs in the Copper River Basin in Alaska. AEC held a 100% interest
in an exploration license issued by the State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources granting
exploration rights to approximately 400,)00 acres in the Copper River Basin. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement executed by the Company and AEC in August 2001, AEC assigned to the Company a 50%
interest in this license and the Company and AEC agreed to jointly acquire, explore, develop, produce and
market the production from the lands covered by this license and other lands included in a defined area of
mutual interest. Under the agreement, the parties will bear proportionally to their working interest in any
license or lease acquired in the designited area of mutual interest a four percent of 8/8ths overriding
royalty interest in favor of AEC. Under the terms of the license and the joint exploration agreement, the
Company and AEC are required to expend approximately $1.42 million in exploration expenditures during
the term of the license. In 2001, the Company reimbursed AEC $233,566 for its proportionate share of the
exploration and other costs incurred to date.

(10) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Future rental payments for office facilities and equipment under the remaining terms of
noncancelable operating leases are $3,279,000, $3,044,000, $3,049,000, $3,032,000 and $1,398,908 for the
years ending December 31, 2001 through 2005, respectively.

Net rental payments applicable to exploration and development activities and capitalized in the oil
and gas property accounts aggregated $6,343,000 in 2001, $4,021,000 in 2000 and $3,144,000 in 1999. Net
rental payments charged to expense amounted to $8,241,000 in 2001, $7,011,000 in 2000 and $4,806,000 in
1999. Rental payments include the short-term lease of vehicles. There are no leases which are accounted
for as capital leases.
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(10) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES: (Continued)

. A significant portion of Canadian Forest’s natural gas production is sold through the ProMark
Netback Pool. At December 31, 2001, the ProMark Netback Pool had entered into fixed price contracts to
sell natural gas at the following quantities and weighted average prices:

Natural Gas

Sales Price
BCF per MCF

2002 .. e 55 $2.74 CDN
2003 55 $2.85 CDN
2004 ... 55 8295 CDN
2005 ... 5.5 $3.07 CDN
2006 ... e 5.5 $3.19 CDN
2007 5.5 $3.31 CDN
2008 .. 5.5 $3.44 CDN
2009 .. 3.6 $4.17 CDN
2010 .. 1.7 $6.46 CDN
2011 L 0.8 $6.82 CDN

Canadian Forest, as one of the producers in the ProMark Netback Pool, is obligated to deliver a
portion of this gas. In 2001 Canadian Forest supplied 39% of the gas for the ProMark Netback Pool.

In addition to its commitments to the ProMark Netback Pool, Canadian Forest has contracts to sell
.6 BCF of natural gas annually from 2002 through 2006 at prices increasing ratably from $3.68 CDN per
MCF in 2002 to $4.27 CDN per MCF in 2006.

As part of ProMark’s gas marketing activities, ProMark has entered into fixed price contracts to
purchase and to resell natural gas. At December 31, 2001, ProMark’s trading operations had the following
purchase and sales commitments in place for 2002 and 2003:

Natural Gas
Purchase Price Sales Price
@ per MCF per MCF
2002 . e e 24  $5.83 CDN $5.88 CDN
2003 L e 0.6 $4.65 CDN $4.93 CDN

The Company could be exposed to loss in the event that a counterparty to these agreements failed to
perform in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, is a party to various legal actions. In the opinion of
management, none of these actions, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.
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(11) SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited):

First Second Third
Quarter Quarter Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)

2001()

REVENMUE . . vttt it it et e e e e e $367,948 275,599 201,113 173,719
Earnings (loss) from operations . ..................... $155,373 75,336 22,291 (8,627)
Earning (loss)before extraordinary item................. $ 81,285 52,179 2,367 (26,477)
Net earnings (loss). .. ... . i $ 81,285 50,589 1,540 (29,671)
Basic earnings (loss) per share before extraordinary item . ... $§  1.68 1.08 05 (.56)
Basic earnings (loss) pershare . ...................... $§ 1.68 1.05 03 (.63)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share before extraordinary item .. § 1.60 1.04 05 (.56)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ..................... $ 160 1.01 .03 (.63)
2000

REVENUE . .ttt i s e $176,984 197,308 230,485 308,281
Earnings from operations . . ... ... ... ... oL $ 44434 44214 67325 46,315
Netearnings ... ....co vttt $ 22,451 18,823 33,794 55,540
Net earnings attributable to common stock . ............. $ 22,280 17,423 32334 54,403
Basicearnings pershare. ........... ... ... ... . . ... $ 48 38 70 1.16
Diluted earnings pershare ... ......... .. ... ... .... $ 48 37 67 1.13

(1) The fourth quarter of 2001 includes an impairment of international oil and gas properties of
$18,072,000 (311,052,000 net of tax), an impairment of contract value of $3,239,000 ($1,891,000 net of
tax) related to the netback pool administered by ProMark and $10,560,000 ($6,458,000 net of tax) of
expense related to write off of 100% of Enron-related assets.
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(12) BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS:

Segment information has been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information (Statement
No. 131). Forest has six reportable segments: oil and gas operations in the Gulf of Mexico (GCM)
Offshore, Gulf Coast Onshore, Western United States, Alaska and Canada, and marketing and processing
operations conducted by ProMark in Canada. The segments were determined based upon the type of
operations in each segment and the geographical location of each segment. The segment data presented
below was prepared on the same basis as the consolidated Forest financial statements.

Year ended December 31, 2001

Oil and Gas Operations

Marketing
Gulf and
GOM Ceast Total Processing Total

Offshore Omnshore Western Alaska U.s. Canada Total Canada  Company
(In Thousands)

Revenue . . ... ........... $435,413 62,383 78,356 82,655 058,807 57,146 715,953 302,426 1,018,379
Expenses:

Marketing and processing . . . . . — 1,186 — — 1,186 — 1,186 298,876 300,062
Oil and gas production . . . . . .. 88,492 20,176 23,766 38,021 170,455 15,795 186,250 — 186,250
General and administrative . . . . 11,966 3,094 4,135 4,932 24,127 5,046 29,173 1,341 30,514
Depreciation and depletion . . . . 153,041 14,680 16,282 18,117 202,120 17,664 219,784 1,857 221,641
Earnings from operations . . . . . $181,914 23,247 34,173 21,585 260,919 18,641 279,560 352 279,912
Capital expenditures . . ... ... $265,328 51,208 45333 106,260 468,129 63,193 531,322 — 531,322
Property and equipment, net . . . $501,640 289,119 211,905 223,099 1,225,763 233,578 1,459,341 — 1,459,341
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Earnings before income taxes and extraordinary item:

Earnings from operations for reportable segments
Administrative asset depreciation . ........ .. ... ... oo
Otherexpense, Net. . ... ... .o i

Merger and seismic licensing expense

Translation loss on subordinated debt

Interest expense. . ... ... .. v
Impairment of international oil and gas properties
Impairment of contract value . .............. ... ... .. .. ...,

Realized gain on derivative instruments, net

Earnings before income taxes aad extraordinary item

Capital expenditures:

Reportable segments .. ........ .. .. i e
International interesSts . . ... .. ... . .. . e
Administrative assets and other ........ e

Total capital expenditures . . .. ............. ...,

Property and equipment, net:

Reportable segments .. ..... ... ... ... ...
International interests .. .... ...... .. ... i

89

Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net

(Im Thousands)

$ 279,912
(4,392)
(9,592)
(9,836)

(49,910)
(18,072)
(3,239)
(7.872)
11,556
376

$_188.931

$ 531,322
33,339
4,527

$ 569,188

$1,459,341
51,612
5,947

31,516,900
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(12) BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS: (Continued).
Year ended December 31, 2080

Qil and Gas Operations

Marketing
Gulf and
GOM Coast Total Processing Total
Offshore Onshore Western Alaska U.S. Canada Total Canada  Company
(In Thousands)

Revenue . . .............. $359,843 49302 95442 62,882 567,469 58,570 626,039 287,019 913,058
Expenses:
Marketing and processing . . . . . — 901 — — 901 — 901 284,138 285,039
Oil and gas production. . . . ... 64,862 11885 26,807 23,877 127,431 12,787 140,218 — 140,218
General and administrative . . . . 16,272 4,559 6,083 3,220 30,134 4,060 34,194 1,386 35,580
Depreciation and depletion . . . . 123,020 20,576 27,158 20,148 190,902 18,056 208,958 2,227 211,185
Earnings (loss) from operations . $155689 11,381 35394 15,637 218,101 23,667 241,768 (732) 241,036
Capita] expenditures . . ... ... $218,540 10,083 25504 58,085 312,212 50,802 363,014 — 363,014
Property and equipment, net . . . $515973 257336 199,456 135528 1,108,293 202,941 1,311,234 — 1,311,234

Information for Forest’s reportable segments relates to the Company’s 2000 consolidated totals as
follows:

(In Thousands)

Earnings before income taxes and extraordinary item:

Earnings from operations for reportable segments . .. ............ $ 241,036
Administrative asset depreciation .. ........... ... .. .. . 0 (1,295)
Other inCome, NEt . . ... ottt it et et et e 1,757
Merger and seismic licensing exXpense . .. ..........c....o.ouveo.n (31,577)
Interest €XPense . . . .. .ottt e (60,269}
Impairment of international oil and gas properties . . . ............ (5,876)
Translation loss on subordinated debt . .. ..................... (7,102)
Earnings before income taxes and extraordinary item . . ........... $ 136,674

Capital expenditures:

Reportable segments ... ... ...t $ 363,014
International INtEreStS . . . . . v v it e 25,024
Administrative assets and other . ........ .. .. ... ... ... .. . ... 1,954
Total capital expenditures . . . ........... ... $ 389,992
Property and equipment, net:

Reportable segments ... ....... ... it $1,311,234
International interests .. .......... ... tiiit et 40,432
Administrative assets, net and other .. ....................... 8,090
Total property and equipment, net .......................... $1,359,756
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(12) BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS: (Continued)
Year ended December 31, 1999

Oil and Gas Operations

Marketing
Gulf and
GOM Zoast Total Processing Total

Offshore Onshore Western Alaska u.s. Canada Total Canada  Company
(In Thousands)

Revenue . ............... $ 81,478 10,525 30,413 — 152416 42072 194,488 165,636 360,124
Expenses:

Marketing and processing . . . . . . —_ — — — — — —. 162,617 162,617
Oil and gas production .. ... .. 14,598 14,899 6,417 — 35914 13,231 49,145 — 49,145
General and administrative . . . . . 3,790 3,580 2,542 _ 9,912 3,391 13,303 2,059 15,362
Depreciation and depletion . . . . . 41,904 18,331 8,936 — 69,171 15,726 84,897 2,321 87,218
Earnings (loss) from operations . . § 21,186 3715 12,518 — 37,419 9,724 47,143 (1,361) 45,782
Capital expenditures . . . . ... .. $ 28,744 35201 6,837 — 70,782 42,665 113,447 — 113,447
Property and equipment, net . . . . $420,860 277,025 207,168 96,900 1,001,953 178,561 1,180,514 — 1,180,514

Information for Forest’s reportable: segments relates to the Company’s 1999 consolidated totals as
follows: ‘

(In Thousands)

Eamings before income taxes and extraordinary item:

Earnings from operations for reportable segments . . ............. $ 45,782
Administrative asset depreciation .............. ... ... . ..... (972)
Other income, Net . . . ... .. it 2,629
INterest eXPEnSE . . . . .o vttt (40,873)
Translation gain on subordinated debt . .. .......... ... ... ... 10,561
Earnings before income taxes and extraordinary item . . ........... § 17,127

Capital expenditures:

Reportable segments ... ...........outiniitinii $ 113,447
International Interests . .. ... ...ttt e 8,905
Administrative assets and other . .......... ... ... ... . .. ... 2,731
Total capital expenditures . . . ....... . ... . $ 125,083
Property and equipment, net:

Reportable segments . ........... ... ... i $1,180,514
International INTErestS . . .. . o .t ittt i e e 21,493
Administrative assets, net and other . ........................ 7,702
Total property and equipment, net .......................... $1,209,709
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(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):

The following information is presented in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 69, “Disclosure about Oil and Gas Producing Activities,” (Statement No. 69).

(A) Costs Imcurred in Off and Gas Exploration and Development Activities—The following costs
were incurred in oil and gas exploration and development activities during the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999:

United Inter-
States Canada  mnational Tetal
(In Thousands)

2001
Property acquisition costs (undeveloped leases and proved
PrOPErties) . ... .vv vt e $ (207 238 — 31
Exploration costs. . .. ... ... 145,882 44,793 33,339 224,014
Development COStS . ... ...t 322,454 18,162 — 340,616
Total ... $468,129 63,193 33,339 564,661
2000
Property acquisition costs (undeveloped leases and proved
PIOPEILIES) . o oottt e e e § 22,754 1 (56) 22,699
Exploration costs. . .. ... o 87,051 21,249 25,080 133,380
Development costs .. ......... ... 202,407 29,552 — 231,959
Total ... $312,212 50,802 25,024 388,038
1999
Property acquisition costs (undeveloped leases and proved
PIOPErties) . .o v v ittt $ 1,203 — 1,040 2,243
Exploration costs. .. ... ... .. . e 20,752 37,150 7,865 65,767
Development costs . ......... .. it 48,827 5,516 — 54,343
Cost of Forcenergy properties at fresh start . ............ 510,000 — — 510,000
Combined total ............ ... ... ... . . . . . .. ... $580,782 42,666 8,905 632,353

92




FOREST CIL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 20¢1, 20006 and 1999

(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):
(Continued)

(B) Aggregate Capitalized Costs—The aggregate capitalized costs relating to oil and gas activities at
the end of each of the years indicated were as follows:

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)
Costs related to proved properties ......... $3,208,348 2,807,033 2,482,534
Costs related to unproved properties:
Costs subject to depletion . .. ........... 13,355 6,982 6,455
Costs not subject to depletion .. ......... 186,614 206,763 175,618

3,408,317 3,020,778 2,664,607
Less accumulated depletion and valuation
allowance . ............ ... . .. ... (1,897,400) (1,669,112) (1,459,738)

$1,510,917 1,351,666 1,204,869
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(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OCIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):
(Continued)

(C) Results of Operations from Producing Activities—Results of operations from producing activities
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are presented below. Income taxes are different
from income taxes shown in the Consolidated Statements of Operations because this table excludes

general and administrative and interest expense.

United
States Canada Total

(In Thousands)

2001
Oiland gassales. .. ... o i e $657,856 56,996 714,852
Production €Xpense . . . . . ..o vt 170,455 15,795 186,250
Depletion EXPense . . .. vt i it e 202,120 19,521 221,641
Income tax EXpense . . . v vttt e e e 108,407 8,013 116,420
480,982 43329 524,311
Results of operations from producing activities . .. ............... $176,874 13,667 190,541
2000
Oiland gassales. . . ... .. e i $555,582 69,343 624,925
Production eXpense . . . . ...t e e 127,420 12,798 140,218
Depletion eXpense . ... ..ot e 190,902 18,057 208,959
Income tax eXpense. . . . . ..ottt 83,041 16,551 99,592
401,363 47,406 448,769
Results of operations from producing activities . . . ............... $154,219 21,937 176,156
1999
Ciland gassales. .. ... .. i $150,589 43252 193,841
Production eXpense . . . ... v i it e e 35914 13,231 49,145
Depletion eXPense . . ..ot i i e 69,171 15,726 84,897
Income tax eXpense. . . . ..ot e — 5,240 5,240
105,085 34,197 139,282
Results of operations from producing activities . . .. .............. $ 45,504 9,055 54,559

The Company recorded impairments of its international oil and gas properties of $18,072,000 in 2001
and $5,876,000 in 2000.
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(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):
{Continued)

(D) Estimated Proved Oil and Ga; Reserves—The Company’s estimate of its net proved and proved
developed oil and gas reserves and charnges for 2001, 2000 and 1999 follows. Proved oil and gas reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids which geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known
reservoirs under existing economic anc¢ operating conditions; i.e., prices and costs as of the date the
estimate is made.

Prices include consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual arrangement,
but not on escalations based on futur: conditions. Purchases of reserves in place represent volumes
recorded on the closing dates of the acquisitions for financial accounting purposes.

Proved developed oil and gas reserves are reserves that can be expected to be recovered through
existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods. Additional oil and gas expected to be
obtained through the application of fluicl injection or other improved mechanisms of primary recovery are
included as “proved developed reserves’” only after testing by a pilot project or after the operation of an
installed program has confirmed through production response that increased recovery will be achieved.

Proved undeveloped oil and gas reserves are reserves that are expected to be recovered from new
wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure is required for
recompletion.

Liquids Gas
(MBBLS) (MMCEF)
United United
States  Canada Total States Canada Total
Balance at December 31, 1998. ... ... ........... 21,584 13,485 35,069 424,520 139,744 564,264
Revisions of previous estimates. . ... ........... 2,108 (438) 1,670 (13,613) (497) (14,110)
Extensions and discoveries . . ... .............. 611 64 675 37,941 5,565 43,506
Production . ........... .. ... .. ... (2,712) (1,685) (4,397) (49,279) (12,423) (61,702)
Sales of reserves in place . . . ... ...... ... ..... (308)  (648) (956)  (6,231) (1,462)  (7,693)
Purchases of reserves inplace .. .............. 66 — 66 742 — 742
Forcenergy reserves at fresh start ... ........... 64,959 — 64,959 300,616 — 300,616
Balance at December 31, 1999. ... .............. 86,308 10,778 97,086 694,696 130,927 825,623
Revisions of previous estimates. . . ............. (1,710)  (641) (2,351) 2,680 (19,647) (16,967)
Extensions and discoveries . .. ....... . ... ... .. 5,780 529 6,309 116,911 23,206 140,117
Production .......... .. ... ... (9,891) (1,536) (11,427) (102,320) (11,522) (113,842)
Sales of reserves inplace . . . ................. (904) 9 (913) (26,084) (2,172) (28,256)
Purchases of reserves in place . ............... 537 — 537 37,383 — 37,383
Balance at December 31,2000. .. ............... 80,120 9,121 89,241 723,266 120,792 844,058
Revisions of previous estimates. . . ............. 878 680 1,558 (22,137) 3,780  (18,348)
Extensions and discoveries . . . .. .............. 44,000 135 44,135 133,933 46,221 180,154
Production ........... ..o, (9,239) (1,361) (10,600) (97,400) (10,994) (108,394)
Sales of reserves inplace . . .. ................ (4,833) (35) (4,868) (68,979) (867) (69,846)
Purchases of reserves inplace .. .............. 69 14 83 56 869 925
Balance at December 31,2001. ... .............. 110,995 8,554 119,549 668,739 159,810 828,549
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(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OQIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):
(Continued) :

Qil and Condensate Gas

(MBBLS) (MMCIF)
United United
States Canada  Total States Canada  Tetal

Proved developed reserves at:

December 31, 1998 .. ... ... . ... ... ... . .. ... 16,697 13,485 30,182 332,575 135,174 467,749
December 31,1999 ... ... ... ... ... . L 57,746 10,715 68,461 539,802 124,201 664,003
December 31,2000 . ........ ... . ... .. L, 53,385 9,121 62,506 546,789 83,824 630,613
December 31,2001 ... ..... ... .. ... ... ... ... 45,909 8,554 54,463 491,757 123,168 614,925

(E) Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows—Future oil and gas sales and
production and development costs have been estimated using prices and costs in effect at the end of the
years indicated, except in those instances where the sale of oil and natural gas is covered by contracts, in
which case, the applicable contract prices, including fixed and determinable escalations, were used for the
duration of the contract. Thereafter, the current spot price was used. All cash flow amounts, including
income taxes, are discounted at 10%.

Future income tax expenses are estimated using an estimated combined federal and state income tax
rate of 38% in the United States and a combined Federal and Provincial rate of 44.62% in Canada.
Estimates for future general and administrative and interest expense have not been considered.

Changes in the demand for oil and natural gas, inflation and other factors make such estimates
inherently imprecise and subject to substantial revision. This table should not be construed to be an
estimate of the current market value of the Company’s proved reserves. Management does not rely upon
the information that follows in making investment decisions.

December 31, 2001

United
States Canada Total
(In Thousands)
Future oil and gassales .................. $3,679,113 462,773 4,141,886
Future production costs .. ................ (957,645) (126,656) (1,084,301)
Future development costs . .. .............. (346,695)  (6,035) (352,730)
Future abandonment costs . ............... (150,675)  (2,822) (153,497)
Future income taxes . .. .................. (331,912)  (69,341)  (401,253)
Future netcashflows .. .................. 1,892,186 257,919 2,150,105
10% annual discount for estimated timing of
cashflows........................... (715,546)  (87,906)  (803,452)

Standardized measure of discounted future net
~cashflows. ... .. oo o ool $1,176,640 170,013 1,346,653

Present value of future net cash flows before income taxes was $1,345,743,000 in the United States and
$197,025,000 in Canada at December 31, 2001.
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(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):

(Continued)

December 31, 2000
United
States Canada Total
) ' (in Thousands)
Future oiland gassales . . ................ $ 8,805,617 958,776 9,764,393
Future production costs . . . .. ............. (1,284,255) (111,954) (1,396,209)
Future development costs . ............... (359,152) (13,910)  (373,062)
Future abandonment costs . .. ............. (174,197)  (4,091)  (178,288)
Future inCome taxes . ... .......ooueunn.. (1,913,585) (293,654) (2,207,239)
Future net cash flows . ............... L0 5,074,428 535,167 5,609,595
10% annual discount for estimated timing of
cashflows ............. .. ... ... ..... (1,702,274) (212,890) (1,915,164)
Standardized measure of discointed future net
cashflows ........... ... ... ......... $ 3,372,154 322,277 3,694,431

Present value of future net cash flows before income taxes was $4,605,767,000 in the United States and

$471,536,000 in Canada at December 31, 2000.

December 31, 1999

United
States Canada Total
(In Thousands) ‘
Future oil and gassales .................. $3,589,560 444,147 4,033,707
Future production costs' . ................. (963,204) (113,450) (1,076,654)
Future development costs . .. .............. (307,118)  (18,473)  (325,591)
Future abandonment costs ................ (166,574)  (4,245)  (170,819)
Future income taxes . ... ........c......... (269,011)  (68,792)  (337,803)
Future netcash flows .. .................. 1,883,653 239,187 2,122,840
10% annual. discount for estimated timing of '
cashflows.......... ... ... .. ....... (619,128)  (84,690)  (703,818)
Standardized measure of discounted future net

cashflows............ ... ... ... ... $1,264,525 154,497 1,419,022

Present value of future net cash flows before income taxes was $1,400,802,000 in the United States and

$189,405,000 in Canada at December 31, 1999,
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(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OQIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):
{Comntinued)

Changes in the Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Oil
and Gas Reserves—An analysis of the changes in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash
flows during each of the last three years is as follows.

December 31, 2001

United
States Canada Total
(In Thousands)

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating

to proved oil and gas reserves, at beginning of year .. ... .. ... $3,372,152 322,279 3,694,431
Changes resulting from:

Sales of oil and gas, net of production costs . .............. (487,401) (43,986) (531,387)

Net changes in prices and future production costs . .......... (3,900,193) (327,716) (4,227,909)

Net changes in future developmentcosts.................. (122,581)  (16,569)  (139,150)

Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery. . ............ 633,549 41,474 675,023

Previously estimated development costs incurred during the

period . .. ... 311,412 17,550 328,962

Revisions of previous quantity estimates . ................. (24,714) 8,283 (16,431)

Sales of reservesinplace . ....... ... ... ... L. (132,305)  (1,708)  (134,013)

Purchases of reserves inplace .. ........ ... ... ... ...... 1,634 1,005 2,639

Accretion of discount on reserves at beginning of year before

INCOMIE tAXES . o v it vttt e et e et e et e et e et 460,577 47,154 507,731

Net change in income taxes . .. .............oiueeun.... 1,064,510 122,247 1,186,757
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating

to proved oil and gas reserves, at end of year . ............. $1,176,640 170,013 1,346,653

The computation of the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved
oil and gas reserves at December 31, 2001 was based on average natural gas prices of approximately $2.66
per MCF in the U.S. and approximately $2.06 per MCF in Canada and on average liquids prices of
approximately $17.01 per barrel in the U.S. and approximately $15.05 per barrel in Canada.
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(£3) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):

(Continued)

December 31, 2000

United
States Canada Total
(In Thousands)

Standardized measure of discounted futire net cash flows relating

to proved oil and gas reserves, at beg.nning of year .. ....... $ 1,264,525 154,497 1,419,022
Changes resulting from:

Sales of oil and gas, net of productioni costs. . ............. (428,162)  (56,545)  (484,707)

Net changes in prices and future procluction costs . ......... 2,454268 312,067 2,766,335

Net changes in future development caosts .. ............... (135,125)  (12,268)  (147,393)

Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery ............. 833,232 61,298 894,530

Previously estimated development costs incurred during the

period ... ... 188,891 28,995 217,886

Revisions of previous quantity estimates. . ... ............. (15,250)  (68,734) (83,984)

Salesof reserves inplace . ........ ... ... ... .. ... ... (45,172  (1,621) (46,793)

Purchases of reservesinplace . . ................. ... ... 212,201 —_ 212,201

Accretion of discount on reserves at beginning of year before

INCOME TAXES . 4 v v e e e et e et e e e e e e et et e e e 140,080 18,941 159,021

Net change in inCOmMe taxes. . . ...« .ovv v v e, (1,097,336) (114,351) (1,211,687)
Standardized measure of discounted futire net cash flows relating

to proved oil and gas reserves, atend of year. .. ... ........ $ 3,372,152 322,279 3,694,431

The computation of the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved
oil and gas reserves at December 31, 2000 was based on average natural gas prices of approximately $9.52
per MCF in the U.S. and approximately $6.11 per MCF in Canada and on. average liquids prices of
approximately $23.84 per barrel in the 1J.S. and approximately $23.59 per barrel in Canada.
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(13) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):
(Continued)

December 31, 1999

United
States Canada Total
(In Thousands)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to
proved oil and gas reserves, at beginning of year . ............ $ 426362 96,469 522,831
Changes resulting from:
Sales of oil and gas, net of production costs. . ............... (114,675) (30,021) (144,696)
Net changes in prices and future production costs ............ 101,070 107,149 208,219
Net changes in future development costs . .. ................ (42,426) (450)  (42,876)
Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery . .............. ' 68,365 3,859 72,224
Previously estimated development costs incurred during the period 41,855 5,246 47,101
Revisions of previous quantity estimates . .................. 10,737 (15,746) (5,009)
Sales of reserves inplace .. ....... ... ... . ... L, (786)  (5,945) (6,731)
Purchases of reserves inplace . . . ........ ... ... ..., 1,421 — 1,421
Accretion of discount on reserves at beginning of year before
INCOME tAXES . & o v vt e e e e et e e et e e e e e e 43,356 11,392 54,748
Net change in income taxes .................ovuuiun.... (39,683) (17,456) (57,139)
, : 495,596 154,497 650,093
Reserves of Forcenergy at freshstart .. .................... 768,929 — 768,929
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to ‘ ‘
proved oil and gas reserves, at end of year. . . ............... $1,264,525 154,497 1,419,022

The computation of the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved
oil and gas reserves at December 31, 1999 was based on average natural gas prices of approximately $2.37
per MCF in the U.S. and approximately $1.66 per MCF in Canada and on average liquids prices of
approximately $22.38 per barrel in the U.S. and approximately $19.98 per barrel in Canada.

(14) SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION:

Canadian Forest is the issuer of the 8%% Notes (see Note 3). The 8%% Notes are unconditionally
guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by Forest. The indenture executed in connection with the 8%:%
Notes does not place significant restrictions on a subsidiary’s ability to make distributions to the parent.

The Company has not presented separate financial statements and other disclosures concerning
Canadian Forest or ProMark because management has determined that such information is not material to
holders of the 8%2% Notes; however, the following condensed consolidating financial information is being
provided as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 and for the years then ended. Investments in subsidiaries
are accounted for on the cost basis. Earnings or losses of subsidiaries are therefore not reflected in the
related investment accounts. The principal eliminating entries eliminate investments in subsidiaries and
intercompany balances.
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(14) SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION: (Continued)

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31, 2001

Canadian  Producers Consolidated
Forest Oil Forest Oil Marketing Eliminating Forest Oil
Corporation Ltd. Ltd. Entries Corporation
(In Thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ............. $ 8,129 132 126 — 8,387
Accountsreceivable . . ... ... ... o L. 103,436 10,103 20,551 — 134,090
Derivative instruments. . . . .. .. ... u ... 31,632 — — — 31,632
Other current assets . . . . .. v v v v v v v v e 26,838 1,268 —_ (250) 27,856
Total currentassets . . .. ................ 170,035 11,503 20,677 (250) 201,965
Net property and equipment, at cost, full cost method . 1,287,996 228,890 14 _ 1,516,900
Deferred income taxes . . . ......... . ... . ... 43,930 — — — 43,930
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net ... ...... — — 13,263 — 13,263
Intercompany investments . . . .. .............. 232,721 25,713 — (258,434) —
Other assets . ...... ...« 19,271 1,040 — — 20,311
$1,753,953 267,146 33,954 (258,684) 1,796,369
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable . . .. .......... .. .. ..., $ 174,460 14,385 20,568 (250) 209,163
Accrued interest . .. ... ... 5,748 1,616 — _ 7,364
Current portion of deferred tax liability . . . ... ... 11,154 — — — 11,154
Other current liabilities . . . ... ............. 11,844 649 125 €8] 12,617
Total current liabilities . . . ... ... ......... 203,206 16,650 20,693 (251) 240,298
Long-termdebt . ............ ... .. ....... 530,935 63,243 — — 594,178
Other liabilities . . .. .. ................... 20,991 533 — — 21,524
Deferred income taxes . . . .. ... . ... . ... — 27,335 (10,909) — 16,426
Shareholders’ equity
Commonstock .. ............. .o .... 4,883 232,720 25,265 (257,985) 4,883
Capital surplus . . .. .............. ... ..., 1,144,687 595 — — 1,145,282
Accumulated deficit ... ....... ... ... ... " (100,214) (69,085) 3,475 — (165,824)
Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) . . . . . 5,268 (4,845) (4,570) — (4,147)
Treasury stock, atcost . . ... ........... .... " (55,803) — — (448) (56,251)
Total shareholders’ equity . .. ......... ..., 998,821 159,385 24,170 (258,433) 923,943
$1,753,953 267,146 33,954 (258,684) 1,796,369
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(14) SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION: (Continued)
Supplemental Condensed Comnselidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2001

Canadian  Producers  Consolidated
Forest Oil Forest Gil Marketing Forest Oil
Corporation Ltd. Ltd. Cerporation

(In Thousands)

Revenue:
Marketing and processing . . ... .. ... .o $ 1101 — 302,426 303,527
Oil and gas sales:
Gas. . .. 439,668 28,099 — 467,767
Oil, condensate and natural gas liquids . ... ............. 218,188 28,897 — 247,085
Total oil and gassales. . . ..... ... ... .. .. ... .. .... 657,856 56,996 —_ 714,852
Total revenue . .. . . .. 658,957 56,996 302,426 1,018,379
Expenses:
Marketing and processing . . .. ... ... L o L 1,186 — 298,876 300,062
Oil and gas production . . . ... ... .. . L o 154,876 15,795 — 170,671
Transportation and gathering . .. .......... .. ... .. .. ... 15,579 — — 15,579
General and administrative .. . .. ... . ... .. .. 24,127 5,011 1,376 30,514
Merger and seismic licensing . . ... ... ... . .. ... 9,836 — — 9,836
Depreciation and depletion . .. ........ ... ... ... . ... 204,345 19,831 1,857 226,033
Impairment of oil and gas properties . . .. ................ 18,072 — — 18,072
Impairment of contract value . .. .. .. ... .. ... ... ... .. — — 3,239 3,239
Total operating eXpenses . . .. ........ . ... 428,021 40,637 305,348 774,006
Earnings (loss) from operations . . ... ... ... ... .. .. .. ... 230,936 16,359 (2,922) 244,373 !
Other income and expense:
Other (income) expense, net . . . ... ... ... ... 9,521 180 (109) 9,592
Interest expense . .. . ... .. ... .. 35,400 14,510 — 49,910
Translation loss on subordinated debt . . . .. ... .. .......... — 7,872 — 7,872
Realized gain on derivative instruments . .. ... .. ... ....... (11,556) — — (11,556)
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments . . . ... ........... (376) — — (376)
Total other income and expense . . . . ... ............... 32,989 22,562 (109) 55,442
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary item . ...... 197,947 (6,203) .(2.813) 188,931
Income tax expense (benefit):
CUITENL . . . . e e e e e e e 2,351 12 2 2,365
Deferred . . .. .. . e 74,541 2,790 (119) 77,212
76,892 2,802 117) 79,577
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary item . . . ... ... ... . ... .. 121,055 (9,005) (2,696) 109,354
Extraordinary item—Iloss on extinguishment of debt . . .. ... ... .. (621) (4,990) — (5,611)
Net earnings {I0S8) . . . .« o oottt e $120,434 (13,995) (2,696) 103,743
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(14) SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION: (Continued)
Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2001

Canadian  Producers  Consolidated
Forest Oil Forest Oil  Marketing Forest Oil
Corporation Ltd. Ltd. Corporation
(In Thousands)
Cash flow from operating activities:
Net earnings (loss) before extraordinary item . ... ............ $ 121,055 (9,005) (2,696) 109,354
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and depletion . .. ........ .. .. ... .. .. .... 204,345 19,831 1,857 226,033
Impairment of oil and gas properties . .. ................. 18,072 — — 18,072
Impairment of contract value . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... — — 3,239 3,239
Amortization of deferred debtcosts . . . .. ... ... ... . ... ... 1,395 398 — 1,793
Translation loss on subordinated notes . . . . ............... — 7.872 — 7,872
Gain on derivative instruments, net . . .. ... ... ... ... ... 1,353 — — 1,353
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) . .. .. ....... ... .. .. 74,541 2,790 (119) 77,212
Stock option compensation . ... ... ... L L oL — 595 — 595
Other,met . ... .. (61) 3) 5 (59)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable . . . ... ... ... ... 38,477 (3,433) 31,314 66,358
(Increase) decrease in other current assets ... ............. (5,157) (587) 403 (5,341)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ... ............... 50,562 28,881 (29,202) 50,241
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and oth:r current liabilities . (25,898) (32,932) 121 (58,709)
Net cash provided by operating activities . .. ............. 478,684 14,407 4,922 498,013
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures for property and equipment . .. ......... (505,667) (63,521) — (569,188)
Proceeds fromsale of assets. . ... ... .. ... ... ... . .. . ... 152,337 538 — 152,872
Decrease in other assets, net . .. ... ... ... . L. (4,790) (90) — (4.880)
Net cash used by investing activities . .. ................ (358,120) (63,076) — (421,196)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings . ... ...... .. .. .. .. 754,000 12,986 — 766,986
Repayments of bank borrowings . ... ............ ... .... (1,040,000) (40,546) — (1,080,546)
Issuance of 8% senior subordinated notes, net >f issuance costs . . . 420,550 - — 420,550
Redemption of 10%4% Senior Subordinated Noes . . . ... .. .... (9,350) — — (9,350)
Redemption of 8% Senior Subordinated Notes. . . .. ........ — (131,933) — (131,933)
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants . .. .......... 8,430 — —_ 8,430
Purchase of treasury stock . . ... ... ... .. .. L oL (55,803) — — (55,803)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities, net. . . ... ..... ... ... (139) 609 — 470
Net cash provided (used) by financing activites . . . ... ...... 77,688 (158,884) - (81,196)
Intercompany advances, net . . ... ... ... . oo (204,882) 209,559 (4,677) —
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ... ............. ... (19) (1,215) 3) (1,237)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .......... (6,649) 791 242 (5,616)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . ... ........... 14,778 (659) (116) 14,003
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . ... ............... $ 8,129 132 126 8,387
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

December 31, 2000

Canadian  Producers Consolidated
Forest Oil Forest OQil Marketing Eliminating Forest Oil
Cerporation Ltd. Ltd. Entries Corporation
(In Thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . ............... $ 14778 (659) (116) — 14,003
Accounts receivable . .. ... .. ... L L. 141,932 7,349 53,964 — 203,245
Other current assets . . . . ... ..o v, 20,039 1,106 435 — 21,580 !
Total current assets . . . .. ............... 176,749 7,796 54,283 — 238,828
Net property and equipment, at cost, full cost method . 1,161,420 198,276 60 —_ 1,359,756
Deferred income taxes . . .. .. .. ... ... ... 119,300 — —_ — 119,300
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net . . ....... — —_ 19,412 — 19,412
Intercompany investments . . . . .. .. .. ......... 27,840 25,713 — (53,553) —
Other assets . . .. v v it it e e e 12,096 2,986 — — 15,082
$1,497,405 234,771 73,755 (53,553) 1,752,378
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable . . ... ... .. ... o L $ 123,944 16,569 51,687 —_ 192,200
Accrued interest . . .. ... ... . 6,393 5,043 — — 11,436
Other current liabilities . . .. .. ............. 35,443 852 6 — 36,301
Total current labilities . . . . ... ... ... .... 165,780 22,464 51,693 — 239,937
Long-termdebt ... ... ... ... . .. .. ... ... .. 401,162 221,072 — — 622,234
Other liabilities . . .. .. ... ... ............. 16,458 (82) — — 16,376
Deferred income taxes . . . ... ............... — 26,300 (11,435) — 14,865
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock . . ........... ... .. ... .. 4,840 27,840 25,265 (53,105) 4,840
Capital surplus . . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 1,139,136 — — — 1,139,136
Accumulated deficit . . ... ... ... L (220,648) (59,766) 10,847 — (269,567)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . . . ... ... (6,505) (3,057) (2,615) — (12,177)
Treasury stock, atcost . ... ......... ... ..., (2.818) — — (448) (3,266)
Total shareholders’ equity . .. .. ........... 914,005 (34,983) 33,497 (53,553) 858,966
$1,497,405 234,771 73,755 (53,553) 1,752,378
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(14) SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION: (Continued)
Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Canadian  Prodacers Consolidated
Forest Oil Forest Oil  Marketing Eliminating Forest Oi}
Corporation Ltd. Ltd. Entries Corporation
(In Thousands)
Revenue:
Marketing and processing . . ............... $ 1,114 — 287,019 — 288,133
Oil and gas sales:
Gas ... 337,785 29,986 474 — 368,245
Oil, condensate and natural gas liquids . . . .. ... 217,797 38,363 520 — 256,680
Total oil and gassales . ... ................ 555,582 68,349 994 — 624,925
Total revenue . . .. ... ... ... 556,696 68,349 288,013 — 913,058
Expenses:
Marketing and processing . . ............... 901 — 284,138 — 285,039
Oil and gas production . ........... ... ... 127,420 12,722 76 — 140,218
General and administrative . . .. ... .. ... ..... 30,134 4,060 1,386 — 35,580
Merger and seismic licensing expense . . ... .. ... 31,577 — — — 31,577
Depreciation and depletion . .. ............. 192,181 18,022 2,277 — 212,480
Impairment of oil and gas properties . ... ...... 5,876 — — — 5,876
Total operating expenses . . ... ... . ... . ... . 388,089 34,804 287,877 — 710,770
Earnings from operations . . . ... ... ... ... .... 168,607 33,545 136 — 202,288
Other income and expense:
Other (income) expense, net . . .. ... .. ... ... (1,833) (5,468) 5,180 364 (1,757)
Interestexpense. . . ... . ... ... ... ... 39,874 20,308 451 (364) 60,269
Translation gain on subordinated debt . . . . .. .. .. — 7,102 — — 7,102
Total other income and expense ... ..... S 38,041 21,942 5,631 — 65,614
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and extraordir ary
Hem . ..o N 130,566 11,603 (5,495) — 136,674
Income tax expense (benefit):
CUITENL . o v v i e e e e e e A 1,090 435 141 — 1,666
Deferred ... ......... .. ... ... ... A (1,729) 25,222 (19,093) — 4,400
(639) 25,657 (18,952) — 6,066
Net carnings (loss) ... ............ . ... ... $131,205 (14,054) 13,457 — 130,608
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(14) SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION: (Continued)
Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 286060

Canadian Producers Consclidated
Forest Qil Forest Oil  Marketing Forest Oil
Corporation Ltd. Ltd. Corporation

(In Thousands)

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net earnings (loss) before extraordinary item. . ... ........... $ 131,205 (14,054) 13,457 130,608
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities;

Depreciation and depletion . . .. ...... .. ... . .. ... ... 192,181 18,022 2,277 212,480
Impairment of oil and gas properties .. .............. ... 5,876 — — 5,876
Amortization of deferred debtcosts . . . ... .. ... ... .. ..., 1,118 399 — 1,517
Translation loss on subordinated notes . .. ............... — 7,102 — 7,102
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) . ... .............. (1,728} 25,222 (19,093) 4,400
Stock and stock option compensation . . ... ... ... 3,611 — — 3,611
OMhEr, NEL . ot v e et e (1,215) (237) — (1,452)
Increase in accounts receivable . . ... ... ... o L (58,946) (4,371) (33,878) (97,195)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets . . .. ............ (672) 1,574 2,081 2,983
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable . . . ... ........ .. .. 6,372 (31,572) 35,861 10,661
Increase in accrued interest and other current liabilities . . ... .. 2,733 34,443 1 37,177
Net cash provided by operating activities before reorganization
ftems. . ... . 280,534 36,528 706 317,768
Decrease in accrued reorganization costs payable. . .. .. ... ... (11,236) — — (11,236)
Net cash provided by operating activities after reorganization
TEMS. « . .. e 269,298 36,528 706 306,532
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures for property and equipment. . .. .. .. .. .. (338,932) (51,060} — (389,992)
Proceeds fromsale of assets . . . . ... .................. 15,589 1,715 — 17,304
Decrease in other assets,net ... ... .................. (3,373) — — (3,373)
Net cash used by investing activities. . . .. .............. (326,716) (49,345) — (376,061)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings . . . . ........ ... ... . ... . 626,157 12,250 — 638,407
Repayments of bank borrowings . . .............. ... ... (675,130) (15,283) — (690,413)
Redemption of 10%2% notes . . ... ... .. . ... ... .. ... (3,067) — — (3,067)
Redemption of 8%% notes . . ... ... ... .. . o — (7,184) — (7,184)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock . ... ............ 38,800 — — 38,800
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants. . . ... ....... 12,556 — — 12,556
Purchase of treasury stock . .. ....... ... ... .. ... (2,818) — — (2,818)
Decrease in other liabilities, net . ... ............ ...... (1,613) (840) — (2,453)
Net cash used by financing activities . .. ............... (5,115) (11,057) — (16,172)
Intercompany advances, Net. . . .. .. ..ot (22,837) 23,462 (625) —
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash. .. ........ .. .. .... 12 100 (69) 43
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents . ................ (85,358) (312) 12 (85,658)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .. ............ 100,136 347 (128) 99,661
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . ............ ... $ 14,778 (659) (116) 14,003
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December 31, 1999

Canadian Producers Consolidated
Forest Oil Forest Oil Marketing Eliminating Forest Oil
Corporation Ltd. Ltd. Entries Corporation
(In Thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ......... ... ....... $ 100,136 (343) (132) — 99,661
Accounts receivable . ... ... .. L. L. 82,986 4,921 22,826 — 110,733
Other current assets . . . . . .. v v v v v 19,675 1,176 80 —_ 20,931
Total current assets . . . . oo v v i v i e 202,797 5,754 22,774 — 231,325
Intercompany receivables . ... ... ... Lo o0, 226 65,646 — (65,872) —
Net property and equipment, at cost, full cost method . . . . . . 1,035,633 121,196 52,880 —_ 1,209,709
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net ... .. ......... — — 22,092 — 22,092
Intercompany investments . .. .................... 24,315 25,713 — (50,028) —
Other assets . . . . . . .. e 8,387 3,176 — —_ 11,563
$1,271,358 221,485 97,746 (115,900) 1,474,689
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable. . . .. ... ... .. L. o oL $ 106,336 14,733 16,064 — 137,133
Accruedinterest . . ... ... ... .. ... 25,761 5,261 — — 31,022
Accrued reorganization costs . .. ... ... L. 11,236 —_ — —_ 11,236
Other current liabilities . . . . ... ... ... ........... 24,828 221 — —_ 25,049
Total current liabilities . . . . .. ........ . ........ 168,161 20,215 16,064 — 204,440
Intercompany payables. . . .. ... . ......... ... ..... 12,746 — 53,126 (65,872) —
Long-termdebt .. ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... .. 452,940 233213 — — 686,153
Other liabilities . ... ....... .. ... ... .. ... ...... 15,823 338 — — 16,161
Deferred income taxes . . . ... ... ... —_ 1,714 7,237 _ 8,951
Shareholders’ equity
Common Stock . . . .. .. .. .. 4,611 24,315 25,265 (49,580) 4,611
Capital surplus . ... .. ... .. ... 962,602 —_ — — 962,602
Accumulated deficit . .. .. ... ... o oL L (341,993)  (51,404) (2,610) — (396,007)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . . ... .. ... .. .. (3.532) (6,906) (1,336) — (11,774)
Treasury stock, atcost ... ...... ... .. ... .. ... — — — (448) (448)
Total shareholders’ equity . . . . ... ... ........ 621,688  (33,995) 21,319 (50,028) 558,984
$1,271,358 221,485 97,746 (115,900) 1,474,689
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Year Ended December 31, 1999

Canadian Preducers Consolidated
Forest OGil Forest O0il Marketing Eliminating Forest Oil
Corporation Led. Ltd. Entries Corporation
(In Thousands)
Revenue:
Marketing and processing . .. ... ... .. ... .. ... $ 647 - 19 165,617 — 166,283
Oil and gas sales:
Gas . . . 115,469 18,660 297 — 134,426
Oil, condensate and natural gas liquids . .. ......... 35,120 23,513 782 — 59,415
Total oil and gassales. . .. ......... .. ... ....... 150,589 42,173 1,079 — 193,841
Total revenue . . . . .. .. .. e 151,236 42,192 166,696 — 360,124
Expenses:
Marketing and processing . . ... ................. — 21 162,596 — 162,617
Oil and gas production . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 35,914 13,172 59 — 49,145
General and administrative ... .. ... ............. 9,912 3,391 2,059 — 15,362
Depreciation and depletion .. .. ...... ... ... ..., 70,163 15,706 2,321 — 88,190
Total operating expenses. . . ... ... .. ... 115,989 32,290 167,035 — 315,314
Earnings (loss) from operations . . . . ................ 35,247 9,902 (339) — 44,810
Other income and expense:
Other (income) expense, net . . . ................. 138 (4,810) (1,733) 3,776 (2,629)
Interest €Xpense . . .. ... ... ... 22,396 19,959 2,294 (3,776) 40,873
Translation gain on subordinated debt . . ... ... ... ... — (10,561) — — (10,561)
Total other income and expense . . ... ............ 22,534 4,588 561 - 27,683
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary item . . 12,713 5314 (900) — 17,127
Income tax expense (benefit):
Current . . . ... — (763) (2,158) — (2,921)
Deferred . .. ... ... .. — (2,084) 2,491 — 407
— (2,847} 333 — (2,514)
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary item . . .. ... ....... 12,713 8,161 (1,233) — 19,641
Extraordinary item—Iloss on extinguishment of debt . . .. ... (598) — — — (598)
Net earnings (loss) . . . ........ .. ... . .. .. ... . $ 12,115 8,161 (1,233) —_ 19,043
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Canadian Producers Consolidated
Forest Oil Forest OQil Marketing Forest Oil
Corporation Ltd. Ltd. Corporation

(In Thousands)

Cash flow from operating activities:

Net earnings (loss) before extraordinary item. . . ... ............... $ 12,713 8,161 (1,233) 19,641
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and depletion . . ... ... ... ... . L o oL 70,163 15,706 2,321 88,190
Amortization of deferred debt costs . ... ... ... Lo o L 940 401 — 1,341
Translation gain on subordinated notes . . .. ................... — (10,561) — (10,561)
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) . ............. ... ....... — (2,084) 2,491 407
Other, n€t . . .. . . e (781) (2,748) — (3,529)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable . .. ... ... oL oL (4,448) 336 (857) (4,949)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets . . . .. ................ (981) 1,037 (3.360) (3,304)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable . . ... ... .. .. ... ... ... .. 14,894 3,932 (582) 18,244
Increase in accrued interest and other currert liabilities . .. ... ... ... 1,858 1,850 1,325 5,033
Net cash provided by operating activities . . ... ... ............ 94,358 16,050 105 110,513
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures for property and equipraent. . . . .. .... ... .... (82,248)  (42,83%5) — (125,083)
Proceeds fromsale of assets . . . ........ .. .. .. ... ... ... . ... 9,772 10,699 — 20,471
Decrease in otherassets,net. .. .. ... . ... ... ... L L. (1,034) — — (1,034)
Net cash used by investing activities . . . . .. .................. (73,510)  (32,136) — (105,646)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings . . . .. ... ... ... L o oL 78,600 33,827 — 112,427
Repayments of bank borrowings . . ... ... ....... ... .. ... ... (300,500)  (37,692) — (338,192)
Issuance of 104% senior subordinated notes, net of issuance costs. . . . .. 98,561 — — 98,561
Redemption of 11%% senior subordinated notes . . . .............. (9,083) — — (9,083)
Cash balance of Forcenergy at date of fresh-start . . .. ..... ... ... .. 96,506 — — 96,506
Proceeds of common stock offering, net of offering costs . . . .. ..., ... 131,188 — — 131,188
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants. . . . ... .. ......... 1,589 — — 1,589
Decrease in other liabilities, net .. ...... ... ... ... . . L. (1,588) (41) — (1,629)
Net cash used by financing activities . ... ................... 95,273 (3,906) — 91,367
Intercompany advances, net . . . .. .. .. .. (19,713) 19,713 — —
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash . . ... ....... .. .. ... .. .. 15 (31 28 12
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . .. ... ........ 96,423 (310) 133 96,246
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ... ................ 3,713 (33) (265) 3,415
Cash and cash equivalents atendofyear .. ..................... $ 100,136 (343) (132) 99,661
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PART III
Item 1§. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information concerning Forest’s directors required by this Item is incorporated by reference to
the information under the captions “Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors” in the definitive Proxy
Statement concerning its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 8§, 2002 (the “2002 Proxy
Statement”). The information concerning Forest’s executive officers required by this Item is incorporated
by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Executive Officers of Forest” included in
Part I, Item 4A of this Form 10-K.

The information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the 2002 Proxy Statement.

Item 11, Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information under the
captions “Executive Compensation,” “Stock Option Grants During 2001,” “Year-End Stock Option
Values” and “Director Compensation” in the 2002 Proxy Statement.

Fem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information under the
captions “Principal Holders of Securities” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in the 2002 Proxy Statement.

Btem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Tramsactions.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information under the
caption “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” in the 2002 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8$-K

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report or are incorporated by reference:

(b)

(1) Financial Statements:

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2001 and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Operations— Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999

Consolidated Stztements of Shareholders’ Equity—Years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Ali schedules have been omitted because the information is either not required or is
set forth in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits: See the Index of Exhibits listed in Item 14(c) hereof for a list of those
exhibits filed as part cf this Form 10-K.

Reports on Form 8-K

On November 6, 2001, Forest filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 6, 2001,
pursuant to [tem 5, announcing that Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. sold its common stock
position in Forest as previously reported in a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on January 10, 2001.

On November 7, 2001, Forest filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 6, 2001,
pursuant to Items 5 and 7, announcing that it had entered into a memorandum of

understanding with Unocal Corporation to jointly explore and exploit certain properties in
the Central Gulf of Mexico.

On November 8, 2001, Forest filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2001,
pursuant to Items 9 and 7, aanouncing its earnings and operations resuits for the three and
nine months ending Septemter 30, 2001.

On November 8, 2001, Forest filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2001,
pursuant to Items 5 and 7, fiing interim financial statements for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2001.

On November 30, 2001, Forest filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 30, 2001,
pursuant to Items 5 and 7, announcing the closing of a transaction with Unocal Corporation to
jointly explore and exploit certain properties in the central Gulf of Mexico.
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Exhibit
Number

Index of Exhibits:

Exhibits

31

32

33

34

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

45

4.6

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Forest Oil Corporation dated October 14, 1993,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to Form 10-Q for Forest Gil Corporation
for the quarter ended September 30, 1993 (File No. 0-4597).

Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of July 20,
1995, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(a) to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil
Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 1995 (File No. 0-4597).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of July 26, 1995,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(b) to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil
Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 1995 (File No. 0-4597).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation dated as of January 5, 1996,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(c) to Forest Oil Corporation’s Registration i
Statement on Form 'S-2 (File No. 33-64949).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation dated as of December 7,
2000, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(d) to Form 10-K for Forest Qil
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2000 (File No. 001-13515).

Restated Bylaws of Forest Oil Corporation dated as of February 14, 2001, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2000 (File No. 001-13515).

Indenture dated as of September 29, 1997 among Canadian Forest Gil Ltd., Forest Gil
Corporation and State Street Bank and Trust Company, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Forest Oil Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated

October 31, 1997 (File No. 333-39255).

Supplemental Indenture dated December 1, 1999 among Forest Qil Corporation, Canadian
Forest Qil Ltd., Producers Marketing Ltd., and State Street Bank and Trust Company,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Forest Oil Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 dated February 6, 2002 (File No. 333-82254).

Indenture dated as of February 5, 1999 between Forest Gil Corporation and State Street
Bank and Trust Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to Forest Oil
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 dated November 14, 1996, as amended
(File No. 333-161295).

Indenture dated as of June 21, 2001 between Forest Oil Corporation and State Street Bank
and Trust Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 10-Q for
Forest Qil Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 001-13515).

Indenture dated as of December 7, 2001 between Forest Oil Corporation and State Street
Bank and Trust Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Forest Oil
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated February 6, 2002 (File

No. 333-82254).

Rights Agreement between Forest Oil Corporation and Mellon Securities Trust Company,
as Rights Agent dated as of October 14, 1993, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to Form 10-Q for Forest Gil Corporation for the quarter ended September 30,
1993 (File No. 0-4597).
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibits

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

4.14

Amendment No. 1 dated as of July 27, 1995 to Rights Agreement dated as of October 14,
1993 between Forest Oil Corporation and Mellon Securities Trust Company, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.5 of Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation dated
October 11, 1995 (File No. 0-4597).

Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 25, 1998 to Rights Agreement, dated as of October 14,
1993, between Forest Qil Corporation and Mellon Securities Trust Company, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation, dated June 25,
1998 (File No. 001-13515.

Amendment No. 3, dated as of September 1, 1998 to Rights Agreement, dated as of
October 14, 1993, between Forest Cil Corporation and Mellon Securities Trust Company,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to Forest Oil Corporation Registration
Statement on Form S-4, dated November 6, 2000 (File No. 333-49376).

Amendment No. 4, dated as of July 10, 2000, to Rights Agreement, dated as of October 14,
1993, between Forest Oil Corporation and Mellon Securities Trust Company, incorporated

herein by reference to Exnibit 4.14 to Forest Qil Corporation Registration Statement on
Form S-4, dated November 6, 2000 (File No. 333-49376).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 10, 2000, by and between Forest Oil
Corporation and the other signatories thereto, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.15 to Forest Oil Corporation Registration Statement on Form S-4, dated
November 6, 2000 (File No. 333-49376).

Credit Agreement, dated ns of Gctober 10, 2000, among Forest Oil Corporation, the
lenders party thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as U.S. Syndication Agent, Citibank, N.A., as
U.S. Documentation Agert, and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Global Administrative
Agent, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to Form 10-K for Forest Oil
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2000 (File No. 001-13515).

Canadian Credit Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2000, among Canadian Forest Oil
Ltd., the subsidiary borrovers from time to time parties thereto, the lenders party thereto,
Bank of Montreal, as Canadian Syndication Agent, The Toronto-Dominion Bank, as
Canadian Documentation Agent, The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as Canadian
Administrative Agent, and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Global Administrative Agent,
incorporated herein by refzrence to Exhibit 4.14 to Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation
for the year ended December 31, 2000 (File No. 001-13515).

Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Assignment, Security Agreement, Financing Statement and
Fixture Filing from Forest Gil Corporation to Robert C. Mertensotto, trustee, and Gregory
P. Williams, trustee (Utah), and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Global Administrative
Agent, dated as of December 7, 2000, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to
Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2000 (File

No. 001-13515).
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibits

4.15

4.16

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5%

10.6*

10.7%

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

First Amendment to Combined Credit Agreement dated as of May 24, 2001, by and
between Forest Qil Corporation, Canadian Forest Qil Ltd., each of the lenders that is a
party thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as U.S. Syndication Agent, Citibank, N.A., as U.S.
Documentation Agent, The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as Canadian Administrative
Agent, Bank of Montreal, as Canadian Syndication Agent, The Toronto-Dominion Bank, as
Canadian Documentation Agent, and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Global
Administrative Agent, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10-Q for
Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 001-13515).

Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement between Forest Oil Corporation and the
other signatories thereto dated as of December 7, 2001, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.16 to Forest il Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated
February 6, 2002 (File No. 333-82254).

Description of Executive Life Insurance Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation for the year ended December 31,
1991 (File No. 0-4597).

Form of non-qualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation for the year ended
December 31, 1990 (File No. 0-4597).

Form of Executive Retirement Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Form 10-K for Forest Gil Corporation for the year ended December 31, 1990 (File
No. 0-4597).

Forest Oil Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and Option Agreement, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 for Forest Oil Corporation dated June 7,
1996 (File No. 0-4597).

First Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter ended
June 30, 2001 (File No. 001-13515).

Second Amendment to Forest Gil Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the
quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 001-13515).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9
to Form 10-K for Forest Cil Corporation for the year ended December 31, 1993 (File
No. 0-4597).

Form of First Amendment to Severance Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
(File No. 001-13515).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Form 10-C for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File
No. 001-13515).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10
to Forest Oil Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated February 6, 2002
(File No. 333-82254).
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Exhibit
Number Exhibits

10.11* Employment Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2000, between Forcenergy Inc and Gary
E. Carlson, incorporated 1erein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Form 8-K for Forcenergy
Inc filed on February 16, 2000 (File No. 0-26444).

10.12* Forest Gil Corporation 20001 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 for Forest Oil Corporation dated June 6, 2001 (File
No. 333-62408).

10.13* Form of Employee Stock Option Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-8 for Forest Oil Corporation dated June 6, 2001 (File
No. 333-62408).

10.14* Form of Non-Employee Diirector Stock Option Agreement, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-8 for Forest Oil Corporation dated June 6, 2001 (File
No. 333-62408).

21.1%* List of Subsidiaries of Registrant
23.1%* Consent of KPMG LLP

24.1%* Powers of Attorney (included on the signature pages hereof).

*  Contract or compensatory plan o arrangement in which directors and/or officers participate.

**  Indicates exhibits filed with this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

FOREST OIL CORPORATION
(Registrant)

Date: March 22, 2002 By: /s/ ROBERT S. BOSWELL

Robert S. Boswell
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Power of Attorney

The officers and directors of Forest Oil Corporation, whose signatures appear below, hereby
constitute and appoint Robert S. Boswell, Joan S. Sonnen and Newton W. Wilson III, and each of them
(with full power to each of them to act alone), the true and lawful attorney-in-fact to sign and execute, on
behalf of the undersigned, any amendment(s) to this Form 10-K Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2001, and any instrument or document filed as part of, as an exhibit to or in connection with
any amendment, and each of the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all
that said attorneys shall do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures @E EaE
/s/ ROBERT S. BOSWELL Chairman of the Board and March 22, 2002
(Robert S. Boswell) Chief Executive Officer and
Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ DAvID H. KEYTE Executive Vice President and March 22, 2002
(David H. Keyte) Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ JoaN C. SONNEN Vice President—Controller and March 22, 2002
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

(Joan C. Sonnen)

/s/ PHILIP F. ANSCHUTZ Director March 22, 2002
(Philip F. Anschutz)
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Signatures

/s/ WILLIAM L. BRITTON

(William L. Britton)

/s/ CORTLANDT S. DIETLER

(Cortlandt S. Dietler)

/s/ DOD A. FRASER

(Dod. A. Fraser)

/s/ CANNON Y. HARVEY

~ (Cannon Y. Harvey)

/s/ FORREST E. HOGLUND

(Forrest E. Hoglund)

/s/ STEPHEN A. KAPLAN

(Stephen A. Kaplan)

/s/ JAMES H. LEE

(James H. Lee)

/s/ CRAIG D. SLATER

(Craig D. Slater)

/s/ MICHAEL B. YANNEY

(Michael B. Yanney)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Title

Date

March 22, 2002

March 22, 2002

March 22, 2002

March 22, 2002

March 22, 2002

March 22, 2002

- March 22, 2002

March 22, 2002

March 22, 2002
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PRINCIPATL OFHICEN

HEADQUARTERS

1600 Broadway, Suite 2200
Denver, Colorado 80202
303.812.1400

ALASKA

310 K Street, Suite 700
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
907.308.8600

CANADIAN FOREST OIL LTD.
600, 800 - 6th Avenue S.W.

. Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 3G3
- 403.292.8000

. LOUISIANA

3838 North Causeway
Lakeway Three, Suite 2300
Metairie, Louisiana 70002

- 504.838.7022

* 900 South College Road, Suite 300

Lafayette, Louisiana 70503
337.264.0500

CNEOWOR

- Common Stock Listed and Traded on:

t The New York Stock Exchange,

{

| NYSE Symbol - FST

PRANSTHROAGENT AND REGISTRAR TOR
COMMON STOC R

Mellon Investor Services LLC

85 Challenger Road

Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660

800.635.9270

TDD for Hearing Impaired: 800.231.5469
Foreign Shareholders: 201.329.8660

TDD Foreign Shareholders: 201.329.8354
www.melloninvestor.com

INVESTOR RETATIONS

Additional information, including investor Package,
may be obtained from:

Forest Oil Corporation

Investor Relations

1600 Broadway, Suite 2200

Denver, Colorado 80202
InvestorRelations @ ForestQOil.com

or visit our website at www.ForestQOil.com

ANNUAL M TFING OF SHARTHOT Y RS
The annual meeting of shareholders of
Forest Oil Corporation will be held at the
Colorado State Bank Building,

1600 Broadway, 5th Floor, Denver, Colorado,
Wednesday, May 8, 2002 at 10:00 am MDT.
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1600 Broadway, Suite 2200
Denver, Colorado 80202
303.812.1400
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